
Jersey Shore Area School District 

Board of Education – Regular Meeting 

Minutes of November 22, 2021 

 

 

 

A. Opening 

 
1. Call to Order: Mr. Allen, President, called the meeting to order at 7:15 p.m. 

 
2. Roll Call: 

Members Present: Mr. Craig Allen, Mr. Michael Allen, Mr. Harry Brungard, Ms. Patrice Doebler, Mrs. 

Angela Grant, Mr. Wayne Kinley, Mrs. Nancy Petrosky, Mrs. Michelle Stemler, Mrs. Mary Thomas and Dr. 

Brian T. Ulmer, Superintendent (virtually). 

Others Present: Christopher Kenyon, Esq., Solicitor, Dr. Kenneth Dady, Jr., Assistant Superintendent, Mr. 

Benjamin Enders, Board Secretary, Madelyn Gerst, Student Representatives. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
B. Approvals 

1. Minutes: 

 
Motion: A motion was made by Harry Brungard and seconded by Mary Thomas to approve the following Minutes, 

as listed on the Agenda: 

 

a. October 11, 2021 Regular Meeting 

b. October 25, 2021 Regular Meeting 

The vote was a unanimous Yes.  Motion carried. 

2. Treasurer’s Report: 

 
Motion: A motion was made by Wayne Kinley and seconded by Angela Grant to approve the following Treasurer’s 

Reports as listed on the Agenda: 

 

a. October 2021 Treasurer's Report (Attachment) 

b. October 2021 Investment Report (Attachment) 

 

The vote was a unanimous Yes. Motion carried. 

 

3. Approval of Bills: 

 
Motion: A motion was made by Harry Brungard and seconded by Nancy Petrosky to approve the following Bills as 

listed on the Agenda: 

 

General Fund Month End Checks 507,751.02 

General Fund Manual Checks 644,020.65 

General Fund Prior Month Voided Checks  

General Fund PLGIT Electronic Payments (45.27) 

General Fund Muncy Electronic Payments 63,870.69 



General Fund FNB Electronic Payments 667.64 

General Fund Muncy Dawg Pound Checks 108.00 

Activity Fund Checks 2,763.97 

Athletic Fund Checks 18,958.07 

Food Service Fund Checks 4,706.68 

Food Service Fund Muncy Electronic Payments 73,134.25 

Payroll PLGIT Electronic Payments 504,535.44 

Payroll Fund Checks 35,175.80 

Payroll Fund Net Pay -9.103.21; 9.24.21    892,333.21 

Total 3,347,980.15 
 

The vote was a unanimous Yes. Motion carried. 

 
C. Presentations 

 
1. Communications: 

 
a. A notice was received that another round of ESSERS funds is coming. 

b. A voicemail message was received that was very inappropriate and Dr. Ulmer wanted to say 

publicly that this type of behavior will not be tolerated and that the police have been involved with 

the most recent voicemail. 

 
2. President’s Report: 

 
a. Confirmed vulgarity of the voicemail message Dr. Ulmer referred to. 

 
3. Intermediate Unit Report: 

 
a. Recent IU Board meeting agenda. (Attachment) 

b. IU’s will be celebrating 50 years of service this year. 

 
4. Student Representative Report: 

 
a. The stuff the bus goal was met! 

b. Football team did very well at the game last Friday and students are very proud of the team and 

looking forward to the next game at Clarion on Saturday, November 27, 2021. 

 
5. Superintendent’s Report: 

a. Student Athlete recognition - Dr. Ulmer 

Peyton Dincher, Cailyn Schall and Raidan Francis 
Retiring Board Members, Harry Brungard and Craig Allen, were also recognized . 

b. ESSER Project Update - Hunt Engineering and SitelogIQ (Attachment) 

c. 2020-2021 Year End Audit Report - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP (Attachment) 

d. Updated Board Policies: (Attachments) 
 

Policy 125 - Adult Education 

Policy 137.1 - Extracurricular Participation by Home Education Students 

Policy 118 - Independent Study 

(Attachments) 



D. Courtesy of the Floor on Agenda Items: 

 

Ann Marie Pfirman-Watson Twp. – commented on the Health and Safety Plan. 
 

E. Personnel Items: 

 

1. Personnel Items 

 

Motion: A motion was made by Harry Brungard and seconded by Mary Thomas to approve the following Personnel 

items as listed on the agenda: 

 

a. appointment of Beth Wrench as Lunch Monitor for Jersey Shore Area Elementary, $9.42 per 

hour, effective November 30, 2021. 

 

b. positions and stipends for the High School musical, Roald Dahl's Willy Wonka, as per contract: 

 
Musical Director Heather Haigh $2145.00 

Musical Drama Director Michele Long $2145.00 

Lighting Tim Greene $625.00 

Stage Managers (2 Stipends Jeff Klugh $625.00 
 Julie Wagner $312.50 
 Mallory Myers $312.50 

Public Relations Charlotte Bierly $208.33 
 Nicola Paulhamus $208.33 
 Janna Riggle $208.33 

Production Set Design/Completion Sarah Keim $1000.00 
Sound Scott Alexander $625.00 

 

c. approval of the following positions and stipends for the High School Drama Production, General 

Gorgeous: 

 
Drama Director Michele Long $1500 

Lighting Michele Long $ 400 

Stage Manager Heather Haigh $ 400 

Stage Manager Julie Wagner $ 400 

Public Relations Charlotte Bierly $ 400 

Sound Scott Alexander $ 400 
Production Set and Design Michele Long $ 563 

 

d. the retention of the following fall sport head coaches and sports as listed for the 2022-2023 school 

year: 

 

Cross Country (Boys and Girls) Tyler Henry 

Girls Tennis Ann-Marie Dincher 

Golf (Boys and Girls) Michael Schall 

 

e. FMLA from November 17, 2021 thru January 5, 2022 (approximately), for employee 2021-22- 

06. 

 

f. a temporary hourly rate of $17.10 to Amber Eck for acting as Middle School Head Cook 

beginning Wednesday, November 17, 2021 until transferred back to Middle School Assistant Head 

Cook. 

 

g. FMLA from November 18, 2021 thru December 2, 2021 (approximately), for employee 2021-22- 

05. 



h. a temporary hourly rate of $16.36 to Michelle Matter for acting as Salladasburg Elementary Head 

Cook beginning Thursday, November 18, 2021 until transferred back to Salladasburg Part Time 

Food Service. 

 

i. FMLA from October 26, 2021 thru January 3, 2022 (approximately), for employee 2021-22-07. 

 

j. Frank Kos as a bus driver for Susquehanna Transit. 

 

k. Heather Lomax and Karen Walters as aides for Susquehanna Transit. 

 

The vote was a unanimous Yes. Motion carried. 

 

F. Curriculum and Instruction: None 

 
G. Building and Grounds: None 

 
H. Finance: 

 
1. Finance Items 

 
Motion: A motion was made by Harry Brungard and seconded by Mary Thomas to approve the following Finance 

items as listed on the agenda: 

 

a. that the administration conduct business and pay appropriate district invoices with confirmation at 

the next available regular Board meeting. 

 

b. accepting the Financial Statements and Supplementary Information for the year ended June 30, 

2021 as presented by Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, our independent auditors. 

 

c. the IU 13 MTSS Grant Agreement, effective July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.  

 The vote was a unanimous Yes.  Motion carried. 

I. Miscellaneous 

 

1. Miscellaneous Items: 

 

Motion: A motion was made by Harry Brungard and seconded by Angela Grant to approve the following 

Miscellaneous items as listed on the agenda: 

 
a. an ESS Northeast, LLC (Source 4 Teachers) agreement from June 30, 2022 to June 30, 

2025. (Attachment) 

 
b. the License Contract for the 2021-2022 Senior High School musical, Roald Dahl's Willy 

Wonka. (Attachment) 

 

c. Support staff On Boarding Reimbursement (Attachment) 

d. the following policies at first read: (Attachments) 

Policy 338 - Sabbatical Leave 

Policy 338.1 - Compensated Professional Leave 

Policy 339 - Uncompensated Leave 



Policy 341 - Benefits for Part-Time Employees 

Policy 707 - Community Use of School Facilities 

e. the following policies at second read: (Attachments) 

Policy 709 - Building Security 

Policy 805.1 - Relations with Law Enforcement Agencies 
Policy 218.3 - Discipline of Student Conviction/Adjudication of Sexual Assault 

Policy 351 - Drug and Substance Abuse 

 

f. an Educational Services Agreement between Pyramid HealthCare, Inc and JSASD, effective 

October 26, 2021 through July 31, 2022. (Attachment) 

 

g. the administration to place the following items for sale on Municibid.com, if no bids are received 

items will be disposed of: 

 

2000 Ford Focus 1AFAFP33P0YW195788 

1997 Mercury Mountaineer 4M2DU55P3VUJ21138 

Clark propane forklift 

Bridgeport milling machine 

Enco Lathe 

 

h. the transportation contract between Jersey Shore Area School District and County of Clinton, 

January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2024. (Attachment) 

 

i. an MOU between Clinton County Children and Youth Agency and Jersey Shore Area School 

District for transportation of foster care youth. (Attachment) 

 

j. the transportation plan for Clinton County Children and Youth Agency and Jersey Shore Area 

School District. (Attachment) 

 

k. an MOU between BLaST IU 17 and Jersey Shore Area School District for a licensed Social 

Worker for up to 20 hours a week, November 23, 2021 to June 30, 2024. This will be paid for using 

ESSER funds. (Attachment) 

 

l. to amend the District's Health and Safety Plan, effective November 10, 2021, to indicate masks 

are recommended but not required. The Board will re-evaluate after the current litigation is 

resolved. 

 

The vote was a unanimous Yes. Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Allen announced there was an executive session held at 6:00 p.m. prior to the board meeting, for legal and personnel 

issues. 

 

J. Old Business: 

a. Discussion was held regarding the Johnson House. 

K. Courtesy of the Floor on Items not on the Agenda: 

Ann Marie Pfirman-Watson Twp. – thanked Mr. Craig Allen for his service on the board and 

commented on the district’s lifting of the mask mandate and the JSASD legal counsel. 

Kayla Calhoun-Avis Boro. – commented on the 2020-2021 budget. 

Brandi Carothers-Porter Twp. – commented on masking and vaccines. 



L. Executive Session: An executive session was held beginning at 8:20 p.m. for personnel matters after which no 

business was conducted. 

 

The meeting resumed at 9:01 p.m.. 

 

M. Adjournment: The November 22, 2021 Regular Board Meeting was adjourned at 9:02 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 
Benjamin J. Enders 

Board Secretary 
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Jersey Shore Area School District

Monthly Interfund Cash Transfers

October, 2021

Date Amount Reason

General Fund Transfers:

10/8/21 666,738.28$        Gross Payroll

10/8/21 49,505.35            FICA Employer Share

10/22/21 656,760.01          Gross Payroll

10/22/21 48,704.18            FICA Employer Share

Total: 1,421,707.82$     

Food Service Fund Transfers:

10/8/21 19,995.91$          Gross Payroll

10/8/21 1,509.79              FICA Employer Share

10/22/21 18,873.54            Gross Payroll

10/22/21 1,423.92              FICA Employer Share

Total: 41,803.16$          

Accounts Payable Fund Transfers:

10/25/21 0.04$                   To General Fund - Due to/Due from

Total: 0.04$                   
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IU Division Board Report Summary
November 17, 2021

Student Services Report

The South Academy for Integrated Studies is a center-based Emotional Support
program serving K-12 students. Student enrollment has been steadily increasing over
the last three months, with the secondary program nearing full capacity. There are
currently 18 students enrolled and three referrals. In response to the increase in
referrals, IU 17 has surveyed member districts to determine if an additional
secondary classroom is needed.

Educational Planning Report

Student Competitions
The IU is set to host a number of student competitions this year. Winners at the
regional level will move on to compete at the statewide competitions. Competitions
include:

● February 9 - Governor’s STEM Competition (Gr. 9-12)
● March 1-8 -  K’NEX STEM Design Competition (virtual) (Gr. 4-8)
● May 4 - Media and Design Competition (Gr. 6-12).

More information, including the registration survey, can be found HERE.

Accelerated Learning Update
● 90% of our school districts have engaged with some aspect of our Accelerated

Learning System. To stay current on our IU’s deliverables in supporting districts,
visit our site: https://www.iu17.org/professional-learning/accelerated-learning/ .

● IU 17 is recognized at the state level as one of only five Intermediate Units
selected by the PA Department of Education to showcase our Accelerated
Learning plan at the statewide Standards Aligned System (SAS) Institute in
Hershey in December.

Executive Director Report

Legislative Update
● School Masking Order – November 10, the Commonwealth Court of

Pennsylvania issued a ruling that voided the Face Covering Order for schools.
Shortly after the ruling was announced, the state filed an appeal, which triggered
a stay and kept the order in effect. To counter that, the plaintiffs filed an appeal to
remove the stay while the appeal is being considered. On November 16, the
Commonwealth Court ruled that the stay is to be lifted on December 4.  Next
steps to be determined as there a few options.

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1UEoF__Ts-JPHAMR-ZBU4F_qk35l3n5y2/view?usp=sharing
https://www.iu17.org/professional-learning/accelerated-learning/
https://www.pacourts.us/assets/opinions/Commonwealth/out/294MD21_11-10-21.pdf?cb=1
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The following information is provided from SitelogIQ to recap the history of the Guaranteed Energy Saving Act 
(GESA) project and process, as well as to map the path forward. 

 
Guaranteed Energy Savings Act Project Scopes of Work:  Generally, any building system that either conserves 

utility use (such as doors, windows, insulation, roofing) or can reduce utility use (mechanical, plumbing, 

electrical systems) can be part of a Guaranteed Energy Savings Act (GESA) Project.  As a result, many school 

districts in Pennsylvania use this procurement method to provide major maintenance repairs, system 

upgrades, and limited renovations.  In 2016, Act 163 provided the latest amendment to procurement code in 

Pennsylvania and refined what project scopes are allowable in a GESA project.  Act 163 added the caveat of 

improvement of indoor air quality.  Any work required to allow for such upgrades to conserve or reduce utility 

use, or to improve indoor air quality (such as removal and replacement of ceilings, etc.) is also considered part 

of the allowable GESA Project scope.  Finally, the procurement code provides that 15% of the contract value 

can be non-utility conserving/reducing scope, such as finishes upgrades…if the economics of construction 

make it favorable for the using agency to complete those upgrades during the GESA project.  Currently, there 

are no items in the Project that fall under this 15% rule.  All scopes are fully under the itemized lists for 

allowable scopes in a PA GESA Project. 

Use of ESSER Funds for the GESA Project:  This project has been procured by the District in a manner 

consistent with the requirements for expenditure of the federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency 

Relief (ESSER) funds through a competitive Request for Proposal process.  The work prescribed this phase of 

improvements at JSASD include upgrades to the mechanical systems and indoor air quality.  These are ESSER 

fund-eligible scopes of work.  The District has indicated that approximately $2,000,000 of funds may be used 

for this portion of the work.  SitelogIQ will provide the work in a manner that abides by the required prevailing 

wages for ESSER-funded work (Federal Davis-Bacon Act Wage Rates) and other contractual requirements. 

Scopes of Work Proposed:  The scopes of work for this portion of the improvements at JSASD include 

mechanical equipment replacement and upgrades to improve energy efficiency and comfort: 

High School: 

1. Replacement of three (3) existing Kewanne Boiler Corp. boilers with new boilers and associated controls.  
2. Replacement of existing air-handling units (AHU’s) AHU-1 and AHU-2 serving the gymnasium with new 

package rooftop units and associated controls. 

3. Replacement of existing AHU-4 serving the stage and two AHU-5 serving Large Group Instruction Room 

(auditorium seating) with new package rooftop units and associated controls. AHU-6 serving the 

Auditorium stage will also be replaced with package rooftop equipment and associated controls. 

4. Replacement of existing two package rooftop units serving the cafeteria with new package rooftop units 

and associated controls. 

5. Replacement of existing package rooftop unit serving the lobby with new package rooftop units and 

associated controls. 

6. Replace ten existing unit ventilators serving selected classrooms and associated controls. 

7. Replacement of existing roof mounted exhaust fans with new fans and associated controls. 

 

 



Middle School: 

1. Replacement of two (2) Cleaver Brooks boilers with new boilers and associated controls. 

Jersey Shore Area School District Proposed GESA Project Information 

November 19, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Target Budgets:  The Hunt Study was developed with scopes and costs prior to the current pandemic.  The 

study was thoughtful and considered appropriate costs for a conceptual scope where no design or significant 

survey of the existing conditions was completed, as is appropriate for a study of this nature.  Since the 

reporting of these costs, inflation and supply chain issues, material shortages, and labor shortages have driven 

market prices higher.  The Hunt Study contemplates approximately just under $2M in costs for the design and 

the construction.  While the team is working to achieve that target expenditure, it is likely that the costs will 

be above the Hunt Study figures provided prior to the pandemic and approaching two years old.  The team will 

continue to work to reduce costs through the current pricing process. 

Design, Pricing, and Approval Processes:  Hunt has been contracted directly by the District to provide 

engineering services and selection of the equipment.  This process is underway with equipment selections 

complete. SitelogIQ is pricing the equipment at this time to allow the District to lock in on pricing in December 

prior to increases in January 2022.  The first Board consideration/action will be to approve the pre-purchase of 

the equipment by SitelogIQ in December 2021.  This will allow for equipment to be ordered for installation in 

the summer of 2022.  In the first quarter of 2022, the second Board consideration/action will occur for the 

installation costs of the work.  This approach allows for a fast-tracking of the purchase of the equipment to 

avoid cost increases and further inflation while allowing more time to order, fabricate, and deliver the 

equipment for installation in the summer of 2022. 

Construction Schedule (Narrative):  Limited work in the spring (April through early June) would occur to 

prepare for significant work during the summer.  This work would include layout for the installation and any 

preparatory work available.  This work will occur during nights, weekends, and when school is not in session.  

During the summer (following recess), we will work from mid-June to mid-August to complete all work 

outlined in the scopes above.  Coordination with the District Maintenance Staff will occur to allow for floor 

waxing/cleaning and preparation for the return of teachers in about the third week of August.  Boiler start-up 

will be scheduled for September 2022 when a proper heating load can be placed on the new system.  Any 

additional work required after school begins in the 2022-23 school year will be after school hours unless it can 

occur in spaces/times acceptable to the administration where the educational mission is not impacted. 

Next Steps:  The Administration and Board will determine a date for Board consideration/approval for the pre-

purchasing of the equipment.  A public notice of that meeting must be published ten (10) calendar days prior 

to the meeting date.  At that meeting, the Board may elect to proceed with the project at its discretion.  

Meanwhile, SitelogIQ will complete pricing for the pre-purchasing of equipment, work on an estimate of the 

costs for installation (to be brought as an amendment to the agreement by March 2022), and Hunt will 

continue design of installation details. 
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of
Jersey Shore Area School District

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of governmental activities, the business-type 
activity, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jersey Shore Area School District
(the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control over financial reporting relevant to the District's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activity,  each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Jersey Shore Area School District as of June 30, 2021, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the
General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

1
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the District adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective July 1, 2020. Our opinions are not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required
supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated DATE OF REPORT
on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Williamsport, Pennsylvania
DATE OF REPORT

2
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Jersey Shore Area School District's (the District) financial 
performance provides an overall review of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District's financial performance as a whole; 
readers should also review the notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance 
their understanding of the District's financial performance.

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model adopted by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements -
and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. 

Using the Single Audit Report

The Single Audit consists of the management's discussion and analysis, the government-wide perspective 
financial statements, the fund perspective financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, and the 
Single Audit reports and schedules. These statements are organized so that the reader can understand the 
District as an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at 
specific financial activities.

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements - the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities. These provide both long-term and short-term information about the District's overall 
financial status. 

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District's 
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. The governmental funds statements illustrate 
how general District services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 
Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities that the District 
operates like a business. For our District, this is the Food Service Fund. Fiduciary fund statements provide 
information about financial relationships where the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of 
others, to whom the resources in question belong. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements 
and provide more detailed data. 
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Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of the Financial Section are arranged and relate to one another:

Figure A-1
Required Components of

Jersey Shore Area School District's
Financial Report
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Discussion and 
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Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including the portion of 
the District they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section 
of management discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Figure A-2
Major Features of Jersey Shore Area School District's

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements

Government-
Wide 

Statements

Governmental 
Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Scope Entire District 
(except 
fiduciary funds)

The activities of the 
District that are not 
proprietary or 
fiduciary, such as 
education, 
administration and 
community services

Activities the District 
operates similar to 
private business - Food 
Services

Instances in which 
the District is the 
trustee or agent to 
someone else's 
resources – private 
purpose trust funds

Required financial 
statements

Statement of 
net position
Statement of 
activities

Balance Sheet
Statement of 
revenues,
expenditures, and 
changes in fund 
balance

Statement of net position
Statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes 
in net position
Statement of cash flows

Statement of fiduciary 
net position
Statement of 
changes in fiduciary 
net position

Accounting basis 
and 
measurement 
focus

Accrual 
accounting and 
economic 
resources 
focus

Modified accrual 
accounting and 
current financial 
resources focus

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources 
focus

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus

Type of 
asset/liability 
information

All assets and 
liabilities, 
deferred 
outflows and 
deferred 
inflows, both 
financial and 
capital, and 
short-term and 
long-term

Only assets 
expected to be 
used up and 
liabilities that come 
due during the year 
or soon thereafter, 
as well as certain
deferred outflows 
and deferred 
inflows of 
resources; no 
capital assets 
included

All assets and liabilities, 
deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows, both 
financial and capital, and 
short-term and long-term

All assets and 
liabilities, both short-
term and long-term

Type of inflow-
outflow 
information

All revenues 
and expenses 
during year, 
regardless of 
when cash is 
received or 
paid

Revenues for which 
cash is received 
during or soon after 
the end of the year; 
expenditures when 
goods or services 
have been received 
and payment is due 
during the year or 
soon thereafter

All revenues and 
expenses during year, 
regardless of when cash 
is received or paid

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid
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Overview of Financial Statements

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. All of the current year's 
revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received 
or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and how it has changed. Net position, 
the difference between the District's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources is one way to measure the District's financial health or position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position is an indication of whether its financial health is 
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

To assess the overall health of the District, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors, such as 
changes in the District's property tax base and the performance of the students.

The government-wide financial statements of the District are divided into two categories:

 Governmental activities - All of the District's basic services are included here, such as instruction, 
administration and community services. Property taxes and state and federal subsidies and grants 
finance most of these activities.

 Business-type activities - The District operates a food service operation and charges fees to staff, 
students and visitors to help it cover the costs of the food service operation.
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Fund Financial Statements

The District's fund financial statements, which begin on page 18, provide detailed information about the most 
significant funds - not the District as a whole. Some funds are required by state law and by bond 
requirements.

Governmental funds - Most of the District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus 
on the determination of financial position and change in financial position, not on income determination. 
They are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash 
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements 
provide a detailed short-term view of the District's operations and the services it provides. 

Governmental fund information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. The relationship 
(or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Proprietary funds - These funds are used to account for District activities that are similar to business 
operations in the private sector; or where the reporting is on determining net income, financial position, 
changes in financial position, and a significant portion of funding through user charges. When the District 
charges customers for services it provides - whether to outside customers or to other units in the District -
these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. The Food Service Fund is the District's 
proprietary fund and is the same as the business-type activity we report in the government-wide 
statements, but provides more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. 

Fiduciary funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain scholarship funds held as private 
purpose trust funds. Such activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position on 
page 26. We exclude these activities from the District's other financial statement because the District 
cannot use these assets to finance its operations.
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Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

The District's total net position (deficit) was $(35,624,043) at June 30, 2021.

Table A-1
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total

Change2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Current and other assets $ 18,151,365 $ 15,771,221 $ (157,127) $ (74,642) $ 17,994,238 $ 15,696,579 $ 2,297,659

Capital assets 45,215,342 46,518,351 16,460 27,982 45,231,802 46,546,333 (1,314,531)

Deferred outflows of 
resources 10,872,102 8,751,216 185,710 173,136 11,057,812 8,924,352 2,133,460

Total assets and 
deferred outflow 
of resources 74,238,809 71,040,788 45,043 126,476 74,283,852 71,167,264 3,116,588

Current liabilities 8,066,198 7,856,003 73,043 102,349 8,139,241 7,958,352 180,889

Noncurrent liabilities 93,503,133 96,563,844 1,255,547 1,199,128 94,758,680 97,762,972 (3,004,292)

Deferred inflows of 
resources 6,938,449 4,549,443 71,525 113,634 7,009,974 4,663,077 2,346,897

Total liabilities and 
deferred inflow 
of resources 108,507,780 108,969,290 1,400,115 1,415,111 109,907,895 110,384,401 (476,506)

Net position:
Net investment in 

capital assets 20,117,811 18,706,535 16,460 27,982 20,134,271 18,734,517 1,399,754

Unrestricted (54,386,782) (56,635,037) (1,371,532) (1,316,617) (55,758,314) (57,951,654) 2,193,340

Total net position $ (34,268,971) $ (37,928,502) $ (1,355,072) $ (1,288,635) $ (35,624,043) $ (39,217,137) $ 3,593,094

Most of the District's net position is invested in capital assets (buildings, land and equipment). The remaining 
unrestricted net position (deficit) is composed of committed and unassigned amounts, net of the District's net 
pension liability pursuant to GASB Statement No. 68 and other postemployment benefits liability pursuant to 
GASB Statement No. 75. The committed balances are amounts set-aside to fund future expenditures or 
capital projects as planned by the District.
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The results of this year's operations as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities on page 17. All 
expenses are reported in the first column. Specific charges, grants, revenues and subsidies that directly relate 
to specific expense categories are represented to determine the final amount of the District's activities that are 
supported by other general revenues. The two largest general revenues are the Basic Education Subsidy 
provided by the State of Pennsylvania, and the local taxes assessed to community taxpayers.

Table A-2 takes the information from that Statement, rearranges it slightly, so you can see our total revenues 
and expenses of both the Governmental Activities and the Business-type Activity of the District. 

Table A-2
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activity Total

Change2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 1,323,082 $ 80,443 $ 72,712 $ 320,373 $ 1,395,794 $ 400,816 $ 994,978

Operating grants and 
contributions 12,860,027 11,346,846 1,023,157 715,104 13,883,184 12,061,950 1,821,234

General revenues:

Property taxes 13,654,273 13,582,039 - - 13,654,273 13,582,039 72,234

Other taxes 4,973,798 4,235,966 - - 4,973,798 4,235,966 737,832

Grants, subsidies and 
contributions, 
unrestricted 13,269,479 13,269,486 - - 13,269,479 13,269,486 (7)

Other 332,508 310,972 701 4,024 333,209 314,996 18,213

Total revenues 46,413,167 42,825,752 1,096,570 1,039,501 47,509,737 43,865,253 3,644,484

Expenses:

Instruction 28,405,146 26,978,377 - - 28,405,146 26,978,377 1,426,769

Instructional student 
support 4,753,397 4,046,895 - - 4,753,397 4,046,895 706,502

Administrative and 
financial support 2,804,582 3,025,738 - - 2,804,582 3,025,738 (221,156)

Operation and 
maintenance of plant 4,150,938 4,075,424 - - 4,150,938 4,075,424 75,514

Pupil transportation 1,556,193 1,580,424 - - 1,556,193 1,580,424 (24,231)

Student activities 811,096 737,292 - - 811,096 737,292 73,804

Refund of prior year 
revenues - 548 - - - 548 (548)

Interest on long-term 
debt 470,716 587,628 - - 470,716 587,628 (116,912)

Food services - - 1,163,007 1,172,377 1,163,007 1,172,377 (9,370)

Total expenses 42,952,068 41,032,326 1,163,007 1,172,377 44,115,075 42,204,703 1,910,372

Increase (decrease) 
in net position $ 3,461,099 $ 1,793,426 $ (66,437) $ (132,876) $ 3,394,662 $ 1,660,550 $ 1,734,112
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Table A-3 shows the District's eight largest functions - instructional programs, instructional student support, 
administrative, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation, student activities, community 
services, interest on long term debt as well as each program's net cost (total cost less revenues generated 
by the activities). This table also shows the net costs offset by the other unrestricted grants, subsides and 
contributions to show the remaining financial needs supported by local taxes and other miscellaneous 
revenues.

Table A-3

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
Changes in
Net Cost of

2021 2020 2021 2020 Services

Functions/Programs:

Instruction $ 28,405,146 $ 26,978,377 $ 18,777,678 $ 18,876,237 $ (98,559)

Instructional student support 4,753,397 4,046,895 4,203,496 3,578,104 625,392
Administrative and financial 

support 2,804,582 3,025,738 2,518,329 2,728,747 (210,418)
Operation and maintenance 

of plant 4,150,938 4,075,424 3,798,812 3,750,561 48,251

Pupil transportation 1,556,193 1,580,424 184,842 196,094 (11,252)

Student activities 811,096 737,292 (561,434) 611,237 (1,172,671)

Refund of prior year revenues - 548 - 548 (548)

Interest on long-term debt 470,716 587,628 (152,764) (136,491) (16,273)

Total governmental 
activities $ 42,952,068 $ 41,032,326 28,768,959 29,605,037 (836,078)

Less unrestricted grants, 
subsidies 13,269,479 13,269,486 7

Total needs from local 
taxes and other 
revenues $ 15,499,480 $ 16,335,551 $ (836,071)
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Table A-4 reflects the activities of the Food Service program, the only Business-type activity of the District.

Table A-4
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Business-Type Activity

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
Changes in 
Net Cost of

2021 2021 2020 2021 2020 Services

Functions/Programs:

Food services $ 1,163,007 $ 1,172,377 $ 67,138 $ 136,900 $ (69,762)

Less investment earnings (701) (4,024) 3,323

Total business-type 
activity $ 66,437 $ 132,876 $ (66,439)

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Deficit for the proprietary fund will further 
detail the actual results of operations. This program should be self-supporting. Net cost of services decreased
$66,439.

The District Funds

At June 30, 2021, the District's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $12,059,160 which 
is an increase of $2,040,797. This includes a change in fund balance of $1,842,365 from current activities and 
an increase of $198,432 from the implementation of GASB Statement No. 84. The primary reason for this 
increase is expenditures being lower and revenue being better than expected.

The General Fund had a beginning fund balance of $9,345,847 and an ending fund balance of $9,789,958 at 
June 30, 2021. Revenues and other financing sources increased from $42,776,505 to $45,137,317. 
Expenditures and other financing uses increased from $40,669,577 to $44,693,206. 
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Table A-5 shows a comparison of General Fund expenditures from 2019-20 to 2020-21. Most functions 
increased as a result of the settling of the contract with the Jersey Shore Area Education Association with 
retroactivity salary payments being paid to their proper function.

Table A-5
General Fund Expenditure

Comparison

Function

Expenditures

Variance
Percent

2021 2020 Change

1100 Regular Education $ 20,285,178 $ 18,063,647 $ 2,221,531 12.30 %
1200 Special Education 6,219,271 6,013,339 205,932 3.42 %
1300 Vocational Education 1,107,358 1,035,844 71,514 6.90 %
1400 Other Instructional 

Programs 56,388 104,740 (48,352) (46.16) %
1500 Nonpublic School 

Programs 11,446 6,654 4,792 72.02 %
1800 Pre-Kindergarten 

Programs 325,296 320,688 4,608 1.44 %
2100 Support Services Pupil 1,435,331 1,358,558 76,773 5.65 %
2200 Support Services 

Instructional Staff 1,811,412 1,106,142 705,270 63.76 %
2300 Support Services 

Administration 2,527,130 2,483,922 43,208 1.74 %
2400 Support Services Pupil 

Health 367,136 426,018 (58,882) (13.82) %
2500 Support Services Pupil 

Business 820,760 836,503 (15,743) (1.88) %
2600 Operation and 

Maintenance 3,697,619 3,116,825 580,794 18.63 %
2700 Student Transportation 

Services 1,881,163 1,849,903 31,260 1.69 %
2800 Support Services Pupil 

Central 22,770 20,149 2,621 13.01 %
3200 Student Activities 762,063 712,095 49,968 7.02 %
5100 Debt Service 3,037,885 3,199,040 (161,155) (5.04) %

$ 44,368,206 $ 40,654,067 $ 3,714,139

DRAFT 11/19/21



Jersey Shore Area School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(Unaudited)

13

The District's General Fund revenues were $45.1 million in 2020/21, which were up 5.5 percent from the 
previous year. General Fund revenues for the District come from three primary categories. Local sources 
approximately make up 44 percent of the total revenue, state sources make up 52 percent, and federal 
sources are 4 percent. Most of the local revenue comes from tax levies set by School Code, fees, tuition and 
donations.

Local revenue variance is primarily driven by an increase in Earned Income Tax which was a result of 
healthcare being the primary industry within the district. Federal revenue increases were caused by stimulus 
monies received by the district in 20/21.

Table A-6
General Fund Revenue Comparison

Category 2021 2020 Variance % Change

Local sources 6000 $ 19,751,663 $ 18,596,072 $ 1,155,591 6.21 %
State sources 7000 23,416,661 23,372,145 44,516 0.19
Federal sources 8000 1,938,675 780,447 1,158,228 148.41
Other Financing Sources 9000 30,318 27,841 2,477 8.90

Total $ 45,137,317 $ 42,776,505 $ 2,360,812

General Fund Budget

During the fiscal year, the Board of Directors may authorize revisions to the original budget to accommodate 
differences from the original budget to the actual expenditures of the District. All adjustments are again 
confirmed at the time the annual audit is accepted. A schedule showing the District's original and final 
budget amounts compared with amounts actually paid and received is provided on page 22. There were no 
budget revisions for 20/21.

The District applies for federal, state and local grants. These grants cannot always be anticipated in the 
budgeting process. Transfers between specific categories of expenditures/financing uses may occur during 
the year. 
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2021, the District invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings and 
furniture and equipment. At June 30, 2021, the investment in capital assets, net of depreciation, was 
$45,215,342, a decrease of $1,303,009. For details on the specific line-item changes, see Note 6 on 
page 37.

Table A-7
Governmental Activities

Capital Assets

2021 2020

Land $ 13,692,781 $ 13,692,781
Site improvements 3,488,033 3,488,033
Buildings 66,573,079 66,454,978
Furniture and equipment 15,053,047 14,250,943
Less accumulated depreciation (53,591,598) (51,368,384)

Capital assets, net $ 45,215,342 $ 46,518,351

Debt Administration

As of July 1, 2020, the District had total outstanding bond and note principal of $27,195,000. The District 
made principal payments of $10,544,000 during the year and borrowed $8,069,000. The District ended 
the year with outstanding bond and note principal of $24,720,000 as of June 30, 2021.

Table A-8
Outstanding Debt

General Obligation Bonds and Notes 2021 2020

Series of 2012 GOB $ - $ 155,000
Series of 2015 GOB - 6,570,000
Series A of 2015 GOB - 105,000
Series AA of 2015 GON 2,101,000 3,931,000
Series AAA of 2015 GON - 206,000
Series AAAA of 2015 GON - 1,668,000
Series of 2019 GOB 4,575,000 4,585,000
Series of 2020 GOB 9,975,000 9,975,000
Series of 2021 GOB 8,069,000 -

$ 24,720,000 $ 27,195,000
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Other obligations include capital leases, accrued vacation pay and sick leave for specific employees of 
the District, as well as other post-employment and pension obligations. More detailed information about 
our long-term liabilities is included in Notes 7 through 13 to the financial statements.

The District's general obligation bond rating is S&P A+/Stable (Underlying). Additional security is also 
provided for the bonds by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act 150 School District Intercept Program. 
The Act provides for undistributed state aid to be diverted to bond holders in the event of default. 

Contacting the District Financial Management

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, students, investors and creditors 
with a general overview of the District's finances and to show the Board's accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial information, please 
contact Benjamin J. Enders, Business Manager/Board Secretary at Jersey Shore Area School District, 
175 A & P Drive, Jersey Shore, PA 17740, (570) 398-5050.
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Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activity Total

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13,155,377$    238,048$         13,393,425$    

Other receivables 75,971             -                       75,971             

Taxes receivable, net 1,066,276        -                       1,066,276        

Internal balances 551,248           (551,248)          -                       

Due from other governments 2,395,410        138,501           2,533,911        

Inventories 26,205             17,572             43,777             

Prepaid expenses 58,084             -                       58,084             

Total current assets 17,328,571      (157,127)          17,171,444      

Capital Assets 45,215,342      16,460             45,231,802      

Assets Held for Capital Projects 822,795           -                       822,795           

Total assets 63,366,708      (140,667)          63,226,041      

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension 8,922,903        185,710           9,108,613        

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) 1,914,798        -                       1,914,798        

Unamortized refunding charges 34,401             -                       34,401             

Total deferred outflows of resources 10,872,102      185,710           11,057,812      

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 74,238,810$    45,043$           74,283,853$    

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Liabilities
Current liabilities: .

Current portion of long-term debt 2,617,000$      -$                     2,617,000$      

Current portion of capital leases payable 145,323           -                       145,323           

Accounts payable 842,095           29,158             871,253           

Accrued salaries and benefits 4,079,841        1,771               4,081,612        

Payroll deductions and withholdings 181,315           -                       181,315           

Accrued interest 98,868             -                       98,868             

Unearned revenue 101,756           42,114             143,870           

Total current liabilities 8,066,198        73,043             8,139,241        

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt 22,116,550      -                       22,116,550      

Capital leases payable 218,658           -                       218,658           

Compensated absences 751,754           1,280               753,034           

Other postemployment benefits 13,371,523      -                       13,371,523      

Net pension liability 57,044,733      1,254,267        58,299,000      

Total noncurrent liabilities 93,503,218      1,255,547        94,758,765      

Total liabilities 101,569,416    1,328,590        102,898,006    

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension 4,395,357        71,525             4,466,882        

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) 2,543,092        -                       2,543,092        

Total deferred outflows of resources 6,938,449        71,525             7,009,974        

Net Position (Deficit)
Net investment in capital assets 20,117,811      16,460             20,134,271      

Unrestricted (54,386,866)     (1,371,532)       (55,758,398)     

Total net position (deficit) (34,269,055)     (1,355,072)       (35,624,127)     

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
and net position (deficit) 74,238,810$    45,043$           74,283,853$    

Jersey Shore Area School District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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Capital Other

General Projects Non-major Totals

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 11,708,970$     822,795$         1,446,407$      13,978,172$     

Due from other funds 698,775           -                       -                       698,775           

Other receivables 75,971             -                       -                       75,971             

Taxes receivable, net 1,066,276        -                       -                       1,066,276        

Due from other governments 2,395,410        -                       -                       2,395,410        

Inventories 26,205             -                       -                       26,205             

Prepaid expenses 58,083             -                       -                       58,083             

Total assets 16,029,690$     822,795$         1,446,407$      18,298,892$     

Liabilities

Accounts payable 842,095$         -$                     -$                     842,095$         

Due to other funds 147,526           -                       -                       147,526           

Accrued salaries and benefits 4,079,841        -                       -                       4,079,841        

Unearned revenue 101,756           -                       -                       101,756           

Payroll deductions and withholdings 181,315           -                       -                       181,315           

 Total liabilities 5,352,533        -                       -                       5,352,533        

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unearned revenue, taxes 887,199           -                       -                       887,199           

Fund Balances

Nonspendable 84,288             -                       -                       84,288             

Restricted -                       -                       1,446,407        1,446,407        

Committed 4,106,899        822,795           -                       4,929,694        

Unassigned 5,598,771        -                       -                       5,598,771        

Total fund balances 9,789,958        822,795           1,446,407        12,059,160      

Total liabilities and fund balances 16,029,690$     822,795$         1,446,407$      18,298,892$     

Jersey Shore Area School District
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2021

Major Funds

See notes to financial statements
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Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 12,059,160$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities
in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are
not reported as assets in governmental funds. The 

cost of assets is $98,806,940 and the accumulated 
depreciation is $53,591,598. 45,215,342       

Property taxes receivable will be collected this year,
but are not available soon enough to pay for the 
current period's expenditures, and therefore are 
deferred in the funds. 887,199            

Deferred resources, outflows and inflows, are not
reported in governmental funds

Deferred outflow of resources, pension 8,922,903         

Deferred outflow of resources, OPEB 1,914,798         

Deferred outflow of resources, Unamortized refunding charges 34,401              

Deferred inflow of resources, pension (4,395,357)       

Deferred inflow of resources, OPEB (2,543,092)       

3,933,653         

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, 

are not due and payable in the current period, 
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. 
Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:

Bonds payable and notes (24,733,550)     

Capital leases payable (363,981)          

Accrued interest on bonds (98,868)            

Compensated absences (751,754)          

Other postemployment benefits (13,371,523)     

Net pension liability (57,044,733)     

(96,364,409)     

Total Net Position, Governmental Activities (34,269,055)$   

Jersey Shore Area School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements

19

DRAFT 11/19/21



Capital Other

General Projects Debt Service Non-Major Totals

Revenues

Local sources 19,751,663$     9,510$             -$                     1,302,253$       21,063,426$     

State sources 23,416,661       -                       -                       -                       23,416,661       

Federal sources 1,938,675         -                       -                       -                       1,938,675         

Total revenues 45,106,999       9,510               -                       1,302,253         46,418,762       

Expenditures

Instruction 28,004,937       -                       -                       -                       28,004,937       

Support services 12,563,321       -                       -                       -                       12,563,321       

Noninstructional services 762,063            -                       -                       54,278             816,341            

Facilities acquisition, construction, and 

   improvement services -                       184,231            -                       -                       184,231            

Debt service 3,037,885         -                       -                       -                       3,037,885         

Total expenditures 44,368,206       184,231            -                       54,278             44,606,715       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 738,793            (174,721)          -                       1,247,975         1,812,047         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Proceeds from issuance of refunding bonds -                       -                       8,069,000         -                       8,069,000         

Payments to refunding bond escrow agent -                       -                       (7,968,000)       -                       (7,968,000)       

Debt issuance costs -                       -                       (96,495)            -                       (96,495)            

Transfers in 4,505               325,000            -                       -                       329,505            

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 24,596             -                       -                       -                       24,596             

Insurance recoveries 1,217               -                       -                       -                       1,217               

Transfers out (325,000)          -                       (4,505)              -                       (329,505)          

Total other financing sources (uses), net (294,682)          325,000            -                       -                       30,318             

Net changes in fund balances 444,111            150,279            -                       1,247,975         1,842,365         

Fund Balances, Beginning

As previously reported 9,345,847         672,516            -                       -                       10,018,363       

Effect of adoption of GASB Statement No. 84 (Note 1) -                       -                       -                     198,432            198,432            

As restated 9,345,847         672,516            -                       198,432            10,216,795       

Fund Balances, Ending 9,789,958$       822,795$          -$                     1,446,407$       12,059,160$     

Jersey Shore Area School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Major Funds

See notes to financial statements
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1,842,365$       

Capital outlays   933,705           

Depreciation expense  (2,236,714)       

(1,303,009)       

(31,404)            

Issuance of long-term debt (8,069,000)       

Retirement of principal of long-term debt 10,544,000      

Bond premium 1,694               

Deferred outflow of resources, amortization of refunding charges (4,914)              

Issuance of capital leases (55,620)            

Retirement of principal of capital leases 293,211           

2,709,371         

55,523             

(572,829)          

(25,151)            

786,149            

3,461,015$       

Jersey Shore Area School District
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, 

Year Ending June 30, 2021

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the governmental funds because interest is 

recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of 

activities, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. The additional interest accrued in the 

statement of activities over the amount due is shown here.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of 

the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any 

effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums and discounts when debt is first issued, whereas these 

amounts are capitalized and amortized in the statement of activities.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the following 

transactions factor into this reconciliation:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total Net Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

Other postemployment benefits payable are considered long-term in nature, and are not reported as liabilities within the funds. Such 

liabilities are, however, reported within the statement of net position, and changes in these liabilities are reflected within the statement of 

activities. This amount represents the change in other postemployment benefits payable and associated deferred outflows of resources 

and deferred inflows of resources for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The net pension liability is considered long-term in nature, and is not reported as a liability within the funds. Such liability is, however, 

reported within the statement of net position, and changes in this liability is reflected within the statement of activities. This amount 

represents the change in the net pension liability and associated deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for 

the year ended June 30, 2021.

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statements of activities, the cost of those assets is 

allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlays in 

the period.

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the District's fiscal year ends, they are not considered as 

"available" revenues in the governmental funds. Deferred Inflows of resources - tax revenues increased by this amount this year.

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, compensated absences (vacations and sick days), are measured by the 

amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of 

financial resources used. This amount represents the difference between the amount earned versus the amount used.

See notes to financial statements
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Variance

With Final 

Budget

Favorable

Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Local sources 18,269,711$     19,751,663$     1,481,952$       

State sources 23,789,596 23,416,661       (372,935)          

Federal sources 1,038,410 1,938,675         900,265            

Total revenues 43,097,717       45,106,999       2,009,282         

Expenditures

Regular programs 18,036,601       20,285,178       (2,248,577)       

Special programs 5,844,638         6,219,271         (374,633)          

Vocational education programs 1,092,726         1,107,358         (14,632)            

Other instructional programs 146,225            56,388              89,837              

Nonpublic school programs -                       11,446              (11,446)            

Pre-Kindergarten 315,000            325,296            (10,296)            

Pupil personnel 1,467,280         1,435,331         31,949              

Instructional staff 1,411,486         1,811,412         (399,926)          

Administration 2,621,124         2,527,130         93,994              

Pupil health 436,174            367,136            69,038              

Business 912,903            820,760            92,143              

Operation and maintenance of plant services 3,551,991         3,697,619         (145,628)          

Student transportation services 1,888,357         1,881,163         7,194                

Support services, central 11,096              22,770              (11,674)            

Student activities 873,632            762,063            111,569            

Debt service 3,038,392         3,037,885         507                   

Total expenditures 41,647,625       44,368,206       (2,720,581)       

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources (Uses) 1,450,092         738,793            (711,299)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 5,000                24,596              19,596              

Insurance recoveries -                       1,217                1,217                

Transfers in -                       4,505                4,505                

Transfers out -                       (325,000)          (325,000)          

Budgetary reserve (2,528,630)       -                       2,528,630         

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,523,630)       (294,682)          2,228,948         

Net change in fund balances (1,073,538)       444,111            1,517,649         

Fund Balance, Beginning 6,986,043         9,345,847         2,359,804         

Fund Balance, Ending 5,912,505$       9,789,958$       3,877,453$       

Original and

Jersey Shore Area School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance -

Year Ended June 30, 2021
Budget and Actual - General Fund

See notes to financial statements
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Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 238,048$          

Due from other funds 147,526            

Due from other governments 138,501            

Inventories 17,572              

Total current assets 541,647            

Capital Assets 16,460              

Total assets 558,107            

Deferred Outflows of Resources, Pension 185,710            

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 743,817$          

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position (Deficit)

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 29,159$            

Due to other funds 698,774            

Accrued salaries and benefits 1,771                

Unearned revenue 42,114              

 Total current liabilities 771,818            

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 1,280                

Net pension liability 1,254,267         

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,255,547         

Total liabilities 2,027,365         

Deferred Inflows of Resources, Pension 71,525              

Net Position (Deficit)
Net investment in capital assets 16,460              

Unreserved (1,371,533)       

Total net position (deficit) (1,355,073)       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position (deficit) 743,817$          

Jersey Shore Area School District
Statement of Net Position (Deficit) - Proprietary Fund - Food Service
June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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Operating Revenues
Food service revenues 72,712$            

Operating Expenses
Other purchased service 481,613            

Salaries 340,111            

Employee benefits 253,077            

Supplies 77,552              

Purchased property service 14,911              

Depreciation 11,522              

Total operating expenses 1,178,786         

Operating loss (1,106,074)       

Nonoperating Revenues 
Federal sources 924,212            

State sources 114,724            

Earnings on investments 701                   

Total nonoperating revenues 1,039,637         

Net loss (66,437)            

Net Deficit, Beginning (1,288,636)       

Net Deficit, Ending (1,355,073)$     

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Jersey Shore Area School District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position (Deficit) - 
Proprietary Fund - Food Service

See notes to financial statements
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from students, teachers and others 69,355$            

Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (558,977)          

Cash paid to employees for service (627,634)          

Internal activity, payments from other funds 216,434            

Net cash used in operating activities (900,822)          

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Federal sources 804,915            

State sources 133,212            

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 938,127            

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest income 701                   

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 38,006              

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 200,042            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 238,048$          

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Transactions

USDA donated commodities 69,076$            

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Operating loss (1,106,074)$     

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss

to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 11,522              

Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred 
inflow of resources:

Inventory 4,866                

Deferred outflows of resources (12,574)            

Accounts payable 10,233              

Due from (to) other funds, net 216,434            

Accrued salaries and benefits (36,182)            

Compensated absences 255                   

Unearned revenue (3,357)              

Net pension liability 56,164              

Deferred inflows of resources (42,109)            

Net cash used in operating activities (900,822)$        

Jersey Shore Area School District
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund - Food Service
Year Ended June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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Private

Purpose

Trusts

Assets

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 160,909$          

Net Position

Net Position
Restricted 160,909$          

Jersey Shore Area School District
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Fund
June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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Private

Purpose

Trusts

Additions
Local sources 30,033$            

Deductions
Scholarships awarded 24,633              

Increase in net position 5,400                

Net Position, Beginning
As previously reported 249,248            

Effect of adoption of GASB Statement No. 84 (Note 1) (93,739)            

As restated 155,509            

Net Position, Ending 160,909$          

Jersey Shore Area School District
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2021

See notes to financial statements
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Jersey Shore Area School District (the District) have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as 
applicable to local governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standards-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
more significant accounting policies of the District are described below.

Nature of Operations

The District provides elementary and secondary education to the residents of the Borough of Jersey 
Shore, the surrounding Boroughs of Avis and Salladasburg, and the Townships of Anthony, Bastress, 
Brown, Crawford, Cummings, Limestone, McHenry, Mifflin, Nippenose, Piatt, Pine Creek, Porter and 
Watson, as located within the District's geographic bounds in Lycoming and Clinton Counties, 
Pennsylvania.

The District assesses the taxpayers of these municipalities based upon taxing powers at its disposal. 
The ability of the District's taxpayers to pay their assessments is dependent upon economic and other 
factors affecting the taxpayers.

Reporting Entity

The reporting entity has been defined in accordance with the criteria established in GASB
Statement 14, as amended. The specific criteria used in determining whether other organizations 
should be included in the District's financial reporting entity are financial accountability, fiscal 
dependency and legal separation.

As defined above, there are no other related organizations that should be included in the District's 
financial statements, nor is the District considered to be a component unit of any other government.

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the statement of 
activities. These financial statements report financial information for the District as a whole, excluding 
fiduciary activities, on a full accrual, economic-resource basis. Individual funds are not displayed, but 
the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and District general 
revenues from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to 
customers. The District's General, Capital Projects, Debt Service Funds and Student 
Activities/Scholarship are classified as governmental activities. The District's Food Service Fund is 
classified as a business-type activity.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function or program offset by program 
revenues directly connected with that function or program. A function is an assembly of similar 
activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the 
expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues 
include (1) charges for services to users of the District's services, (2) operating grants and 
contributions that finance annual operating activities and (3) capital grants and contributions that 
fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject 
to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and other revenue sources not 
properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.
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Basis of Presentation - Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which constitutes a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for within a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, fund balances, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Resources are allocated 
to, and accounted for, in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent. 
The District uses the following fund types:

Governmental Fund Types

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the District are 
financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the District's expendable financial resources, and 
the related liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The following is a description 
of the governmental funds of the District:

General Fund

The General Fund accounts for the general operations of the District and all financial transactions 
not accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is a major fund.

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Project Fund accounts for the financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital 
facilities and other capital assets. The Capital Projects Fund is a major fund.

Student Activities Fund

The Student Activities Fund accounts for the operations of the various student activity programs. 
The Student Activities Fund is a nonmajor fund.

Scholarship Fund

The Scholarship Fund accounts for the operations of the various scholarships programs that are 
not held under a trust arrangement. These scholarships are separate from those held under a 
trust arrangement, which are reported as private purpose trust funds. The Scholarship Fund is a 
nonmajor fund.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund accounts for resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned 
to expenditure for principal and interest on outstanding general long-term debt obligations. 
The Debt Service Fund is a major fund.

Proprietary Fund Type

Proprietary funds account for the operations of the District that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to those often found in the private sector. The fund included in this category is the 
Food Service Fund, which accounts for the Cafeteria operations of the District and is considered a 
major fund. The Food Service Fund distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses and 
nonoperating items. Operating revenues consist of charges for food served. Operating expenses 
consist mainly of food and food preparation costs, supplies, and other direct costs. All other revenues 
and are reported as nonoperating.
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Fiduciary Fund Type

Fiduciary funds account for the assets held by the District as a trustee or agent for individuals, 
private organizations, and/or other governmental units. The fund included in this category is:

Private Purpose Trust Fund

Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for assets administered through a trust in which 
the District staff is not a beneficiary, whose assets are dedicated to providing benefits to student 
recipients in accordance with the benefit terms, and are legally protected from the creditors of the 
District. This fund has a net position of $160,909 at June 30, 2021 that is restricted for school 
awards.

Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of the District are 
included on the statement of net position. The statement of activities presents increases 
(i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in the District's net total assets.

Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows of resources, current 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources generally are included on the balance sheet. 
Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing 
sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

Proprietary funds are also accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in 
the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements 
made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual Basis

Government-wide financial statements and the proprietary and fiduciary fund type financial 
statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. For exchange transactions, 
revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred 
(i.e., when each party gives and receives essentially equal value when the exchange takes 
place). Nonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving 
equal value in return, requires tax revenues to be recognized in the year levied while grant 
revenue, entitlements, and appropriations are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements 
are met.
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Modified Accrual Basis

Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified 
accrual basis, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become 
both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be 
determined, and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter 
to be used to pay the liabilities of the current period. The District considers property and other 
taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. A one-year availability 
period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures, 
other than principal and interest on bonds and notes payable, compensated absences, and 
claims and judgments, are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and 
interest on bonds and notes payable, compensated absences, and claims and judgments are 
recorded as fund liabilities when due and unpaid.

The District reports unearned revenue on its fund financial statements. Unearned revenue 
arises when potential revenues do not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for 
recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues may also arise when the District receives 
resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the 
incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition 
criteria are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned 
revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District allocates certain building-related costs to the proprietary fund.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

An operating budget is adopted each year for the General Fund on a modified accrual basis of 
accounting.

The Pennsylvania School Code dictates specific procedures relative to adoption of the District's 
budget and reporting of its financial statements, specifically:

 The District, before levying annual school taxes, is required to prepare an operating budget 
for the succeeding fiscal year.

 The District is required to have the budget printed, or otherwise made available for public 
inspection, at least twenty (20) days prior to the date set for the adoption of the budget. 
Final action may not be taken on any proposed budget in which the estimated expenditures 
exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) until after ten (10) days public notice.

 The Board may make transfers of funds appropriated to any particular item of expenditure 
by legislative action during the last nine months of the fiscal year. An affirmative vote of a 
majority of all members of the Board is required.

 Fund balances in budgetary funds may be appropriated based on resolutions passed by the 
Board, which authorize the District to make expenditures. Appropriations lapse at the end of 
the fiscal period. In order to preserve a portion of an appropriation for which expenditure has 
been committed by a purchase order, contract or other form of commitment, an encumbrance 
is recorded. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund 
balances.

 Included in the General Fund budget are program budgets as prescribed by the state and 
federal agencies funding these programs. These budgets are approved on a program-by-
program basis by the state or federal funding agency.
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 Capital budgets are implemented for capital improvements and capital projects in the Capital 
Projects Fund. All transactions of the Capital Projects Fund are approved by the Board prior 
to commitment, thereby constructively achieving budgetary control.

 An Enterprise Fund budget is not adopted; however, a formal budget is prepared and 
approved by management and expenditures are controlled on the basis of this budget.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash management liquid asset funds that are carried 
at cost. The District considers all investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or 
less (excluding certain short-term instruments which are classified as investments) to be cash 
equivalents. 

Inventories

Inventories are valued at last unit cost in accordance with the recommendations of the Food and 
Nutrition Service of the Department of Agriculture and are expensed as used. Food commodities 
donated by the federal government are valued at an estimated market value. Textbooks and 
instructional and custodial supplies are generally charged to expense upon acquisition.

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary 
fund. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are 
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide Statement of Net Position
but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets used by the proprietary fund 
are reported both in the business-type activity of the government-wide Statement of Net Position
and in the fund financial statements.

All capital assets are stated at cost or estimated cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Donated 
capital assets are reported at their acquisition value at date of receipt. The District maintains a 
capitalization threshold of $1,500. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance 
and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not.

All capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Construction in progress 
costs are accumulated until the project is complete and placed in service. At that time, the costs are 
transferred to the appropriate asset class, and depreciation begins.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activity

Land improvements 15 - 20 years N/A
Buildings and improvements 20 - 40 years N/A
Furniture and equipment 5 - 20 years 5 - 10 years

The District does not have any infrastructure capital assets.

Interest is capitalized on assets acquired with tax-exempt debt. The amount of interest to be 
capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until 
completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period.
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Assets Held for Capital Projects

Assets held for capital projects represent cash and investments held by the District's Capital Projects 
Fund. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets and liabilities, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows (inflows) of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption 
(acquisition) of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
(inflow) of resources until that time.

Compensated Absences

The District's collective bargaining agreements with its professional and support employees 
specify the sick leave and vacation leave policies. Administrative personnel, while not party to 
these agreements, are generally provided similar benefits. The agreements generally provide 
for payment of accumulated sick leave, at retirement, based upon years of service and days 
accumulated. The rate paid varies by position. Vacation leave is available only to administrative 
and twelve month support employees. Vacation pay is earned in the year in which the service has 
been performed. Employees are entitled to accrue an annual designated number of vacation days, 
which carry over from year to year.

Pension

The District provides eligible employees with retirement benefits through the Public School 
Employer's Retirement System (PSERS), a governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan. PSERS was established as of July 18, 1917, under the provisions of Public 
Law 1043, No. 343.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of PSERS and additions to/deductions from PSERS's fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Postemployment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
PSERS and the Jersey Shore Area School District Postemployment Benefits Plan (the Jersey Shore 
OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from PSERS and the Jersey Shore OPEB plans' fiduciary 
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PSERS and the Jersey 
Shore OPEB plan. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Governmental Fund Balance Classification/Policies and Procedures

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, the District classifies its governmental fund balances as follows:

 Nonspendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not 
in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints, such as inventory.
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 Restricted - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which 
are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors, or amounts constrained due to 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

 Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that 
are internally imposed by the District through formal action of the District's "highest level of 
decision-making authority" which do not lapse at year-end.

o The School Board of the District is its highest level of decision-making authority, and

o The School Board commits funds through a formal board motion.

 Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are 
internally imposed by the District.

o The School Board of the District authorized the District Business Manager to assign 
funds to specific purposes.

o The School Board passed a board motion authorizing assignments for activities as 
contemplated by the Board.

 Unassigned - includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been 
classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other 
governmental funds.

In governmental funds, when an expenditure is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or 
unrestricted resources, the District's policy is generally to apply the expenditure toward restricted 
resources first and then to unrestricted resources.

When an expenditure is incurred that can be paid using either committed, assigned, or unassigned 
amounts, the District's policy is generally to apply the expenditure to committed resources, then to 
assigned resources, and then to unassigned resources.

Restricted Net Position

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the District's policy is to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed.

Eliminations and Internal Balances

Transactions and balances between governmental activities have been eliminated in the government-
wide financial statements. Residual amounts due between governmental activities and the business-
type activity are labeled "internal balances" on the statement of net position.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

The District adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary 
activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. 
This standard was implemented July 1, 2020 and resulted in a restatement of government-wide net 
position and the Student Activity Fund and certain non-trusted scholarship activities fund balance 
increasing beginning balances by $198,432.

2. Joint Ventures

The District and other surrounding educational agencies created a joint venture, the Lycoming County 
Insurance Consortium Pooled Trust (the Trust). The District self-insures through the Trust for certain 
health care benefits it provides to current and former employees. The Trust has purchased an excess 
policy which covers employee health benefit claims in excess of $250,000. Claims are recognized as an 
expense when paid (cash basis), which management believes is not materially different from the accrual 
basis for the year ended June 30, 2021. The District made payments for health care benefit claims 
approximating $4,500,000 to the Trust during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Audited financial 
statements of the Trust are available in the District's Business Office.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At June 30, 2021, the District's cash and cash equivalents include deposits with local financial institutions, 
the Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust, the Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset 
Fund and various petty cash balances $2,219 held throughout the School District.

Pennsylvania statutes provide for the investment of governmental funds in certain authorized investment 
types, including U.S. Treasury bills, other short-term U.S. and Pennsylvania government obligations, 
and insured or collateralized time deposits and certificates of deposit. The statutes do not prescribe 
regulations related to demand deposits; however, they do allow the pooling of governmental funds for 
cash management and investment purposes. Act 72 requires all governmental (public funds) deposits 
not insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) to be collateralized by the financial 
institution.

The Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (PLGIT) is a common law trust organized to 
provide Pennsylvania local governments with a convenient method of pooling their cash for temporary 
investment. PLGIT functions similarly to a money market fund, seeking to maintain a net asset value 
of $1 per share. Participants purchase "shares" in PLGIT, which invests the proceeds in obligations 
of the United States Government, its agencies, or instrumentalities; obligations of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania, its agencies, instrumentalities, or political subdivisions; and deposits in savings accounts, 
time deposits, or share accounts of institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation to 
the extent that such accounts are so insured, and for any amounts above the insured maximum, provided 
that approved collateral as provided by law is pledged by the depository. Shares may be withdrawn at any 
time in any amount, with no liquidity fees or redemption gates. PLGIT/PLGIT PLUS have received an 
"AAAm" rating from Standard & Poor's, an independent credit rating agency. At June 30, 2021, the 
carrying amount of the District's deposits with PLGIT was $2,531,165 and the bank balance was
$2,983,151.
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The Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF) is a common law trust organized to 
provide Pennsylvania school districts with a convenient method of pooling their cash for temporary 
investment. Assets with PSDLAF are invested in accordance with Title 24 of the Pennsylvania Statutes 
Article 4, Section 440.1 (2001). Each participant owns shares of PSDLAF, which invests the pooled 
assets. Such assets are not considered deposits pursuant to GASB Nos. 3 and 40, and as such are not 
subject to custodial credit risk. Due to the short-term nature and liquidity of the investments held within 
these pools, the fair value of the underlying investments approximates amortized cost. Shares with 
PSDLAF may be withdrawn at any time in any amount, with no liquidity fees or redemption gates. 
At June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits with PSDLAF was $52,680 and bank 
balance of the District's deposits with PSDLAF was $52,680.

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District will not recover its deposit or 
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District 
does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of 
the District's deposits with local financial institutions and bank balance was $11,791,065. Of the bank 
balance, $3,264,757 was exposed to custodial credit risk, as these deposits were not covered by 
depository insurance but rather were collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution, but not in the District's name. 

4. Property Taxes

Real estate taxes for the District, which is comprised of a two-county area, are collected from the Borough 
of Jersey Shore and surrounding municipalities and townships. The tax on real estate by county, as levied 
by the board, for public school purposes for fiscal 2020 is as follows:

Clinton County 13.5010 mills ($13.5010 per $1,000 of assessed valuation)

Lycoming County 18.3139 mills ($18.3139 per $1,000 of assessed valuation)

Assessed valuations of property are determined by each County and the elected tax collectors are 
responsible for collection. The schedule for real estate taxes levied for each fiscal year is as follows:

July 1 Levy date
July 1 - August 31 2% discount period
September 1 - October 31 Face payment period
November 1 - June 30 10% penalty period
July 30 Lien date

Estimated collectible delinquent real estate taxes at June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Outstanding 
Balance

Estimated 
Uncollectible

Estimated 
Collectible

$ 1,093,199 $ 26,923 $ 1,066,276

Tax Abatement Program

The District provides property tax abatements under the Clean and Green Program (Pennsylvania 
Farmland and Forest Land Assessment Act). The Clean and Green Program is a preferential tax 
assessment program that bases property taxes on use values rather than fair market values. This 
ordinarily results in a tax savings for landowners. The Pennsylvania General Assembly enacted the 
program in 1974 as a tool to encourage protection of the Commonwealth's valuable farmland, 
forestland and open spaces. A property must be ten acres in size and in Agricultural Use, Agricultural 
Reserve or Forest Reserve. Agricultural Use applications may be less than 10 acres in size if the 
property is capable of generating at least $2,000 annually in farm income. The amount of District 
real estate taxes abated under this program during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was 
approximately $799,000.
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5. Due From Other Governments

The amount reported in the General Fund at June 30, 2021 as due from other governments is 
summarized below:

General Fund Food Service Total

Local source revenues $ 413,744 $ - $ 413,744
State source revenues 1,558,973 5,262 1,564,235
Federal source revenues 422,693 133,239 555,932

Total $ 2,395,410 $ 138,501 $ 2,533,911

Amounts due from the federal and state government are primarily federal grants and state subsidies 
receivable from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Education at June 30, 2021. 
The amount due from local governments represents miscellaneous taxes collected by other 
governments on the District's behalf, but not remitted to the District as of June 30, 2021.

6. Capital Assets

The changes in the District's capital assets in 2021 are summarized as follows:

Balance 

July 1, 2020 Acquisitions

Dispositions/

Transfers

Balance

June 30, 2021

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being 

depreciated:
Land $ 13,692,781 $ - $ - $ 13,692,781

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 3,488,033 - - 3,488,033

Buildings and improvements 66,454,978 118,101 - 66,573,079

Furniture and equipment 14,250,943 815,604 (13,500) 15,053,047

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 84,193,954 933,705 (13,500) 85,114,159

Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (2,852,467) (73,007) (2,925,474)

Buildings and improvements (35,942,286) (1,561,830) (37,504,116)

Furniture and equipment (12,573,631) (601,877) 13,500 (13,162,008)

Total accumulated 
depreciation (51,368,384) (2,236,714) 13,500 (53,591,598)

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 32,825,570 (1,303,009) - 31,522,561

Governmental activities 
capital assets, net $ 46,518,351 $ (1,303,009) $ - $ 45,215,342

Business-Type Activity
Furniture and equipment $ 846,577 $ - $ - $ 846,577

Less accumulated depreciation (818,595) (11,522) - (830,117)

Business-type activity capital 
assets, net $ 27,982 $ (11,522) $ - $ 16,460
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Governmental activities depreciation expense is allocated among the District's functional expenses as 
follows:

Instruction $ 1,278,560
Operation and maintenance of plant services 860,259
Instructional student support 74,665
Student activities 9,278
Administration and financial support services 12,930
Pupil transportation 1,022

Total $ 2,236,714

7. Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

In 2012, the District issued a $9,995,000 General Obligation Bond, Series of 2012, due in varying 
annual installments plus interest at rates ranging from 1.25 percent to 2.875 percent through maturity 
in 2029. The proceeds from the issuance of the bond were used for the purpose of paying the costs 
of acquiring, designing, constructing, furnishing, and equipping alterations, additions, renovations, 
and other improvements to the Jersey Shore Elementary School building and other facilities of the 
District, and to pay the costs of issuing and insuring the bonds. This bond was partially currently 
refunded in 2018 through the issuance of the District's General Obligation Note, Series of 2017. 
The remaining bond balance was currently refunded in 2021 through the issuance of the District's 
General Obligation Bond, Series of 2021.

In 2015, the District issued a $7,340,000 General Obligation Bond, Series of 2015, due in varying 
annual installments plus interest at rates ranging from 2.0 percent to 2.25 percent through maturity 
in 2026. The proceeds from the issuance of the bond were used for the purpose of refunding 
$7,225,000 of the District's General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010, and to pay the costs of 
issuing the bonds. This bond was currently refunded in 2021 through the issuance of the District’s 
General Obligation Bond, Series of 2021.

In 2015, the District issued a $2,555,000 General Obligation Bond, Series A of 2015, due in varying 
annual installments plus interest at a fixed rate of 2.0 percent through maturity in 2024. The proceeds 
from the issuance of the bond were used for the purpose of refunding the District's General Obligation 
Bonds, Series A of 2010, and to pay the costs of issuing the bonds. This bond was currently refunded 
in 2021 through the issuance of the District's General Obligation Bond, Series of 2021. 

In 2019, the District issued a $4,585,000 General Obligation Bond, Series of 2019, due in varying 
annual installments plus interest rate ranging from 2.0 percent to 5.0 percent per annum, with the final 
maturity in September 2029. The proceeds from the issuance of the bond were used for the purpose 
of refunding the District's General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2013, and to pay the costs of issuing 
the bonds. 

Direct Borrowings - General Obligation Bonds/Notes

In 2015, the District issued a $6,102,000 General Obligation Note, Series AA of 2015, due in 
varying annual installments plus interest at a fixed rate of 1.66 percent through maturity in 2022. 
The proceeds from the issuance of the note were used for the purpose of refunding $5,955,000 of 
the District's General Obligation Bonds, Series AA of 2010, and to pay the costs of issuing the note. 

In 2015, the District issued a $3,898,000 General Obligation Note, Series AAA of 2015, due in 
varying annual installments plus interest at a fixed rate of 1.13 percent through maturity in 2021. 
The proceeds from the issuance of the note were used for the purpose of refunding the District's 
General Obligation Bonds, Series AAA of 2010, and to pay the costs of issuing the note. This 
borrowing was repaid during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
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In 2016, the District issued a $3,147,000 General Obligation Note, Series AAAA of 2015, due in 
varying annual installments plus interest at a fixed rate of 2.17 percent through maturity in 2024. The 
proceeds from the issuance of the note were used for the purpose of currently refunding the District's 
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2011, and to pay the costs of issuing the note. This bond was 
currently refunded in 2021 through the issuance of the District’s General Obligation Bond, Series of 
2021.

In 2020, the District issued a $9,975,000 General Obligation Bond, Series of 2020, due in varying 
annual installments plus interest at a fixed rate of 1.688 percent through maturity in September 2028. 
The proceeds from the issuance of the bond were used for the purpose of refunding the District's 
General Obligation Notes, Series of 2017, and to pay the costs of issuing the bonds. 

In 2021, the District issued a $8,069,000 General Obligation Bond, Series of 2021, due in varying 
annual installments plus interest at a fixed rate of 0.80 percent through maturity in 2026. The 
proceeds from the issuance of the bond were used to currently refund the District’s outstanding 
General Obligation Bonds Series of 2012, General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2015, General 
Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2015 and General Obligation Notes, Series AAAA of 2015, and pay the 
costs associated with issuing the Bond.

This current refunding transaction resulted in an economic gain (the difference between the present 
value of the debt service requirements of the refunding debt) of approximately $203,000, and a 
reduction of the District’s debt service (cash flow) requirements over the next five years of 
approximately $200,000.

The changes in long-term debt during fiscal 2021, by debt instrument, are as follows:

Balance at 
July 1, 2020 Additions Retirements

Balance at 
June 30, 2021

Current 
Portion

June 30, 2021

Series of 2012 GOB $ 155,000 $ - $ 155,000 $ - $ -
Series of 2015 GOB 6,570,000 - 6,570,000 - -
Series A of 2015 GOB 105,000 - 105,000 - -
Series AA of 2015 GON 3,931,000 - 1,830,000 2,101,000 2,101,000
Series AAA of 2015 GON 206,000 - 206,000 - -
Series AAAA of 2015 GON 1,668,000 - 1,668,000 - -
Series of 2019, GOB 4,585,000 - 10,000 4,575,000 10,000
Series of 2020, GOB 9,975,000 - - 9,975,000 55,000
Series of 2021, GOB - 8,069,000 - 8,069,000 451,000

Total Debt 27,195,000 8,069,000 10,544,000 24,720,000 $ 2,617,000

Bond premium 15,244 - 1,694 13,550

Total long-term debt $ 27,210,244 $ 8,069,000 $ 10,545,694 $ 24,733,550

Total interest expense on long-term debt in 2021 was $470,716. No interest was capitalized 
(i.e., added to the carrying value of capital assets) in 2021. No interest is reported as a direct 
expense in the statement of activities.
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Debt service to maturity on the general obligation bonds and direct borrowings at June 30, 2021 is 
summarized as follows:

General Obligation Bonds Direct Borrowings

TotalYears Ending June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest

2022 $ 10,000 $ 93,350 $ 2,607,000 $ 234,472 $ 2,944,822

2023 20,000 92,600 2,302,000 218,897 2,633,497

2024 20,000 91,600 2,324,000 199,794 2,635,394

2025 20,000 90,600 2,346,000 180,470 2,637,070

2026 20,000 89,900 3,041,000 148,887 3,299,787

2027-2031 4,485,000 249,650 7,525,000 139,218 12,398,868

Total $ 4,575,000 $ 707,700 $ 20,145,000 $ 1,121,738 $ 26,549,438

8. Capital Leases

The District has entered into certain lease agreements which are accounted for as capital leases. 
Following is a schedule of changes in capital leases for the year ended June 30, 2021, as well as a 
schedule, by year, of the future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present 
value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2021, as related to the District's governmental 
activities:

Balance 
July 1, 2020 Additions Payments

Balance 
June 30, 2021

Capital leases, various $ 601,572 $ 55,620 $ 293,211 $ 363,981

Years ending June 30:
2022 $ 145,323
2023 145,323
2024 52,943
2025 11,124
2026 9,268

Total minimum lease payments 363,981

Current portion 145,323

Long-term portion $ 218,658

9. Compensated Absences

Vacation

District employees who are required to work on a twelve-month schedule are credited with vacation 
at rates that vary with length of service or job classification. Vacation (for most employee categories) 
may be taken or accumulated within certain limits and is paid prior to retirement or termination at the 
employee's current rate of pay.

Sick Leave

Most District employees are credited with ten to twelve days of sick leave and may accumulate such 
days based on employee classifications. Sick leave (for most employee categories) may be taken or 
accumulated within certain limits and is paid prior to retirement or termination at the contractual or 
Board-approved rate.
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The changes in the District's compensated absences in 2021 are summarized as follows:

Governmental activities:
Balance, July 1, 2020 $ 726,603

Increase 364,651
Decrease (339,500)

Balance, June 30, 2021 $ 751,754

Business-type activity:
Balance, July 1, 2020 $ 1,025

Increase 800
Decrease (545)

Balance, June 30, 2021 $ 1,280

10. Accrued Salaries and Benefits

Accrued salaries and benefits in the General Fund totaling $4,079,841 represent salaries of $1,787,444, 
the District's share of Social Security taxes of $89,597 for teachers' services during the 2020-2021 school 
term, which are paid during July and August 2021, retirement plan expense of $2,143,142, and other 
benefits expense of $59,658 applicable to the accrued salaries at June 30, 2021. 

11. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Jersey Shore Area School District Postemployment Benefits Plan

General Information About the OPEB Plan

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The District's defined benefit OPEB plan, Jersey Shore Area School District Postemployment 
Benefits Plan, provides full coverage in health care benefits for teachers who retire at age 50 or 
later, up to age 65, who have 15 or more years credited service with the District. The District also 
provides full coverage in individual health care benefits for administrators who retire at age 53 or 
later, up to age 65, and who have at least 7 years of service with the District. The retiree pays 
the cost for dependent coverage. The cost of such coverage for retirees and spouses is primarily 
funded through annual appropriations from the District's General Fund. The plan is unfunded 
and no financial report is prepared. These benefits are accounted for in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. Retired employees who are ineligible under the above requirements and choose to 
participate in the medical plan must pay 100 percent of the fixed rate cost of such coverage. 
The Jersey Shore Area School District OPEB Plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB 
plan administered by the District. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meet the criteria in 
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

At July 1, 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefit payments 23

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving 
benefit payments -

Active employees 280

Total 303

Total OPEB Liability

The District's total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was $10,815,523, was measured 
as of July 1, 2020, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, 
unless otherwise specified:  

Interest rate 1.86%
Salary increases 2.5% cost of living adjustment, 1% real wage growth, 

and for teachers and administrators a merit 
increase which varies by age from 2.75% to 0%

Discount rate 1.86%
Healthcare cost trend rates 5.5% in 2020 through 2023. Rates gradually 

decrease from 5.4% in 2024 to 4.0% in 2075 and 
later based on the Society of Actuaries Long-Run 
Medical Cost Trend Model 

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs Retiree contributions are assumed to increase at the 
same rate as the Health Care Cost Trend Rate. 

The discount rate was based on S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index at July 1, 
2020. 

For mortality rates, separate rates are assumed preretirement and postretirement using the rates 
assumed in the PSERS defined benefit pension plan actuarial valuation. Incorporated into the 
table are rates projected generationally by the Buck Modified 2016 projection scale to reflect 
mortality improvement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period May 2017. 
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB 
Liability 

Balance at July 1, 2020 $ 10,513,885
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 601,685
Interest 367,902
Changes of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and actual experience (1,506,515)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 1,145,216
Benefit payments (306,650)

Net changes 301,638

Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 10,815,523

Changes in assumptions or other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.36 percent
in 2020 to 1.86 percent in 2021.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
(0.86 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (2.86 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease
(0.86%)

Discount Rate
(1.86%)

1% Increase
(2.86%)

Total OPEB Liability $ 11,582,540 $ 10,815,523 $ 10,079,359

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates. 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 
1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend 
rates: 

1%
Decrease

Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rates 

1%
Increase

Total OPEB Liability $ 9,514,918 $ 10,815,523 $ 12,340,360
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized OPEB expense of $858,518. 
At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date 
(July 1, 2020) $ 257,016 $ -

Differences between expected and actual experience 267,836 1,369,559
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 1,057,739 937,533

Total $ 1,582,591 $ 2,307,092

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Years ending June 30: 
2022 $ (111,069)

2023 (111,069)

2024 (111,069)

2025 (111,069)

2026 (111,069)

Thereafter (426,172)

Total $ (981,517)

PSERS Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program

General Information About the PSERS Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program

PSERS provides Premium Assistance which is a governmental cost sharing, multiple-employer 
OPEB plan for all eligible retirees who qualify and elect to participate. Employer contribution rates 
for Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the Health Insurance Account that 
are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding year. Effective 
January 1, 2002 under the provisions of Act 9 of 2001, participating eligible retirees are entitled to 
receive premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $100 per month or their out-of-pocket 
monthly health insurance premium. To receive premium assistance, eligible retirees must obtain their 
health insurance through either their school employer or the PSERS' Health Options Program (HOP). 
As of June 30, 2021, there were no assumed future benefit increases to participating eligible retirees.

Premium Assistance Eligibility Criteria

Retirees of PSERS can participate in the Premium Assistance program if they satisfy the 
following criteria: 

 Have 24 ½ or more years of service, or 
 Are a disability retiree, or 
 Have 15 or more years of service and retired after reaching superannuation age, 

and
 Participate in the HOP or employer-sponsored health insurance program. 
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Employer Contributions

The District's contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was
0.82 percent of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during 
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to 
PSERS from the District were $138,207 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $2,556,000 for its proportionate share of the 
net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB 
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by rolling forward PSERS' total 
OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. The District's proportion of the net OPEB 
liability was calculated utilizing the employer's one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to 
the total one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2021, the District's proportion was 
0.1184 percent, which was a decrease of .0075 percent from its proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2020. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized OPEB expense of $110,000. 
At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Changes in assumptions $ 104,000 $ 56,000
Difference between expected and actual experience 24,000 -
Net differences between projected and actual investment 

earnings 4,000 -
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 138,207 -
Changes in proportion 62,000 180,000

$ 332,207 $ 236,000

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Years ending June 30:
2022 $ (11,000)
2023 (12,000)
2024 (12,000)
2025 4,000
2026 5,000
Thereafter (16,000)

Total $ (42,000)
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2020, was determined by rolling forward the System's 
Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020 using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level percent of pay 

 Investment return - 2.66 percent - S&P 20 Year Municipal Bond Rate 

 Salary growth - Effective average of 5.00 percent, comprised of inflation of 2.75 percent
and 2.25 percent for real wage growth and for merit or seniority increases 

 Premium Assistance reimbursement is capped at $1,200 per year 

 Assumed Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees with less than $1,200 in 
premium assistance per year 

 Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, 
adjusted to reflect PSERS' experience and projected using a modified version of the 
MP-2015 Mortality Improvement Scale 

 Participation rate: 
Eligible retirees will elect to participate Pre age 65 at 50 percent
Eligible retirees will elect to participate Post age 65 at 70 percent

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study that was performed for the five-year period ended June 30, 2015. 

The following assumptions were used to determine the contribution rate: 

 The results of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 determined the employer 
contribution rate for fiscal year 2020

 Cost Method: Amount necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through 
the third fiscal year after the valuation date 

 Asset valuation method: Market Value 

 Participation rate: 63 percent of eligible retirees are assumed to elect premium 
assistance 

 Mortality rates and retirement ages were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy 
Annuitant Tables with age set back 3 for both males and females for healthy annuitants 
and for dependent beneficiaries. For disabled annuitants, the RP-2000 Combined 
Disabled Tables with age set back 7 years for males and 3 years for females for disabled 
annuitants. (A unisex table based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant Tables 
with age set back 3 years for both genders assuming the population consists of 
25 percent males and 75 percent females is used to determine actuarial equivalent 
benefits).

Investments consist primarily of short term assets designed to protect the principal of the plan 
assets. The expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using the OPEB 
asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each asset class.

The OPEB plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and 
may be amended by the PSERS Board. Under the program, as defined in the retirement code 
employer contribution rates for Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the 
Health Insurance Account that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for 
each succeeding year. 
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OPEB - Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected 

Real Rate of 
Return

Cash 50.3 % (1.0) %
US Core Fixed Income 46.5 (0.1)
Non-US Developed Fixed 3.2 (0.1)

100.0 %

The above was the PSERS Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of 
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2020.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 2.66 percent. Under the plan's 
funding policy, contributions are structured for short term funding of Premium Assistance. The 
funding policy sets contribution rates necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance 
through the third fiscal year after the actuarial valuation date. The Premium Assistance account is 
funded to establish reserves that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits 
for each succeeding year. Due to the short term funding policy, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net 
position was not projected to be sufficient to meet projected future benefit payments, therefore 
the plan is considered a "pay-as-you-go" plan. A discount rate of 2.66 percent which represents 
the S&P 20 year Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2020, was applied to all projected benefit 
payments to measure the total OPEB liability. 

Sensitivity of PSERS Net OPEB Liability to Change in Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees receiving less than $1,200 in annual Premium 
Assistance. As of June 30, 2020, retirees Premium Assistance benefits are not subject to future 
healthcare cost increases. The annual Premium Assistance reimbursement for qualifying retirees 
is capped at a maximum of $1,200. The actual number of retirees receiving less than the $1,200 
per year cap is a small percentage of the total population and has a minimal impact on 
Healthcare Cost Trends as depicted below. 

The following presents PSERS' net OPEB liability for June 30, 2020 calculated using current 
Healthcare cost trends as well as what PSERS' net OPEB liability would be if its health cost 
trends were 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease
Current 

Trend Rate 1% Increase

PSERS Net OPEB Liability $ 2,556,000 $ 2,556,000 $ 2,556,000
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Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 2.79 percent, 
as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
1-percentage point lower (1.79 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.79 percent) than the 
current rate:

1% Decrease 
1.79%

Current 
Discount Rate 

2.79%
1% Increase 

3.79%

District's proportionate share of the net 
OPEB liability $ 2,914,000 $ 2,556,000 $ 2,259,000

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about PSERS' fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System's website at www.psers.pa.gov. 

12. Termination Benefits

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the District provides health care 
benefits to eligible former employees and their dependents. Requirements are outlined by the federal 
government for this coverage. The premium plus a 2 percent administrative fee is paid in full by the 
eligible participant. This program is offered up to a period of 18 months (36 months for an employee with 
dependents) after an employee's termination date. At June 30, 2021, there was one participant under
dental COBRA benefits.

Annually, the District provides for a retirement stipend of $5,000 for teachers who voluntarily retire after 
having reached at least 53 years of age and 15 or more years of credited service. Such stipends are 
payable in the year the employee officially retires. The cost of this benefit is recognized on a "pay as you 
go" basis, and amounted to $10,000 covering two participants for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The District provides a retirement stipend for administrators retiring with at least 7 years of service and 
having reached 55 years of age. The maximum retirement stipend is $14,000. There were no benefits 
paid to administrators during the year ended June 30, 2021.

13. Retirement Plan

As of June 30, 2021, the District reported the following amounts in the accompanying financial statements 
related to their participation in the Public School Employees' Retirement System (PSERS): 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activity Total

Deferred Outflow of Resources $ 8,922,903 $ 185,710 $ 9,108,613
Net Pension Liability 57,044,733 1,254,267 58,299,000
Deferred Inflow of Resources 4,395,357 71,525 4,466,882
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Plan Description

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides 
retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The members 
eligible to participate in the System include all full-time public school employees, part-time hourly 
public school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school year, and part-time 
per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of service in the school year in any of 
the reporting entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be 
obtained at www.psers.state.pa.us. 

Benefits Provided

PSERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Members are eligible for monthly retirement 
benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1 year of credited service; (b) age 60 with 30 or more 
years of credited service; or (c) 35 or more years of service regardless of age. Act 120 of 2010 
(Act 120) preserves the benefits of existing members and introduced benefit reductions for individuals 
who become new members on or after July 1, 2011. Act 120 created two new membership classes, 
Membership Class T-E (Class T-E) and Membership Class T-F (Class T-F). To qualify for normal 
retirement, Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a minimum of 3 years 
of service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or greater than 92 with a 
minimum of 35 years of service. Benefits are generally equal to 2 percent or 2.5 percent, depending 
upon membership class, of the member's final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by 
the number of years of credited service. For members whose membership started prior to July 1, 
2011, after completion of five years of service, a member's right to the defined benefits is vested and 
early retirement benefits may be elected. For Class T-E and Class T-F members, the right to benefits 
is vested after ten years of service.

Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited 
service. Such benefits are generally equal to 2 percent or 2.5 percent, depending upon membership 
class, of the member's final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years 
of credited service, but not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member 
would have had at normal retirement age. Members over normal retirement age may apply for 
disability benefits.

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with at 
least one year of credited service (age 65 with at least three years of credited service for Class T-E 
and Class T-F members) or who has at least five years of credited service (ten years for Class T-E 
and Class T-F members). Such benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have been 
effective if the member had retired on the day before death.

Member Contributions

Active members who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25 percent
(Membership Class T-C) or at 6.50 percent (Membership Class T-D) of the member's qualifying 
compensation.

Members who joined the System on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active or inactive as of 
July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25 percent (Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50 percent (Membership 
Class T-D) of the member's qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011, contribute at 
7.50 percent (automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected 
Class T-D membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after 
January 1, 2002.
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Members who joined the System after June 30, 2011, automatically contribute at the Membership 
Class T-E rate of 7.5 percent (base rate) of the member's qualifying compensation. All new hires 
after June 30, 2011, who elect Class T-F membership, contribute at 10.3 percent (base rate) of 
the member's qualifying compensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are affected by a 
"shared risk" provision in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership 
Class T-E contribution rate to fluctuate between 7.5 percent and 9.5 percent and Membership 
Class T-F contribution rate to fluctuate between 10.3 percent and 12.3 percent.

Act 5 of 2017

Act 5 of 2017 created additional classes of service (Class T-G, T-H and DC) that reduce the defined 
benefit formula but add a defined contribution component to the employee benefit. These plans 
are effective for employees who join PSERS on or after July 1, 2019. Total member contributions 
between the two plans range from 7.5 percent to 8.25 percent, depending on the class selection. 
The employer contribution to the defined contribution plan ranges from 2.0 percent to 2.25 percent, 
with the balance of the contractually required PSERS contribution rate paid to the defined benefit 
plan. The defined contribution component of a PSERS retirement benefit will be based on the amount 
of contributions made by the member and the District and the investment performance on those 
contributions. Contributions have the potential to grow based on investment earnings but are not 
guaranteed against loss in declining investment markets.

Since pension liabilities are determined based upon the District’s proportion of the overall liability 
measured as of the PSERS valuation date, additional details will be provided by PSERS with the 
actuarial valuation for June 30, 2021 which will be incorporated in the District’s June 30, 2022
financial statements.  

Employer Contributions

The District's contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was 
33.69 percent of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during 
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to 
PSERS from the District were $5,482,731 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $58,299,000 for its proportionate share of the 
PSERS net pension liability. The PSERS net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward 
the PSERS total pension liability as of June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. The District's proportion of the 
PSERS net pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer's one-year reported covered payroll 
as it relates to the total one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2021, the District's proportion 
was 0.1183 percent, which was an increase from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020 of 
.0075 percent.
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For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of approximately 
$4,668,000. At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Changes in proportion between Governmental and 
Business-Type Activities $ (25,118) $ (25,118)

Difference between expected and actual experience 152,000 1,397,000

Changes in assumptions - -

Net difference between projected and actual investment 
earnings 2,562,000 -

Changes in proportion 937,000 3,095,000

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 5,482,731 -

Total $ 9,108,613 $ 4,466,882

$5,482,731 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Years ending June 30:
2022 $ (1,109,000)
2023 (355,000)
2024 (137,000)
2025 760,000

Total $ (841,000)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by rolling forward the System's total 
pension liability as of the June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020 using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

 Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level percent of pay.

 Investment return - 7.25 percent, includes inflation at 2.75 percent.

 Salary growth - Effective average of 5.00 percent, comprised of inflation of 2.75 percent
and 2.25 percent for real wage growth and for merit or seniority increases.

 Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, 
adjusted to reflect PSERS' experience and projected using a modified version of the 
MP-2015 Mortality Improvement Scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study that was performed for the five-year period ended June 30, 2015.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation.

The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may be 
amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed with a long-term objective of achieving and 
maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension.

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected 

Real Rate of 
Return

Global public equity 15.0 % 5.2 %
Private equity 15.0 7.2
Fixed income 36.0 1.1
Commodities 8.0 1.8
Absolute return 10.0 2.5
Risk parity 8.0 3.3
Infrastructure/MLPs 6.0 5.7
Real estate 10.0 5.5
Cash 6.0 (1.0)
Financing (LIBOR) (14.0) (0.7)

100.0 %

The above was the PSERS Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric 
real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2020. 

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point 
lower (6.25 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25 percent) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease
(6.25%)

Current 
Discount Rate

(7.25%)
1% Increase

(8.25%)

District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability $ 72,128,000 $ 58,299,000 $ 46,584,000

DRAFT 11/19/21



Jersey Shore Area School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

53

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about PSERS' fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report which can be found on the System's website at www.psers.pa.gov.

14. Internal Balances / Interfund Balances and Transfers

At June 30, 2021, various operating funds owed amounts to and were due amounts from other funds. 
These amounts, which represent short-term borrowings that are expected to be repaid within the next 
fiscal year, consisted of the following: 

Due From Due To

General Fund:
Food Service Fund $ 698,775 $ 147,526

Food Service Fund:
General Fund 147,526 698,775

Total $ 1,692,602 $ 1,692,602

The following summarizes interfund transfers made during the year ended June 30, 2021:

Transfers In Transfers Out

General Fund:
Capital Projects Fund $ - $ 325,000
Debt Service Fund 4,505 -

Capital Projects Fund:
General Fund 325,000 -

Debt Service Fund:
General Fund - 4,505

Total $ 329,505 $ 329,505

Transfers were made from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund for current and future capital 
projects and to General Fund from Debt Service Fund for debt interest payments.
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15. Fund Balance Classifications

The District presents its governmental fund balances by level of constraint in the aggregate on its balance 
sheet - governmental funds. The individual specific purposes of each constraint are presented below:

General Fund
Capital 

Projects Fund
Special 

Revenue Funds Total

Nonspendable for:
Inventory $ 26,205 $ - $ - $ 26,205
Prepaid expenses 58,083 - - 58,083

Total nonspendable $ 84,288 $ - $ - $ 84,288

Restricted for:
Student activities 

and scholarships $ - $ - $ 1,446,407 $ 1,446,407

Committed for:
Medical reserves $ 850,000 $ - $ - $ 850,000
PSERS 2,780,000 - - 2,780,000
Future PlanCon J approvals 380,303 - - 380,303
Legal matters 96,596 - - 96,596
Capital Projects - 822,795 - 822,795

Total committed $ 4,106,899 $ 822,795 $ - $ 4,929,694

16. Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

The District's operations are located in Clinton and Lycoming Counties of Pennsylvania. Its service area 
is located within the geographic bounds of the District. The District assesses taxpayers within its service 
area based upon taxing powers at its disposal. The ability of each of the District's taxpayers to honor their 
assessed obligations to the District is dependent upon economic and other factors affecting its taxpayers.

17. Commitments and Contingencies

Grant Programs

The District participates in both state and federally assisted grant programs. These programs 
are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District 
is potentially liable for any expenditure which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these 
grant programs. Management is not aware of any material items of noncompliance that may 
result in the disallowance of program expenditures.

Environmental

The District maintains heating and fuel storage and sewage treatment facilities. The District is 
potentially liable for any expenditure associated with compliance to mandated regulations and
any disallowance of program expenditures.

Litigation

The District from time to time has been named as a defendant in various lawsuits that relate to 
its day-to-day operations. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the resolution of 
these lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the District’s financial position or results 
of operations.
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Contingency

In January 2020, an outbreak of a new strain of coronavirus disease, COVID-19, was identified. 
The World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a public health emergency on March 11, 2020. 
In response, all public schools in the Commonwealth were closed on March 13, 2020 and remained 
closed through the remainder of the 2019/2020 school year, with District students, staff and faculty 
transitioned to remote operations. The 2020/2021 school year was held with in-person, hybrid and 
virtual learning model operations available to its students. To the date, the majority of the 2021/2022 
school year has been operating with in-person learning. While this disruption is anticipated to be 
temporary, the extent of the impact of COVID-19 on District’s operational and financial performance 
will depend on the ongoing pandemic, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and the 
ongoing impact on students, employees and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be 
reasonably predicted at the current time. The District’s Board of Directors and management are 
monitoring the outbreak and potential financial impact, which remains uncertain. 

18. Nonmonetary Transactions

The District receives USDA Donated Commodities in the Food Service Fund (Enterprise Fund), 
which is a proprietary fund type. These donated commodities are valued at an estimated market 
value and recognized as federal revenue with unused commodities recorded as inventory. The total 
revenue recognized by the District in connection with this program amounted to $73,943 for the year 
ended June 30, 2021.

19. Transactions With Other LEA's

The District is a member of B.L.A.S.T. Intermediate Unit 17. Through the membership, the District is
able to secure various special services, including special education.

20. Pending Changes in Accounting Principles

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved the following:

 Statement No. 87, Leases

 Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period

 Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations

 Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020

 Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates

 Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements

 Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

 Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans

 Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

District management is in the process of evaluating these standards. When they become effective, 
application of these standards may restate portions of these financial statements.
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

District's proportion of the OPEB liability 0.1184% 0.1259% 0.1222% 0.1257% 0.1250%

District's proportionate share of the OPEB liability 2,556,000$       2,678,000$       2,548,000$       2,561,000$       2,692,000$       

District's covered-employee payroll 16,602,426$     17,362,941$     16,458,273$     16,742,204$     16,182,935$     

District's proportionate share of the OPEB liability as a 

percentage of itscovered-employee payroll 15.40% 15.42% 15.48% 15.30% 16.63%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB 

liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Jersey Shore Area School District
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the PSERS OPEB Liability 

June 30, 2021

The District adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 

Benefits Other Than Pensions,  for the year ended June 30, 2018 to conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Information for years prior to 2017 is not available for reporting. 
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Contractually required contribution 136,140$              145,849$         136,604$         138,960$         134,318$         

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution (136,140)               (145,849)          (136,604)          (138,960)          (134,318)          

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                          -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

District's covered-employee payroll 16,602,426$         17,362,941$    16,458,273$    16,742,204$    16,182,935$    

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.82% 0.84% 0.83% 0.83% 0.83%

Jersey Shore Area School District
Schedule of the District's PSERS OPEB Contributions

June 30, 2021

The District adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 

Benefits Other Than Pensions,  for the year ended June 30, 2018 to conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Information for years prior to 2017 is not available for reporting. 
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2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost 601,685$         600,252$         647,286$         647,657$         

Interest cost 367,902           316,952           332,450           251,396           

Changes of benefit terms -                       -                       (2,626)              -                       

Differences between expected and actual experience (1,506,515)       -                       368,276           -                       

Changes in assumptions 1,145,216        (299,788)          (951,844)          24,954             

Benefit payments, including refunds
of member contributions (306,650)          (303,843)          (365,204)          (437,761)          

Net change in total OPEB liability 301,638           313,573           28,338             486,246           

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning 10,513,885      10,200,312      10,171,974      9,685,728        

Total OPEB Liability, Ending 10,815,523      10,513,885      10,200,312      10,171,974      

Covered-Employee Payroll 15,994,724$    16,143,911$    16,143,911$    16,486,846$    

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 67.62% 65.13% 63.18% 61.70%

Jersey Shore Area School District
Schedule of Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
June 30, 2021

The District adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,  for the year ended June 30, 2018 to conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America. Information for years prior to 2018 is not available for reporting. 
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of
Jersey Shore Area School District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activity, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jersey Shore Area School
District,  as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Jersey Shore Area School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated DATE OF REPORT. The District adopted GASB Statement No. 84 Fiduciary Activities, for
the year ended June 30, 2021. Implementation of this standard did not modify the opinon with respect to this
matter. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose. 

Williamsport, Pennsylvania
DATE OF REPORT
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance
for Each Major Federal Program and Report on

Internal Control Over Compliance Required
by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors of
Jersey Shore Area School District

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Jersey Shore Area School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The District's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2021.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered the District's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Williamsport, Pennsylvania
DATE OF REPORT
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Jersey Shore Area School District
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2021

67

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award 
activity of the Jersey Shore Area School District (the District) under programs of the federal government 
for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the District, it is not intended to and does not present 
the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the District.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual or modified accrual basis of 
accounting, as described below. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles 
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 
limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule, if any, represent adjustments or 
credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. 
Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

The underlying accounting records for some grant programs, primarily those involving governmental 
activities (i.e., General Fund), are maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and 
available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used 
to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred. 
The accounting records for other grant programs, including those involving business-type activities 
(i.e., Food Service Fund), are maintained on the accrual basis, i.e., when the revenue has been 
earned and the liability is incurred.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance.
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Jersey Shore Area School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2021

68

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued on whether the financial 
statements audited were in accordance with GAAP: 

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal program:  
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major 
federal program:  Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.425                       Education Stabilization Fund

10.553/10.555                        Child Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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Jersey Shore Area School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2021

69

Section II - Findings - Financial Statement Findings

None.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None.

Section IV - Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

There were no findings or questioned costs noted in the June 30, 2020 Single Audit.
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Adult Education

Code 125

Status

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 502

2. 24 P.S. 1901

3. 24 P.S. 1903

4. 24 P.S. 1906

5. 24 P.S. 1923

24 P.S. 1904

24 P.S. 1905

Purpose

The Board recognizes the value of opportunities for educational growth and advancement to adult
members of the community and the need of both adults and minors for educational programs.

Authority

The Board may establish and maintain a program of adult education based upon the needs and
interests of the residents, consistent with the district’s educational goals and objectives and
Board policies.[1][2][3][4]

The Board may employ staff, utilize available facilities, supply instructional and supplementary
materials and provide administrative leadership required to maintain the adult education program.
The Board shall establish the tuition rate for each course offered in the adult education program.
[3][5]

Guidelines

Admission to an adult education program shall be open to:

1. All adult residents of this district.

2. Adult residents of other districts who apply and whose admittance will not deprive admittance
to a district resident.

Delegation of Responsibility

The Superintendent or designee shall:
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1. Utilize appropriate staff members.

2. Assess the needs and resources of the community.

3. Develop a program of adult education and present that program to the Board for approval.

4. Develop and implement means to inform the public of adult education offerings.
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Extracurricular Participation by Home Education Students

Code 137.1

Status

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 1327.1

2. 24 P.S. 511

3. Pol. 122

4. Pol. 123

5. Pol. 137

6. 10 U.S.C. 2031

7. Pol. 204

8. Pol. 218

Adopted November 10, 2008

Last Revised September 26, 2016

Authority

The Board shall approve participation in the district’s extracurricular activities and interscholastic
athletic programs by a student enrolled in a home education program who meets all the conditions
stated in Board policy.[1][2][3][4][5]

The Board shall not provide individual transportation for students enrolled in home education
programs who participate in the district’s extracurricular activities or interscholastic athletic
programs. When the district provides transportation to and from an away competition, game, event
or exhibition and requires district students to use district transportation, home education students
shall be required to use the transportation provided by the district.

Guidelines

Students attending home education programs shall be given an equal opportunity to compete for
positions and participate in district extracurricular activities and interscholastic athletic programs,
including, as applicable, Junior Reserve Officers' Training Corps (JROTC) units.[6]

A home education student may participate in extracurricular activities and interscholastic athletic
programs only at the school building the student would be assigned to if the student was enrolled in
the school district.

Prior to trying-out or joining an activity, a home education student shall submit required documents
and written verification of eligibility to the building principal or designee.
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To be considered in attendance in accordance with Board policy, the home education student must
participate in a full, normally scheduled academic program, in accordance with the planned home
education program and submitted documentation.[5][7]

The following conditions shall govern participation in the district’s extracurricular activities and
interscholastic athletic programs by home education students, who shall:

1. Be a resident of the school district.

2. Meet the required eligibility criteria.[3][4]

3. Maintain appropriate insurance coverage, consistent with the coverage requirements for district
students.[4]

4. Comply with Board policies and school rules and regulations regarding extracurricular activities,
interscholastic athletics, and student discipline.[3][4][8]

5. Comply with policies, rules and regulations, or their equivalent, of the activity’s governing
organization.[1][2]

6. Meet attendance and reporting requirements established for all participants of the activity or
program.[7]

7. Meet the requirements for physical examinations and physical fitness and any height and/or
weight restrictions.[1][4]

8. Comply with all requirements and directives of the district staff, coaches and administrators
involved with the extracurricular activity or interscholastic athletic program.

Delegation of Responsibility

The building principal or designee shall ensure that home education students have access to
information regarding the district’s extracurricular activities and interscholastic athletic programs.

The building principal or designee shall receive and review verification from the parent/guardian that
a student has met and continues to meet the established eligibility criteria for an extracurricular
activity or interscholastic athletic program.

The building principal or designee shall distribute information regarding eligibility criteria and student
participation in extracurricular activities and interscholastic athletics to all affected by them.

BoardDocs® Pro https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/jsasd/Board.nsf/Private?open&login#

2 of 2 11/16/2021, 11:49 AM



Book Board Policy Manual

Section 100 Programs

Title Independent Study

Code 118

Status

Legal 1. 22 PA Code 4.4

2. 22 PA Code 4.24

22 PA Code 4.12

Purpose

The Board shall consider approval of a course of independent study for a properly qualified student,
as recommended by the Superintendent, on the condition that the student shall demonstrate
achievement of established educational goals and academic standards as a result of participation
in the independent study.

Authority

The Board shall approve each course of independent study and may designate the number of credits
toward graduation to be awarded upon successful completion of each course, except that the Board
reserves the right to assign no credit for an approved course.[1][2]

Courses of independent study may not be limited to participation by a single student but
may involve a group of students, subject to Board approval.

Each course of independent study must meet the requirements of applicable laws and regulations.

Delegation of Responsibility

The Superintendent or designee shall develop administrative regulations to implement
independent study programs.

The Superintendent shall prepare recommendations for Board approval of courses of
independent study, based on the recommendation of the building principal.
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Jersey Shore Area School District PA 2021-2025  Page 1 
 

ESS Northeast, LLC  

SUBSTITUTE STAFF PLACEMENT AGREEMENT 

 This is an Agreement, entered into as of November 2, 2021, by and between ESS 

Northeast, LLC (the “Company”) located at 800 North Kings Highway, Suite 405, Cherry Hill, 

New Jersey 08034 and the Jersey Shore Area School District located at 175 A & P Drive Jersey 

Shore, PA 17740 (hereinafter referred to as “LEA” for Local Education Agency). 

Background 

 

 The Company is in the business of providing substitute teachers for LEAs, as well as other 

related staffing services. The LEA desires to engage the services of the Company on the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

 NOW THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound and acknowledging the receipt of 

adequate consideration, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Provision of Substitute Staff. The Company shall be the exclusive provider of substitute 

teachers and other staff listed in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter “Substitute Staff”) to fill positions at 

the request of the LEA on an as-needed basis, using such request mechanism(s), policies and 

procedures as may be established by the Company from time to time. The Company makes no 

guarantee that it will be able to fill all requests made by the LEA. 

 

  1.1 The LEA agrees that the Company shall be the exclusive contract provider of 

Substitute Staff to the LEA. All or any placement of Substitute Staff shall be made pursuant to this 

Agreement and the processes and procedures established by the Company, be paid by the 

Company, and be invoiced back to the LEA by Company. 

 

  1.2 The LEA will provide a list of staff who the LEA has employed prior to the 

Agreement and whom the LEA desires to remain in the pool of Substitute Staff assigned by the 

Company to the LEA. The LEA shall provide a written list of such personnel and may update said 

list, by written addition or deletion of all changes, as appropriate. If the LEA was serviced by 

another vendor prior to this Agreement, the LEA will also make a good faith effort to produce a 

list of staff who provided services through this vendor. Subject to the interview, training, 

background checks and certification requirements included elsewhere in the Agreement, and 

normal employee responsibilities attendant to employment, the Company will accept such persons 

for assignment to the LEA. However, as part of the transition process, the LEA certifies that the 

aforementioned former Substitute Staff of the LEA meet the state requirements to serve as 

Substitute Staff (ex. Criminal history, TB Test) for the first 90 days after Company begins services, 

unless Company is otherwise notified by LEA. The LEA acknowledges that the Substitute Staff 

will be ineligible to accept substitute assignments after said 90 day period if they are determined 

to be non-compliant with the laws governing educational employees in the State, which shall be 

Company’s responsibility to determine pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. LEA further agrees 

to forward to Company any report of criminal activity regarding these Substitute Staff from local, 

state or federal law enforcement or other governmental authorities. 
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2. Treatment of Substitute Staff as Employees of the Company All Substitute Staff provided 

by the Company will be treated by the LEA as employees of the Company, and not as employees 

of the LEA, for all purposes, including but not limited to Federal and State income tax purposes. 

Without limiting the preceding sentence: 

 

  2.1 The Company shall maintain all necessary personnel and payroll records for the 

Substitute Staff; 

  2.2 The LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of the wages and fringe 

benefits (if any) of the Substitute Staff; the Company shall withhold applicable taxes from the 

wages of the Substitute Staff, and shall be responsible for any payroll tax liabilities of an 

“employer” with respect to the Substitute Staff;  

  2.3 The Company shall provide applicable workers’ compensation insurance 

coverage for the Substitute Staff in such amounts as may be required by law; and 

  2.4 Substitute Staff shall not be eligible for tenure with the LEA or be entitled to 

participate in any of the LEA’s employee benefit plans, including pension, 403(b), profit sharing, 

retirement, deferred compensation, welfare, insurance, disability, bonus, vacation pay, severance 

pay and other similar plans, programs and agreements, whether or not reduced to writing. 

  2.5. In order to provide certain Substitute Staff who are obtaining the required initial 

or renewal State certifications, depending upon state requirements, the LEA recognizes that it may 

be required to execute certificate/permit/license applications and other related documents, such as 

a criminal history request as a representative of or on behalf of the Company. If necessary, the 

LEA designates the Company as its designee to submit a Substitute Staff’s credentials to the county 

or state department of education office to obtain the Substitute Staff certifications. The LEA 

recognizes that it may be required to execute certain documents to allow the Company to perform 

its function as its designee. In such instances, the LEA is not responsible for any of the obligations 

of the Company as the employer included in this Paragraph 2. 

 

3. The Company’s Obligations  

 

  3.1 The Company will act in good faith to provide Substitute Staff who, if needed or 

applicable, (a) hold a current license and certification for the positions requested by the LEA, (b) 

have had a completed criminal history and child abuse background check as required by law and/or 

the applicable Department of Education, (c) have appropriate health screenings, inoculations and 

tuberculosis testing as required by the state and (d) who shall render services in accordance with 

applicable laws and procedures of the state and this Agreement.   

 

  3.2 In selecting Substitute Staff, the Company shall apply such screening and 

evaluation criteria as it may determine in its sole discretion and as may be required by the 

applicable law of the jurisdiction in which the services of Substitute Staff will be performed. The 

Company will conduct any additional screening that may be mutually agreed by the Company and 

the LEA, with an appropriate increase in the Company’s fees, to be agreed to in advance, in writing 

by the LEA.   

  3.3 The Company seeks to provide Substitute Staff that are trained for the requested 
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positions.  The Company will provide Substitute Staff training as required by the State, including 

as applicable, classroom management, general rules and procedures applicable to the position, and 

other pertinent matters prior to any assignment of said Substitute Staff. For existing LEA staff, the 

Company shall provide training as requested by the LEA for a fee equal to the Company’s actual 

cost. 

  3.4 The Company expects that the Substitute Staff assigned to the LEA will perform 

their services satisfactorily. If the LEA notifies the Company via the company electronic portal 

that a Substitute Staff has not performed satisfactorily within the reasonable discretion of the LEA, 

along with the clear reasons therefor, the Company will honor the LEA’s request not to assign 

specific Substitute Staff. This section will in no way affect the right of Company, in its sole 

discretion as employer, to hire, assign, reassign, discipline and/or terminate its own employees. 

The LEA understands that declining the services of a specific Substitute Staff may result in the 

Company’s inability to secure an acceptable alternate if timely notice of the request is not provided.   

4.  The LEA’s Obligations. In connection with Substitute Staff provided by the Company 

pursuant to this Agreement, the LEA shall: 

 

  4.1 Provide information to the Substitute Staff as needed to allow the Substitute Staff 

to fully understand the duties and responsibilities of the placement and promptly report to 

Company any suspicious, unusual, inappropriate behavior or unsatisfactory performance; 

  4.2 Provide a safe and suitable workplace that complies with all applicable 

governmental safety and health standards, statutes, and regulations; 

  4.3 Provide Substitute Staff with (i) adequate information, training, and safety 

equipment with respect to hazardous substances and any inherent dangers of the workplace 

(including known violent students,  as allowed by applicable law), (ii) emergency procedures, and (iii) 

school rules and protocols, policies and procedures regarding student disciplinary actions, and 

confidentiality of student records. Further, the LEA will provide all Substitute Staff with any 

training appropriate to the needs, duties, responsibilities or knowledge unique to the LEA or 

otherwise different than would generally be appropriate in other LEAs. 

  4.4 Not assign Substitute Staff  to assignments which (i) have sole custody of a single 

student for an extended period without LEA oversight, (ii) have sole responsibility for more than 

one classroom of students at a time, (iii) administer or maintain custody of any student 

medications, (iv) have custody of cash, negotiable valuables, merchandise, credit cards, check 

writing materials, keys or similar property, except for student lunch money that may be collected 

in the normal course of business, (v) use any vehicle on behalf of the LEA; (vi) work more than 

eight (8) hours in a day or more than forty (40) hour per week without notice to Company; 

  4.5 Assign Substitute Staff only to tasks for which they have been requested, unless 

written consent has been given by the Company.  Heavy labor, lifting, or physical activity is 

prohibited unless required and accepted in the job description. 

  4.6 Not assign Substitute Staff to travel or perform duties off the normal school 

premises of the LEA except for class trips which are supervised by an LEA teacher; 

  4.7 If Substitute Staff is assigned duties in connection with the LEA’s computer 
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systems, maintain appropriate password security and backup copies of all data; 

  4.8 Maintain appropriate written internal control policies and procedures to ensure 

the confidentiality of all student records and appropriately limit the access of Substitute Staff to 

such records;  

  4.9 Not promise any Substitute Staff an increased rate of compensation; 

  4.10 Comply with any reasonable restrictions imposed by the Company on the 

responsibilities to be assigned to any Substitute Staff;  

  4.11 Approve and sign paper or electronic forms supplied by the Company 

documenting the amount of time worked by Substitute Staff or, if representatives of the LEA are 

not available to approve and sign such forms, authorize such forms to be executed by 

representatives of the Company on behalf of the LEA; 

  4.12 Be responsible for keeping the Company promptly informed by email (if 

available) of all Substitute Staff on-site changes and any changes in the LEA or building 

supervisory contact information;  

  4.13 Comply with all Company policies and procedures to accurately invoice the 

LEA, process the daily record keeping and other tasks necessary for the Company to administer 

and track Substitute Staff, including but not limited to, sign in and out procedures and related 

records; 

  4.14 The LEA shall be solely responsible to control staff absences and any budgetary 

impact resulting therefrom;  

  4.15 LEA represents that its actions under this Agreement do not violate its 

obligations under any agreement that LEA has with any labor union;  

  4.16 LEA shall cooperate with Company with respect to Company’s recruiting efforts 

and activities, including but not limited to, (i) promptly sharing applications for LEA positions 

with Company; (ii) adding a link on the front page and employment page of the LEA’s website to 

Company’s website, and (iii) reasonably assisting Company with advertising positions on LEA 

social media accounts;  

  4.17   If allowable by state procurement law, other LEAs may utilize this Agreement 

if mutually agreeable to Company.  

  4.18   LEA shall cooperate and coordinate with Company with respect to Company’s 

development and installation of Company’s information technology (IT) systems for the LEA. The 

LEA understands that failure to cooperate in this regard may lead to a delay in services.   

 

  4.19 In the event of a complaint concerning Substitute Staff, LEA shall provide 

Company with a written incident report. Company and LEA agree to cooperate, exchange 

information, and reasonably permit each other’s involvement in any investigatory activities or 

proceedings to the extent allowable by law.   
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5. Indemnification and Limitations of Liability. 

 

  5.1 Indemnification of the LEA by the Company. The Company shall indemnify 

and hold the LEA’s Board, and its agents, employees and Board members harmless from and 

against all claims or losses incurred, including reasonable attorney’s fees, that are proximately 

caused by the acts or omissions of the Company, Substitute Staff, or other employees or authorized 

agents of the Company, or by the Company’s breach of this Agreement, except that such 

indemnification shall not apply to any claims or losses for which the Company is entitled to 

indemnification by the LEA. In addition, the Company’s indemnification for any and all claims 

here under this Agreement shall be expressly limited to the extent of insurance coverage that is 

paid to the Company for such claims, if any, under the Company’s insurance policies required 

under this Agreement.  

 

  5.2 Indemnification of the Company by the LEA. The LEA shall indemnify and 

hold the Company harmless from and against all claims or losses incurred by the Company, 

including reasonable attorney’s fees, (i) that are proximately caused by the acts or omissions of 

the LEA or its employees or authorized agents, or by the LEA’s breach of this Agreement; or (ii) 

arise from any injury to Substitute Staff or other persons on the premises of the LEA or while 

performing services on behalf of the LEA and not caused by the acts or omissions of the Company, 

Substitute Staff, or other employees or authorized agents of the Company.  

   5.3 Notification; Right to Defend. A party incurring any claim or loss for which 

indemnification may be provided pursuant to this section 5 shall promptly notify the other party 

in writing. The recipient of such notice may, at its own cost and expense, thereupon assume the 

defense of any third party claim using counsel reasonably satisfactory to the notifying party. 

   5.4 Limitation of Damages. Under no circumstances shall the Company be liable 

for special, indirect, consequential, punitive, expectancy, lost profit or goodwill damages, or for 

damages caused by the unsatisfactory performance of Substitute Staff that does not result in a 

finally adjudicated claim of damages against the LEA brought by a third party.  

   5.5 Complete Agreement. The parties agree that this section 5 sets forth their 

complete agreement with respect to any possible indemnification claim, and waive their right to 

assert any common-law indemnification or contribution claim against the other.     

6. Fees and Payment. 

  6.1.  The Company’s Pricing Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part of 

this Agreement, is accepted by the LEA. The Company shall submit to the LEA a standard weekly 

invoice showing in reasonable detail the services provided. For hourly positions, LEA shall pay 

for all time actually worked by Substitute Staff, not scheduled time. Company will comply with 

any federal, state or local laws, if any, requiring paid leave. If federal, state or local laws require 

paid leave, LEA will reimburse Company for paid leave days taken by Company staff for a district 

assignment per the service rate set forth in the pricing exhibit. 

 

  6.2 Advance Payment.  LEA will pay an Advance Payment to Company within five 

(5) days prior to the start of LEA’s school year equal to 1/10 of Company’s projected annual 

billings for services provided to the LEA. Company will not provide Substitute Staff to LEA until 
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the Advance Payment is received.  Company will apply the Advance Payment to the invoices for 

the final month of the LEA’s school year.  If there is a balance owed to Company following 

application of the Advance Payment, LEA will satisfy the invoice(s) pursuant to Section 6.7. 

Likewise, if there is a positive balance remaining following application of the Advance Payment, 

Company will apply any remaining monies to the Advance Payment due for the following school 

year or, if the Agreement is terminated, refund the balance to the LEA within thirty (30) days of 

termination date.   

 

  6.3 Changes to Pricing Plan. In the event that the LEA requests to increase the 

established pay rate for Substitute Staff from that specifically listed on Exhibit A, or if the LEA 

requests to establish a new Substitute Staff classification or new pay rate to be paid to some or all 

of the Substitute Staff not identified on Exhibit A (e.g., for improved recruitment, retention or for 

other reasons), the billing rate to the LEA shall be determined by using the markup used on Exhibit 

A. The LEA shall provide the Company fourteen (14) days prior written notice of its request to 

change an existing pay rate or establish a new Substitute Staff classification and pay rate.   

The Company may change the Pricing Plan contained on Exhibit A in the event that government 

(local, state or federal) mandated labor costs, including but not limited to, employee healthcare or 

family leave benefits, minimum wage, payroll taxes, or workers compensation rates, which are 

required by law, regulation or mandate are enacted, implemented, become effective or are 

increased after the date of this Agreement. The Pricing Plan shall be adjusted as of the effective 

date of the law, regulation or mandate to reflect the actual cost increase to the Company reasonably 

calculated on a direct or pro rata basis. For multi-year Agreements or whenever this Agreement is 

extended, the Pricing Plan will be modified to reflect a cost of living adjustment equal to the lesser 

of 3% or the applicable consumer price index rate for the LEA for the twelve months preceding 

the most recent quarterly rate.  

 

  6.4 Affordable Care Act. The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (“ACA”) 

became effective January 1, 2014. The ACA has a look back period that determines Substitute 

Staff eligibility for healthcare insurance coverage that shall begin on the beginning of this 

Agreement.  

The Company normally hires Substitute Staff as part time employees who will work on average 

less than 30 hours per week such that they are not eligible for healthcare benefits under the ACA.  

However, should the LEA in its discretion employ Substitute Staff to work directly for LEA in 

addition to the hours worked for Company (example: after school program director or coach), and 

the combined work hours of the Substitute Staff cause the Substitute Staff to be deemed eligible 

to receive healthcare benefits under the ACA, the LEA agrees to reimburse the Company’s cost of 

providing the minimum plan healthcare insurance coverage under the ACA.  

 

  6.5   Use or Employment of Substitute Staff by the LEA Directly. Company 

maintains the right to manage the schedule of its employees.  Accordingly, if the LEA engages the 

services of any Substitute Staff other than through the Company on a per-diem, hourly or other 

basis, whether for services covered in this Agreement or otherwise, the LEA shall promptly notify 

the Company in writing and provide all information as the Company may reasonably request. 

Furthermore, if LEA hires Substitute Staff for services which are provided by Company in 

accordance with this Agreement, for the lesser of the period for which such Company employee 
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is engaged or the term of this Agreement, the LEA shall calculate and pay to the Company any 

amounts due by using the daily or hourly markup used on Exhibit A. Failure of the LEA to 

promptly notify the Company that it has employed Substitute Staff may result in the Company 

continuing to pay wages to the Substitute Staff for assignments which are not worked.  In such 

event, the LEA shall be liable to Company for all costs, including wages paid to the Substitute 

Staff, lost markup, and reasonable collection costs.  

If LEA hires Substitute Staff as a full-time employee of the LEA during the term of this Agreement, 

LEA shall pay to Company the sum of $2,500.00. This payment is to reimburse Company for 

recruitment expenses and lost revenue.  This fee shall not be due if the Substitute Staff was a 

“district original”, i.e. previously working for the LEA at the start of this Agreement, or if the 

Substitute Staff has worked ninety (90) or more days of assignments as Substitute Staff for the 

LEA. 

  6.6   Non-Solicitation of Company Corporate Staff.  LEA agrees that during the 

term of this Agreement and for a period of 12 months after the termination of the Agreement, 

without obtaining the prior written consent of the Company, neither the LEA nor any of its 

affiliates shall directly or indirectly, for itself or on behalf of another person or entity solicit for 

employment or otherwise induce, influence or encourage to terminate employment with the 

Company or employ or engage as an independent contractor any corporate employee of the 

Company (i.e. employee working for Company in a role other than as “Substitute Staff “) with 

whom the LEA had  contact or who became known to the LEA in connection with this Agreement.  

For the purposes of this section, “Company” also includes Source 4 Solutions LLC. 

 

  6.7 Payment. The LEA shall pay the Company (ESS) upon receipt of invoice via an 

ACH Debit initiated by Company.  If the LEA is unable to provide an ACH initiated by Company, 

the LEA can elect to provide an ACH or wire transfer.  Payment not received within fifteen (15) 

business days after receipt of invoice will be subject to a $25.00 late fee and 1% per month service 

charge. Any dispute of billing must be communicated to Company within 10 days of receipt of 

invoice.  Any adjustments less than 10% of the invoice will not delay payment and will be applied 

to the following invoice. LEA shall be liable for all of the Company’s reasonable costs of 

collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 

  6.8  Sales and Use Tax. The LEA represents that it is currently exempt from any 

sales and use taxes or similar governmental charges or value added tax imposed with respect to 

the services provided by the Company.  If any such taxes or charges are otherwise due or are 

imposed or become due, they will be the responsibility of the LEA.  

7.  Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on August 1, 2022 and shall remain in 

effect through June 30, 2025.  Thereafter, the Agreement shall automatically renew on a yearly 

basis after the term unless either party provides written notice of termination at least ninety (90) 

days prior to the end of the fiscal school year. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, either party 

may terminate this Agreement if (i) the other party breaches a material provision of this Agreement 

and such breach is not cured within 30 days following written notice or (ii) in the case of a breach 

that by the terms of the breach cannot be cured within 30 days, the breaching party has not 

instituted measures to cure such breach within 10 days and fully cured such breach within 90 days. 

Further, the Company has the right to terminate this Agreement should any student or LEA 

employee physically or verbally assault or injure a Company’s employee, and the LEA does not 
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respond to the incident to the Company’s satisfaction.  In the event either party terminates this 

Agreement, the LEA shall pay all amounts due under the terms of this Agreement to the Company 

for services provided through the date of termination. 

 

8. Insurance Coverage. Each party shall, at its own cost and expense, maintain insurance 

coverage reasonably appropriate for the activities it conducts and the risks it assumes. The 

insurance coverage maintained by the Company shall include: 

 

   8.1 Workers’ compensation coverage of such types and in such amounts as may be 

required by the laws of the jurisdiction in which the services of Substitute Staff are performed; 

   8.2 Commercial general liability coverage, including personal injury, blanket 

contractual liability, and broad form property damage, with a $2,000,000 combined single limit 

per occurrence;  

   8.3 Umbrella coverage with a $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence. 

9. Confidentiality & Non-Disparagement. During the course of the business relationship, 

each party may be given access to proprietary or confidential information of the other, including, 

but not limited to, pricing policies, the identity and social security numbers of employees, and 

business policies and systems (“Confidential Information”). Each party shall hold Confidential 

Information of the other party in confidence, treating such Confidential Information with no less 

care than it treats its own, and shall not disclose such Confidential Information to any third party 

or use such Confidential Information for any purpose other than as contemplated by this 

Agreement. Upon termination of this Agreement, or sooner if requested by either party, each party 

shall return all Confidential Information of the other party in its possession, without retaining 

copies of such Confidential Information. This section shall not apply to information (i) that is in 

the public domain, or (ii) required to be disclosed by law or legal process. 

 At no time during or after the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years 

thereafter shall either party directly or indirectly disparage the commercial business, professional 

or financial, as the case may be, reputation of the other party or any of their employees, 

management, owners or officers.  

 

10.  Absentee Management System; Data and Intellectual Property. To provide Substitute 

Staff, Company may utilize its own or the LEA’s absentee management system (hereinafter 

“System”) as it is agreed between the parties. Under either method, the Company owns all 

employee and absence management information data related to Substitute Staff. If the Company 

utilizes the LEA’s System, the LEA shall allow and authorize the Company full access to the 

System (sometimes referred to as “Super User” status) throughout the term of the Agreement and 

for thirty days after termination.  In the event this Agreement is terminated, Company shall have 

thirty (30) days to remove Company data from the System.  All Company data, intellectual 

property, including processes, procedures and knowhow, trademarks and copyrights, are and shall 

remain the sole property of the Company.  

11. Miscellaneous 

 11.1 Amendments; Waivers. This Agreement may be amended as agreed between the 

parties. No amendment, modification, or waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be 
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binding unless in writing and signed by the party against whom the operation of such amendment, 

modification, or waiver is sought to be enforced. No delay in the exercise of any right shall be 

deemed a waiver thereof, nor shall the waiver of a right or remedy in a particular instance constitute 

a waiver of such right or remedy generally. 

 11.2 Notices. Any notice or document required or permitted to be given under this 

Agreement shall be deemed to be given on the date such notice is (i) deposited in the United States 

mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, (ii) deposited with a commercial 

overnight delivery service with delivery fees paid, or (iii) transmitted by facsimile or electronic 

mail with transmission acknowledgment, to the principal business address of the recipient or such 

other address or addresses as the parties may designate from time to time by notice satisfactory 

under this section. A copy of any notice to the Company shall be sent to the attention of the 

Company’s president at the regular business address of the Company. 

 11.3 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the internal laws of the LEA’s 

state without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of laws. Each party hereby consents to the 

personal jurisdiction of the federal or state courts located in LEA’s County, and agrees that all 

disputes arising from this Agreement shall be prosecuted in such courts. Each party hereby agrees 

that any such court shall have in personam jurisdiction over such party and consents to service of 

process by notice sent by regular mail to the address set forth above and/or by any means 

authorized by the law of the LEA’s state. 

 11.4 Language Construction. The language of this Agreement shall be construed in 

accordance with its fair meaning and not for or against any party. The parties acknowledge that 

each party and its counsel have reviewed and had the opportunity to participate in the drafting of 

this Agreement and, accordingly, that the rule of construction that would resolve ambiguities in 

favor of non-drafting parties shall not apply to the interpretation of this Agreement. 

 11.5 Payment of Fees. In the event of a dispute arising under this Agreement finally 

resolved through litigation or alternate dispute resolution, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 

recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

 11.6 Force Majeure. Neither party shall be responsible for delays or failure to perform 

caused by acts of God (including fire, flood, storm, or other natural disturbances), war, civil war, 

riot, epidemic, acts of foreign enemies, terrorist activities, government sanction, strikes or other 

labor disputes (it being specifically understood that the existence of any picket line by a collective 

bargaining unit shall be considered as within this definition of force majeure), interruption or 

failure of electric, telephone or similar service or other causes beyond such party’s control.  

 11.7 Signature in Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed to be a fully-executed original. 

 11.8 Signature by Facsimile. An original signature transmitted by facsimile shall be 

deemed to be original for purposes of this Agreement. 

 11.9 Assignment. No party to this Agreement shall assign its rights or duties hereunder, 

without the prior written consent of the other parties, except that the Company may assign its rights 

and duties in connection with a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of its business 

and may assign e-learning solutions for distance instruction to Proximity Learning, Inc., an ESS 
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company. 

 11.10  No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this 

Agreement, this Agreement is made for the sole benefit of the parties. No other persons shall have 

any rights or remedies by reason of this Agreement against any of the parties or shall be considered 

to be third party beneficiaries of this Agreement in any way. 

 11.11  Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the respective heirs, legal 

representatives and permitted assigns of each party, and shall be binding upon the heirs, legal 

representatives, successors and assigns of each party. 

 11.12  Titles and Captions. All article, section and paragraph titles and captions contained 

in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not deemed a part of the context hereof. 

 11.13 Pronouns and Plurals. All pronouns and any variations thereof are deemed to refer 

to the masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plural as the identity of the person or persons may 

require. 

 11.14  Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties with respect to its subject matter and supersedes all prior discussions, agreements, 

understandings and negotiations. The LEA and Company agree that in the event that any provision 

of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable for any reason, such invalidity or 

unenforceability shall attach only to such provision and shall not affect or render invalid any other 

provision of this Agreement. 

 

 

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first set forth 

above. 

 

    ESS Northeast, LLC 

 

 By ____________________________ 

             Steve Gritzuk, Chief Operating Officer 

 

 

 

 Date___________________________ 

  

 

                                                                                                                       

Jersey Shore Area School District 

 

 

 By ____________________________ 

  Signature 

 

  ____________________________ 

  Name and Title 

 

 

 Date___________________________
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EXHIBIT A 

 

PRICING PAID BY THE LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY TO COMPANY 

 

 

Substitute Classification             Pay to 

Substitute        

Discount 

Rate 

2022-2023        

Discount 

Rate 

2023-2024      

Discount 

Rate 

2024-2025      

Rules 

Full Day Substitute Teacher $110.00 $145.64 $146.19 $146.74 
 

Half Day Substitute Teacher $55.00 $72.82 $73.10 $73.37 
 

Full Day Long Term  

Substitute Teacher 

$175.00 $231.70 $232.58 $233.45 Administered on day 1 of 

assignments projected over 

90 days 

Half Day Long Term  

Substitute Teacher 

$87.50 $115.85 $116.29 $116.73 Administered on day 1 of 

assignments projected over 

90 days 

Full Day Building Based 

Substitute Teacher 

$120.00 $158.88 $159.48 $160.08 Administered on day 1 of 

enrollment in the program 

Half Day Building Based 

Substitute Teacher 

$60.00 $79.44 $79.74 $80.04 Administered on day 1 of 

enrollment in the program 

Substitute Teacher (Hourly) $13.33 $17.65 $17.72 $17.78 No lunch deduction 

Substitute Clerical (Hourly) $8.50 $11.25 $11.30 $11.34 After 8 hours; 30 minute 

lunch break 

Substitute Lunchroom Monitor 

(Hourly) 

$8.50 $11.25 $11.30 $11.34 No lunch deduction 

Full Day Substitute Nurse $100.00 $132.40 $132.90 $133.40 
 

Half Day Substitute Nurse $50.00 $66.20 $66.45 $66.70 
 

Substitute Custodian (Hourly) $10.00 $13.24 $13.29 $13.34 After 8.5 hours; 30 minute 

lunch break 

Building Based Substitute 

Custodian (Hourly) 

$10.00 $13.24 $13.29 $13.34 After 8.5 hours; 30 minute 

lunch break 

Full Day Substitute 

Paraprofessional 

$69.38 $91.86 $92.21 $92.55 
 

Half Day Substitute 

Paraprofessional 

$34.69 $45.93 $46.10 $46.28 
 

      

 

 

 

 

 







JERSEY SHORE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LEARNING | GROWING | SUCCEEDING 

 

District Service Center                                                                  Dr. Brian Ulmer, Superintendent 

175 A&P Drive                                                                                                Office: 570.398.1561 

Jersey Shore, PA 17740                                                      Fax: 570.398.5089 

 

 
 
 

November 2, 2021 
 
Support Staff recruitment-pay for clearances - $100 based on attached calculation — 
  

• Hourly staff and aides will receive the first half on the last pay of the next quarter following day 
90 and will receive the second half on the last pay of the next quarter following day 180.  

• The employee will submit, with supervisor’s approval, the district form certifying they have 
reached day 90 and day 180.  These will be submitted to payroll.  

 

 

 



Book Board Policy Manual

Section 300 Employees

Title Sabbatical Leave

Code 338

Status

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 1166

2. 24 P.S. 1167

3. 24 P.S. 1171

4. 24 P.S. 1168

5. 24 P.S. 1170

6. 24 P.S. 1169

Adopted January 25, 2010

Authority

This policy shall establish the district's parameters for granting sabbatical leaves for restoration of
health to certificated administrative and professional employees.

The Board shall grant sabbatical leaves to eligible administrative and professional employees for the
purpose of restoration of health and for other purposes at the discretion of the Board.[1]

The Board reserves the right to specify the conditions under which sabbatical leaves for restoration of
health or other purposes may be taken, consistent with law.

Guidelines

Eligibility

To qualify for sabbatical leave, an eligible employee shall have completed ten (10) years of
satisfactory service in the public schools of the Commonwealth; at least five (5) consecutive years of
such service shall be in this school district.[1]

A sabbatical leave may be taken for a half or full school term or for two (2) half school terms during a
period of two (2) years, at the employee's option.[1]

The total number of administrative employees on sabbatical leave at any one time shall not exceed
ten percent (10%) of the number of eligible employees. The total number of professional employees
on sabbatical leave at any one time shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the number of eligible
employees.[2]

Application
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Requests for sabbatical leave shall be submitted on the approved district form and forwarded with
medical documentation to the Superintendent or designee as soon as possible.

The Board shall review each application for sabbatical leave and shall approve those meeting the
requirements of Board policy and applicable law.

Documentation

Applicants for sabbatical leave shall submit with the application form a supporting medical statement
and recommendation from his/her physician.

At both the approximate midpoint of the leave and at least thirty (30) days prior to the conclusion of
the leave, a physician's statement shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee, indicating
the extent to which the purpose of the leave has been achieved and evaluating the health status of
the employee relative to his/her ability to return to employment.[3]

The Board reserves the right to require at its own expense additional examinations and reports by
physicians of its choice to determine whether the leave is being used for the purpose for which it was
granted.[3]

Commitment of Employee

Acceptance of a sabbatical leave incurs a commitment by the employee to return to active duty in
this district immediately following the sabbatical leave for one (1) full school term, unless prevented
by illness or physical disability.[4]

The Board reserves the right to require at its own expense additional examinations and reports by
physicians of its choice to determine the employee's ability to return to work.

Commitment of Employer

At the expiration of the sabbatical leave, the employee shall be reinstated in the same position held
at the time of the granting of the leave.[4]

Time on sabbatical leave shall be counted as time on the job for purposes of seniority and for
retirement fund purposes, but for no other purpose.[5]

Compensation

During the period of sabbatical leave, an employee shall be compensated, per current school code, at
least one-half the salary to which s/he would have been entitled had the employee not taken leave
and the current PSERS contribution requirement.[6]

A sabbatical leave granted for restoration of health shall also serve as a leave of absence without pay
from all other school activities.[1]

Compensable employment may not be engaged in while the employee is on sabbatical leave.
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 300 Employees

Title Compensated Professional Leaves

Code 338.1

Status

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 1166.1

2. 24 P.S. 522.2

3. 24 P.S. 1166

4. 24 P.S. 1167

5. 24 P.S. 1171

6. 24 P.S. 1168

7. 24 P.S. 522.1

8. 24 P.S. 1170

9. 24 P.S. 1169

Adopted January 25, 2010

Purpose

This policy shall establish the district's parameters for granting professional development and
classroom occupational exchange leaves for certificated administrative and professional employees.

Definitions

Professional Development Leave - shall be defined as a leave of absence granted for the purpose
of improving professional competency or obtaining a professional certificate or commission. Such
leave shall be directly related to an employee's professional responsibilities, as determined by the
Board, and be restricted to activities required by state regulation or law.[1]

Classroom Occupational Exchange Leave - shall be defined as a leave of absence granted for the
purpose of acquiring practical work experience in business, industry or government.[2]

Authority

The Board shall have sole authority to adopt and enforce policy establishing the conditions for
approval of a professional development leave for eligible employees. All requests for such leave shall
be subject to review by the Board. The Board may approve or reject a proposed plan for professional
development leave.[1]

The Board may grant a leave to eligible employees for classroom occupational exchange leave for the
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specified purpose.[2]

Guidelines

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT LEAVE

Eligibility

To qualify for professional development leave, an eligible employee shall have completed ten (10)
years of satisfactory service in the public schools of the Commonwealth; at least five (5) consecutive
years of such service shall be in this school district.[3]

A leave for professional development may be taken for a half or full school term or for two (2) half
school terms during a period of two (2) years, at the employee's option.[3]

The total number of administrative employees on such leaves of absence shall not exceed ten percent
(10%) of the number of eligible employees. The total number of professional employees on such
leaves of absence shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the number of eligible employees.[4]

Application

Professional development leaves shall be granted only to employees participating in an academic
program for the purpose of retaining a professional certificate or commission, further preparation and
improvement in an area(s) of certification, additional certification, attaining other appropriate and
identifiable educational positions within the school district, or as the Board may require, and upon the
recommendation of the Superintendent.[1]

Requests for professional development leave shall be submitted on the district form and forwarded
with a detailed plan to the Superintendent.

All required application materials shall be submitted by April 1 for the following school year and by
October 1 for the following semester.

Documentation

Applicants for professional development leave shall submit with the application form a detailed plan
describing the professional development activities to be undertaken and a statement specifying the
benefits of the leave to the employee and the school district. The plan shall provide sufficient
information to permit the Board to adequately evaluate the request.[1]

The Board may at any time require additional information from the employee in order to assist the
Board in determining whether the leave is being used for the purpose for which it was granted.[5]

The minimum requirements for leave for a half school term shall consist of any one or a combination
of the following:[1]

1. Nine (9) graduate credits.

2. Twelve (12) undergraduate credits.

3. One hundred eighty (180) hours of professional development activities.

The minimum requirements for leave for a full school term shall consist of any one or a combination
of the following:[1]

1. Eighteen (18) graduate credits.

2. Twenty-four (24) undergraduate credits.
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3. Three hundred sixty (360) hours of professional development activities.

Applicants who propose to take graduate or undergraduate credits shall submit notification of
acceptance and enrollment from an accredited institution of higher learning for study in courses
approved by the Superintendent. The employee shall successfully complete the approved courses and
receive passing grades. Upon return from professional development leave, the employee shall submit
to the Superintendent within the first month an official transcript of all courses completed. Failure to
receive passing grades or to submit required transcripts on time shall result in forfeiture of monies
paid by the district.[1][5]

Applicants who propose to undertake professional development activities shall submit to the Board a
detailed plan listing the specific activities. Upon return from professional development leave, the
employee shall submit to the Superintendent within the first month a formal report describing the
educational activities pursued and their benefits and relevancy. Failure to submit required reports on
time shall result in forfeiture of monies paid by the district.[1][5]

Commitment of Employee

Acceptance of professional development leave incurs a commitment by the employee to return to
active duty in this district immediately following the leave for one (1) full school term, unless
prevented by illness or physical disability.[1][6]

Employees shall submit required reports on time or forfeit all compensation and benefits.

Commitment of Employer

At the expiration of the professional development leave, the employee shall be reinstated in the same
position held at the time of the granting of the leave.[6]

Time on professional development leave shall be counted as time on the job for purposes of seniority
and for retirement fund purposes, but for no other purpose.[7][8]

Compensation

During the period of professional development leave, an employee shall be compensated at least
one-half the salary to which s/he would have been entitled had the employee not taken leave.[9]

While on leave, the employee shall be entitled to insurance benefits provided other employees of a
similar classification.

A leave of absence granted for professional development shall also serve as a leave of absence
without pay from all other school activities.[3]

Compensable employment may not be engaged in while the employee is on professional development
leave.  

CLASSROOM OCCUPATIONAL EXCHANGE LEAVE

Application

Requests for classroom occupational exchange leave shall be submitted on the approved district form
and forwarded with appropriate documentation to the Superintendent.

All required application materials shall be submitted by April 1 for the following school year.

Documentation
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Applicants for classroom occupational exchange leave shall submit with the application form a
statement from the employer agreeing to the terms and conditions of the leave, as specified in Board
policy.

Upon return from such leave, the employee shall submit to the Board a final report detailing the work
experience and its benefits.[2][1][5]

Commitment of Employee

Acceptance of classroom occupational exchange leave incurs a commitment by the employee to
return to active duty in this district immediately following the leave for one (1) full school term,
unless prevented by illness or physical disability.[6]

Commitment of Employer

At the expiration of the classroom occupational exchange leave, the employee shall be reinstated in
the same position held at the time of the granting of the leave.[6]

Time on classroom occupational exchange leave shall be counted as time on the job for purposes of
seniority and for retirement fund purposes, but for no other purpose.[2]

Compensation

The business, industry or government to whom the employee is assigned during the leave shall fully
compensate the school district for all salary, wages, pension and retirement contributions, and other
benefits as if the employee were in full-time active service.[2]
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 300 Employees

Title Uncompensated Leave

Code 339

Status

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 1154

Adopted January 25, 2010

Authority

The Board recognizes that in certain situations an administrative, professional or classified employee
may request extended leave for personal reasons, and the district could benefit from the return of
the employee. This policy establishes parameters for granting uncompensated leaves of absence.

The Board reserves the right to specify the conditions under which uncompensated leave may be
taken. All applications for uncompensated leave require approval by the Board, upon
recommendation of the Superintendent.[1]

Uncompensated leave shall be granted in accordance with provisions of the administrative
compensation plan, individual contract, collective bargaining agreement or Board resolution.

Guidelines

Application

Requests for uncompensated leave shall be made on the district form to the Superintendent.

Special consideration will be given to emergencies.

Period of Leave

An uncompensated leave may be granted for a period of one (1) semester or one (1) school year.
Extensions shall be considered upon proper application.

Commitment of Employee

The employee granted an uncompensated leave of absence shall inform the Board of his/her
intentions prior to the scheduled return date.

Commitment of Employer

At the expiration of uncompensated leave, the employee shall be offered the same position
previously held or a like position to that previously held.
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Time on uncompensated leave shall not count as time on the job, and fringe benefits shall not be
provided unless the employee provides payment for benefits.
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 300 Employees

Title Benefits for Part-Time Employees

Code 341

Status

Legal 1. 24 Pa. C.S.A. 8301

24 Pa. C.S.A. 8301 et seq

Adopted January 25, 2010

Authority

Benefits for regularly employed part-time administrative, professional and classified employees shall
be determined in accordance with the terms of an administrative compensation plan, individual
contract, applicable collective bargaining agreement, or Board resolution.

Whenever regularly employed, part-time employees are entitled to fringe benefits normally provided
for full-time employees of the same classification, such benefits will be established at the time of
employment, and the manner of proration determined at that time.

Part-time employees shall be included in the School Employees' Retirement System upon reaching
either 500 hours or eighty (80) days of employment, in accordance with law.[1]
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 700 Property

Title Community Use of School Facilities

Code 707

Status

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 775

2. 24 P.S. 511

3. 10 P.S. 328.101 et seq

4. 61 PA Code 901.701

5. 35 P.S. 1223.5

6. 20 U.S.C. 7182

7. 20 U.S.C. 7183

8. Pol. 330 - Overtime

9. Pol. 804 - School Day

24 P.S. 779

22 PA Code 403.1

61 PA Code 901.1

20 U.S.C. 7181 et seq

20 U.S.C. 7905

Adopted October 12, 2015

Purpose

The Board recognizes that although the primary purpose of the school buildings, facilities and
property is to provide students with an appropriate learning environment, the Board may make
school facilities available to individuals and community groups without discrimination and in
accordance with this policy, provided that the use does not interfere with the educational programs of
the schools. This policy establishes conditions, restrictions and procedures for the use of school
facilities for nonschool-sponsored purposes.

Recognizing the community need for school facilities for recreational, social and educational
purposes, the Board has devised this policy which encourages public use of the district's facilities.
The Board believes that these endeavors are consistent with the spirit of the public schools. The
Board further believes that the district facilities should not be used for individual or corporate
financial gain.
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Authority

It is the intention of the Board that the school facilities will be available primarily for use by organized
residents and community groups within the boundaries of the district. These groups are permitted to
use school facilities when such use conforms to the established regulations and does not interfere
with the school programs or school maintenance. School facilities may not be used for any activity
and/or event forbidden by law or policy.

The Board believes that appropriate fees shall be assessed to the user to cover operation and
maintenance costs, particularly additional energy consumption and operating fees. The Board further
believes that time during the year must be allowed for detailed maintenance and cleaning of the
school facilities. Maintenance/cleaning has priority over public use of the school facilities during June,
July, and August. It is during this period that the schools are readied for the coming school year and
most maintenance is completed.

The Board directs that the use of school facilities may be granted to individuals and community
groups for one (1) of the following prioritized classifications:

Class A

1. District related non-profit organizations directly related to school-
sponsored activities or the support of educational activities in the district.
Examples include:  student clubs, yearbook and other organizations of a
similar purpose.

2. School-related activities, which may include PIAA events.

3. School-related non-profit organizations such as booster clubs, PTOs and
organizations of similar purpose.

Class B

1. Non-profit organizations unrelated to school activities that provide a
beneficial service to the citizens and community of the district as a whole.
Examples include: organizations such as the Jersey Shore Community
Band, Jersey Shore YMCA, Town Meeting, community youth programs, such
as Little League, or community adult programs. These organizations are
primarily located and residing within the district for the benefit of the
district's students and citizens.

2. Lycoming/Clinton region municipal and governmental organizations and
related organizations/branches.

Class C
1. Non-profit/non-school related organizations that provide a beneficial

service to the citizens and community of the district as a whole, but may
not be primarily located within the district.

Class D

1. For-profit groups, private interest groups and other organizations that are
not directly related to school activities or are not primarily located within
the district and are considered nonresident, but may have some beneficial
impact on the residents of the community.

2. Commercial and profit generating activities that have limited benefit for the
district or the community as a whole.

The Board shall establish a schedule of fees for the use of school facilities by approved groups.[1]

Delegation of Responsibility
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The Superintendent or designee shall implement administrative regulations or procedures for
requesting and granting permission for use of school facilities and shall distribute the necessary
information to individuals affected by them.

An application for use of school facilities may be disapproved by the Superintendent because of
noncompliance with established policy and procedures.

The food service director or designee shall be responsible for the general supervision of use of school
cafeterias with kitchens for functions requiring catering service.

Guidelines

A. General

1. This policy does not create any rights to the use of school buildings and grounds.

2. The Board reserves the right to refuse the use of school buildings and grounds for cause at any
time.

3. The Board reserves the right to revoke any permit that has heretofore been approved.

4. The availability of the school facilities shall at all times be subject to the conveniences,
requirements, and activities of the school.

5. The district reserves the right to assign necessary employees to staff the building at the
expense of the organization using the facilities.

6. The district reserves the right to refuse any application if personnel are not available to
accommodate the event(s).

B. Eligibility

1. School, school-related, community or civic/service and other organizations offering a program
of sound educational, civic, recreational, or cultural value that is instructive and beneficial are
eligible to use the school facilities. Governmental agencies may use school facilities for hearings
and public meetings. Religious organizations may hold worship services during non-school
hours.

2. At the secondary level, religious secular meetings that are student initiated and supervised by a
school employee may be permitted during non-instructional time. School employees who are
present, as monitors, may not direct, control, or participate in the meeting. Non-instructional
time occurs before school convenes in the morning and after school is dismissed in the
afternoon.

3. Non-school persons are prohibited from directing, conducting or regularly attending student-
initiated meetings of a religious or political nature.

4. Eligibility will be verified by administrative review. If eligibility is contested, the request will be
referred to the Board.

C. Ineligibility

1. The district has a compelling interest to shield its students and personnel from harassment as
well as vulgar, obscene and/or inflammatory speech or other similar activities that are not
compatible with the mission and function of the district. No organization shall utilize school
facilities for any purpose that would tend to violate these interests.

2. No meeting shall be held in or on school facilities for purposes that are essentially commercial
in nature.
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D. Definitions

1. School Organizations - Organizations whose primary purpose and function is support of
educational activities of the district. This includes student organizations, community education,
PTO, booster clubs and other citizen advisory groups approved by the Board.

2. Booster Club - An organization that promotes, assists or augments the mission of the district.
Acknowledgement by the district of such an organization’s existence is confirmed by the club
providing a current list of the names, addresses, phone numbers and email addresses of all
officers as well as a copy of its constitution and bylaws.

3. School-related, Community, Civic/Service Organization - Any non-profit organization
within the district whose primary purpose is the betterment of the community and the providing
of service to the residents in general.

4. Community - The geographical area encompassed by the district.

5. Personnel Fee - Fee charged to building users for personnel costs incurred as a result of a
given activity. This includes, but is not limited to, custodians, pool staff, technology staff,
maintenance staff, food service staff and security staff.

6. Operating Fee - Fee charged for the additional maintenance and administration of an event,
such as energy consumption fee or snow removal fee.

7. Rental Fee - Fee charged for the temporary use of space.

Application for Use

All requests for the use of facilities, including athletic fields, by internal or external organizations shall
be made through the district’s online request system, or paper-based forms if the online system is
not accessible. Requests shall be submitted at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date the specified
facilities shall be requested.

Organizations and groups using school facilities shall be required to designate one (1) adult member
of its group to be in charge of and responsible to the applicable building principal for the program or
activity at the time the use of the facilities application shall be submitted.

The application must specify the portion of the school facilities requested for use, proposed activities,
number of individuals participating, including any anticipated number of swimmers, if requesting the
pool, and the date, time and duration of the proposed event. The time of the event must include
setup and tear down time and all events must end by the time specified on the application.

All applications for use of athletic fields must receive approval by the Athletic Director.

Along with all completed applications, the individual or group must submit the following:

1. Payment of the specified rental fee.

2. Certificate of insurance with liability coverage of at least $1 million naming the district as an
additional insured.

3. Documentation demonstrating that the user of any school facility assumes full responsibility for
personal injury to participants and spectators in agreement with the district’s hold harmless
clause/statement. 

A reservation shall not be made final until the application and the Certificate of Insurance shall be
returned and approved by the district designee.

School facilities shall be subject to district inspection at any time during use by individuals or
community groups.

BoardDocs® Pro https://go.boarddocs.com/pa/jsasd/Board.nsf/Private?open&login#

4 of 9 11/9/2021, 3:02 PM



Applications will be reviewed and approved, and applications for use of facilities shall not be
considered accepted until approved in writing. 

Applications for facilities use that are denied will be returned to the requesting organization with an
explanation for the denial. 

Activities may be postponed or canceled by the applicant, but a request to postpone or cancel must
be received at least two days in advance, except in emergencies. Applicants that fail to comply with
the cancelation notice will be required to pay 50% of their fee in order to cover the incurred
operating costs. 

All rental fees and/or other charges are due within thirty (30) days after the billing date. 

Applications will be accepted up to one year in advance. Scheduling is completed on a first come/first
serve basis with the following exceptions:

1. Class A groups will be given priority in use of any facilities. They may negate any previously
approved events if a conflict occurs.

2. Class B groups will have second priority. Class B may negate Class C or D events, but not Class
A events.

3. Interscholastic athletic events will have priority over all other events.

Restrictions in Use of Facilities

An organization/individual shall not be permitted to use school facilities if it interferes with school
programs. The district may cancel any permits for school use in the event that a conflict with school
programs develop. The district will strive to give as much advance notice as possible in the event of a
cancelation. 

No application to use school facilities shall be approved if the proposed activity would result in any of
the following:

1. Access to school facilities closed due to renovations, maintenance, cleaning, school calendar
conflicts or Board action.

2. Access to school facilities containing equipment or furnishings which would be detrimental to
the operation of a district program if damaged or operated by an unqualified operator.

3. Access to school facilities that would prevent or encumber district personnel from preparing
school facilities for their primary purpose, because of the nature or duration of the activity.

Limitations

When individuals or organizations receive written permission to use school facilities under this policy,
such use shall be conditioned upon strict compliance with the following:

1. The use of any school facility will automatically be canceled when the facilities have been closed
by school authorities because of a local, state or natural disaster or emergencies such as fire,
flood, storms, mechanical failure, etc. When classes are canceled or dismissed early due to
inclement weather, all building activities will be canceled.[9]

2. The district reserves the right to cancel any weekend activities at its discretion.

3. The use of the school facility must comply with all state laws, local ordinances and rules of the
police and fire departments regarding public assemblies. The approved applicant must arrange
adequate police protection for all public assemblies.
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4. No chairs or other obstructions may be placed in aisle, entrances or exit areas.

5. Outdoor school facilities shall be closed and off limits after dark, except for those areas lighted
for night time use.

6. Organizations/individuals which charge admission shall be fully responsible for paying any taxes
as required by law.

7. Individuals shall not access or enter any portion of the school facilities or use the contents of
the school facility not specified in the approved written application. 

8. Organizations/Individuals using the approved, designated school facilities shall be responsible
for the conduct of both participants and spectators and shall make adequate provisions to
manage anticipated crowds.

9. Organizations/Individuals using the school facility shall not be permitted at any time to change
the electrical or electronic circuits in the facility.

10. Organizations/Individuals must identify additional equipment to be used at the event which
cannot be plugged into existing receptacles. Additional electrical equipment must be inspected
by and approved by a member of the district Buildings and Grounds staff, and organizations
may be charged additional fees for electrical use. The district will be the sole determiner if
additional fees are needed.

11. Storage or scenery or other property in school facilities shall not be permitted without the prior
permission of the building principal.

12. Putting up scenery or decorations or moving district furnishings/equipment shall be prohibited
unless granted permission by the building principal.

13. All decorations, if approved, must be fire proof and subject to approval of school officials.  No
decorations shall be fastened to the floors, wall, and ceilings with nails, screws or any other
fasteners/adhesives that will damage the finish of the floors, walls and ceilings.

14. No open flame decorations shall be used.

15. Any and all approved decorations, furnishings and equipment, and debris, shall be removed by
the user immediately upon termination of the activity.

16. Individuals shall refrain from any conduct or activities not specifically identified in the approved
written application form.

17. Only gym shoes or sneakers shall be permitted on gym floors when utilized for sports.

18. When advertising or promoting activities held at school facilities, individuals or organizations
shall clearly identify that the activities are not being sponsored by the district.

19. School equipment used in conjunction with the facilities request shall be identified when the
application is submitted. Users of school equipment must accept liability for any damage to or
loss of equipment that occurs while in their use. Where rules so specify, no equipment may be
used except by a qualified operator provided by the district.

20. All events involving elementary age children/elementary school facilities must end by 8:30 pm
on nights when school is in session the following day.

21. All events involving middle school/high school age children/secondary school facilities must end
by 9:30 pm on nights when school is in session the following day.
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The district reserves the right to request any individual or organization to arrange for school security
to be present at any event. The exact number of security staff required and applicable rates shall be
determined by the district.

School authorities, at their discretion, may take action as may be necessary to preserve order and to
protect school property and the taking of such action shall not in any way relieve the applicant of
responsibility in that regard. 

Prohibited Activities

The following activities are strictly prohibited in school facilities when individuals and organizations
are granted written permission to use school facilities:[2]

1. Direct payments to district staff including overtime.

2. Possession of food or beverages in the auditorium, gym, pool or in any room not reserved for
such purpose.

3. Possession, use or distribution of alcoholic beverages and/or controlled substances prohibited
by state or federal law.

4. Possession of weapons.

5. Conduct that would alter, damage or be injurious to any district property, equipment or
furnishings.

6. Conduct that would constitute a violation of the Pennsylvania Crimes Code and/or state and
federal laws and regulations.

7. Gambling, games of chance, lotteries, raffles or other activities requiring a license under the
Local Option Small Games of Chance Act, unless such activity has been expressly authorized by
the Board or the Superintendent.[3][4]

8. Use of tobacco products and vaping products, including the product marketed as Juul and other
e-cigarettes, as defined in the law.[4][5][6][7]

Products approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for sale as a tobacco
cessation product or for other  
            therapeutic purposes where the product is marketed and sold solely for such approved
purpose, are permitted, as long as the
            product is not inhaled.

9. Medical marijuana products as prohibited by federal law.

  10. The Board may designate specific areas for tobacco use by the public on property owned, leased
or controlled by the district that is at least fifty 
        (50) feet from school buildings, stadiums and bleachers.[5]

Violations

The district reserves the right to remove from district premises any individual or organization that
fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this policy and established procedures.[2]

In the event an individual or organization violates this policy or the terms under which permission
was granted to use school facilities, that individual or organization forfeits the right to submit future
written requests to use district property, unless otherwise approved by the Board.

Fee Schedule
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Use of school facilities for activities directly related to the educational program and district operations
shall be without cost to users, except that the user shall be responsible for personnel fees.

Payment of use of facilities fees shall be accordance with the schedule of usage fees or rental charges
approved by the district. All checks shall be made payable to the Jersey Shore Area School District.

The fee schedule shall be reviewed and published annually on the district web site.

Fees will be assessed according to the following schedule, with additional fees for special use areas:

Class A: No fee if during normal school/staff working hours

Class B: Personnel Fee

Class C: Personnel Fee, Operating Fee, Rental Fee

Class D: Personnel Fee, Operating Fee, Rental Fee

Special Use Area Fees

1. Pool - All Class A, B, C and D will be assessed personnel fees.  Class C and Class D will be
assessed operating fees and rental fees.

2. Computer Labs - All Class B, C and D will be assessed personnel fees. Class C and Class D will
be assessed operating fees and rental fees.

3. Stage - All Class B, C and D will be assessed personnel fees. Class C and Class D will be
assessed operating fees and rental fees.

4. Athletic Fields - All Class A, B, C, and D will be assessed personnel fees and operating fees.
Class C and Class D will be assessed operating fees and rental fees.

5. Kitchens - All Class A, B, C, and D will be assessed personnel fees and operating fees. Class C
and Class D will be assessed rental fees.

6. Other - Fees may be assessed for use of any district owned equipment. Arrangements for any
use of equipment must be requested and approved in advance. The district may require an
applicant to secure police protection and assume associated costs for any event.

Wear and Tear

Individuals or organizations granted use of school facilities shall be required to restore to original
condition any property destroyed or suffering from more than normal wear and tear. The district shall
be the sole judge of destruction of property or excessive wear and tear.

Use of District Staff

Individuals or organizations requiring use of district staff shall be billed at the current hourly rate for
overtime.

Payment of overtime for district staff shall be made by the district, in accordance with Board
policy.[8]

Such district staff includes:

1. Off-duty custodians/maintenance staff to remain after the normal workday, including additional
time for opening and closing a building.

2. Off-duty certified food service staff to be present for the use of school cafeterias with kitchens
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for functions, including catering service requiring a member of the certified district staff to be
on duty during the event.

3. Off-duty technology staff or other appropriate staff for use of stage facilities, audiovisual
equipment, computer labs or other technology facility and to operate the district-owned
equipment.

4. In the event that the required district staff shall not be available, the facility request shall be
denied.

Use of Pool Facilities

A minimum of two (2) certified lifeguards shall be present during all pool activities. The fee for such
staff shall be in addition to the pool rental costs. The ratio of certified lifeguards for the number of
swimmers shall be strictly adhered to.
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 700 Property

Title Building Security

Code 709

Status

Legal 1. Pol. 805 - Emergency Preparedness

2. Pol. 805.2 - School Security Personnel

3. Pol. 907 - School Visitors

24 P.S. 510

Pol. 705 - Facilities and Workplace Safety

Adopted February 27, 2017

Purpose

The Board recognizes the need to maintain security of school facilities for reasons of safety,
vandalism and theft.

Delegation of Responsibility

Building security shall be coordinated by the School Safety and Security Coordinator, with the
cooperation of district administrators, building principals and district staff.[1][2]

The Superintendent or designee shall develop administrative regulations designating who may be
authorized to access district building(s), the designated level of access and who may have after-
hours access to district facilities.

Guidelines

After the start of the school day, access to school buildings shall be limited to one (1) entrance that is
monitored and capable of controlling visitor entry. All other entrances shall be locked, and designated
school staff shall follow established Board policy and procedures for entry of school visitors and other
authorized individuals into school buildings.[3]

A log of employees with access codes and building keys shall be maintained in the office of the
Superintendent or a designee.

A set of master and/or duplicate keys shall be kept in the custody of the Superintendent or designee
and maintained in a safe and secured location.

After hours entry to school buildings shall be controlled by the school security officer/custodian on
duty.
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Entry to a school building shall be prohibited when a person authorized as a district representative
(paid district employee) for the building is not present.
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 800 Operations

Title Relations With Law Enforcement Agencies

Code 805.1

Status
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Legal 1. 22 PA Code 10.1

2. 24 P.S. 1303-A

3. Pol. 805 - Emergency Preparedness

4. Pol. 805.2 - School Security Personnel

5. 22 PA Code 10.11

6. 22 PA Code 10.2

7. 35 P.S. 780-102

8. Pol. 218 - Student Discipline

9. Pol. 218.1 - Weapons

10. Pol. 218.2 - Terroristic Threats

11. Pol. 222 - Tobacco/Nicotine

12. Pol. 227 - Controlled Substances/Paraphernalia

13. 22 PA Code 10.23

14. 22 PA Code 14.104

15. Pol. 113 - Special Education

16. Pol. 113.2 - Behavior Support

17. 22 PA Code 14.133

18. Pol. 113.4 - Confidentiality of Special Education Student Information

19. Pol. 216 - Student Records

20. Pol. 333 - Professional Development

21. Pol. 806 - Child Abuse

22. Pol. 819 - Suicide Awareness, Prevention and Response

23. Pol. 824 - Maintaining Professional Adult/Student Boundaries

24. 22 PA Code 10.21

25. 22 PA Code 10.22

26. 24 P.S. 1302.1-A

27. Pol. 103.1 - Nondiscrimination - Qualified Students with Disabilities

28. Pol. 113.1 - Discipline of Students with Disabilities

29. Pol. 323 - Tobacco and Vaping Products

30. Pol. 351 - Drug and Substance Abuse

31. Pol. 904 - Public Attendance at School events

22 PA Code 10.24

Pol. 909 - Municipal Government Relations

Adopted October 12, 2015

Purpose

The Board recognizes that cooperation with law enforcement agencies is considered essential for
protecting students and staff, maintaining a safe environment in schools, and safeguarding district
property.
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Authority

It shall be the policy of the Board to establish and maintain a cooperative relationship between the
school district and local police departments in maintaining school safety and security; responding to
school safety and security reports; and reporting and resolution of incidents that occur on school
property, at any school-sponsored activity, or on any conveyance providing transportation to or from
a school or school-sponsored activity.[1][2][3][4]

The Board directs the Superintendent to execute and update, on a biennial basis, a memorandum of
understanding with each local police department that has jurisdiction over school property in
accordance with state law and regulations.[2][5]

Definition

Incident - an instance involving an act of violence; the possession of a weapon by any person; the
possession, use, or sale of a controlled substance or drug paraphernalia as defined in the
Pennsylvania Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic Act; the possession, use, or sale of
alcohol or tobacco by any person on school property; or conduct that constitutes an offense listed
under the Safe Schools Act.[2][6][7]

Guidelines

Memorandum of Understanding

In accordance with state law and regulations, the Superintendent shall execute and update, every
two (2) years, a memorandum of understanding with each local police department that has
jurisdiction over school property. The memorandum of understanding shall be signed by the
Superintendent, police chief and each building principal, and be filed with the Office for Safe Schools.
[2][5]

In developing and updating the memorandum of understanding, the district shall consult and
consider the State Board of Education model memorandum of understanding. If the district’s
memorandum of understanding with local law enforcement contains substantive differences from the
State Board of Education model memorandum of understanding, the Superintendent shall provide a
written statement which identifies the differences and the reasons for the differences as part of the
biennial filing with the Office for Safe Schools.[2][5]

The memorandum of understanding shall comply with state law and regulations and set forth
procedures to be followed regarding incidents that include, but are not limited to, acts of violence,
weapons, terroristic threats, controlled substances, alcohol and tobacco.[8][9][10][11][12]

The memorandum of understanding may specify other matters related to crime prevention mutually
agreed upon by the Superintendent and the local police department that has jurisdiction over the
school property.[2]

Students With Disabilities

The district shall provide a copy of its administrative regulations and procedures for behavior support,
developed in accordance with the Special Education Plan, to each local police department that has
jurisdiction over school property. Updated copies shall be provided each time the administrative
regulations and procedures for behavior support are revised by the district.[13][14][15][16]

The district shall invite representatives of each local police department that has jurisdiction over
school property to participate in district training on the use of positive behavior supports, de-
escalation techniques and appropriate responses to student behavior that may require intervention,
as included in the district’s Special Education Plan and positive behavior support program.[13][14]
[15][16][17]

Training
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The district shall invite representatives of each local police department that has jurisdiction over
school property to participate in district training related to subjects that enhance understanding of
and build positive relationships with students, which may include but not be limited to training on
trauma-informed approaches, restorative practices, suicide awareness and prevention, child abuse
recognition and reporting, maintaining confidentiality of students' personally identifiable information
and maintaining professional adult/student boundaries.[18][19][20][21][22][23]

Referral to Law Enforcement

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report required incidents and may report
discretionary incidents committed on school property, at any school-sponsored activity or on a
conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-sponsored activity, to the local
police department that has jurisdiction over the school’s property, in accordance with state law and
regulations, the procedures set forth in the memorandum of understanding with local law
enforcement and Board policies.[2][6][8][9][10][11][12][16][24][25][26][27][28][29][30][31]

Safe Schools Report

Annually, by July 31, the Superintendent shall report on the designated form, to the Office for Safe
Schools, all new incidents as required by state law.[2]

Prior to submitting the Safe Schools report, the Superintendent and each police department having
jurisdiction over school property shall do all of the following:

1. No later than thirty (30) days prior to the deadline for submitting the Safe Schools report to the
Office for Safe Schools, the Superintendent shall submit the report to the police department
that has jurisdiction over the relevant school property. The police department shall review the
report and compare the data regarding criminal offenses and notification of law enforcement to
determine whether the report accurately reflects police incident data.

2. No later than fifteen (15) days prior to the deadline for the Superintendent to submit the report
to the Office for Safe Schools, the police department shall notify the Superintendent, in writing,
whether the report accurately reflects police incident data. Where the police department
determines that the report accurately reflects police incident data, the chief of police shall sign
the report. Where the police department determines that the report does not accurately reflect
police incident data, the police department shall indicate any discrepancies between the report
and police incident data.

3. Where a police department fails to take action as required above, the Superintendent shall
submit the report to the Office for Safe Schools and indicate that the police department failed
to take the required action.
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 200 Pupils

Title Discipline of Student Convicted/Adjudicated of Sexual Assault

Code 218.3

Status

Legal 1. 24 P.S. 1318.1

2. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 3121

3. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 3122.1

4. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 3123

5. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 3124.1

6. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 3125

7. 18 Pa. C.S.A. 3126

8. Pol. 218 - Student Discipline

9. Pol. 233 - Suspension and Expulsion

10. Pol. 103 - Discrimination/Title IX Sexual Harassment Affecting Students

11. Pol. 252 - Dating Violence

12. 20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq

13. 34 CFR Part 300

14. Pol. 103.1 - Nondiscrimination - Qualified Students with Disabilities

15. Pol. 113.1 - Discipline of Students with Disabilities

16. Pol. 113.2 - Behavior Support

17. Pol. 113.3 - Screening and Evaluations for Students with Disabilities

18. Pol. 200 - Enrollment of Students

Purpose

The Board recognizes the importance of a safe school environment for students who are victims of
sexual assault. This policy addresses disciplinary requirements for a student convicted or adjudicated
delinquent of sexual assault upon another district student.[1]

Definitions

Conviction – means the finding of guilty by a judge or a jury or the entry of a plea of guilty or nolo
contendere for sexual assault whether or not judgment of sentence has been imposed.[1]

School setting – means in the school, on school grounds, in school vehicles, at a designated bus
stop or at any activity sponsored, supervised or sanctioned by the school.[1]
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School-sponsored activity – means any assemblies, field trips, class trips, graduation ceremonies,
athletics, extracurricular activities, clubs, groups, teams or any activities sponsored, held or approved
by the district.[1]

Sexual assault – means any of the following offenses:[1]

1. Rape.[2]

2. Statutory sexual assault.[3]

3. Involuntary deviate sexual intercourse.[4]

4. Sexual assault.[5]

5. Aggravated indecent assault.[6]

6. Indecent assault.[7]

Authority

The Board shall comply with the disciplinary requirements established by state law regarding
students who have been convicted or adjudicated delinquent of sexual assault upon another student
enrolled in this district, regardless of whether the sexual assault took place inside or outside of the
school setting.[1][8][9]

Delegation of Responsibility

A student who is convicted of sexual assault upon another student enrolled in this district shall be
required to notify the Superintendent or designee of the conviction no later than seventy-two (72)
hours after the conviction.[1]

Upon report of a conviction or adjudication of sexual assault upon a district student, the
Superintendent or designee shall take one (1) of the following actions against the convicted or
adjudicated student:[1]

1. Recommend that the Board expel the student, in accordance with law and Board policy.[9]

2. Transfer the student to an alternative education program.

If the convicted or adjudicated student has already been expelled, transferred or reassigned, or if the
victim does not attend the same school, no additional action regarding expulsion, transfer or
reassignment is required by the district. Although action is not required, the district maintains the
authority to make an alternative assignment or provide alternative educational services during or
after an expulsion at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee.[1]

Upon report of a conviction or adjudication of sexual assault upon a district student that occurred in
the school setting, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the Title IX Coordinator to determine
whether the incident has been addressed in accordance with applicable Board policy.[10][11]

Guidelines

In the case of a student with a disability, including a student for whom an evaluation is pending, prior
to implementing any disciplinary removal or considering a change of placement for the student, the
district shall coordinate with the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) team and take all
steps required to comply with state and federal laws and regulations, and Board policies.[1][12]
[13][14][15][16][17]

The district shall ensure that the convicted or adjudicated student is prohibited from taking part in
the following activities at the same time as the victim:[1]
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1. Being educated in the same school building.

2. Being transported on the same school vehicle.

3. Participating in the same school-sponsored activity.

Return of Student to School

The district may return the student who is expelled, transferred or reassigned, to the student’s
originally assigned school if the following circumstance occurs:[1]

1. The conviction or adjudication has been reversed and is not pending appeal.

Transfer Students

When the school district receives a student who transfers from a public or private school during or
after an expulsion period for an act or offense involving a sexual assault conviction or adjudication,
the district may assign that student to an alternative assignment or may provide alternative
education services.[1][18]
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Book Board Policy Manual

Section 300 Employees

Title Drug and Substance Abuse

Code 351

Status

Legal 1. 35 P.S. 780-101 et seq

2. 41 U.S.C. 8101

3. 24 P.S. 111

4. 41 U.S.C. 8103

5. 24 P.S. 527

6. 41 U.S.C. 8104

7. 24 P.S. 1302.1-A

8. 24 P.S. 1303-A

9. 22 PA Code 10.2

10. 22 PA Code 10.21

11. 35 P.S. 780-102

12. Pol. 805.1 - Relations with Law Enforcement Agencies

41 U.S.C. 8101 et seq

Pol. 317 - Conduct/Disciplinary Procedures

Purpose

The Board recognizes that the misuse of drugs by administrative, professional and classified
employees is a serious problem with legal, physical and social implications for the whole school
community and is concerned about the problems that may be caused by drug use by district
employees, especially as the use relates to an employee's safety, efficiency and productivity.

The primary purpose and justification for any district action will be for the protection of the health,
safety and welfare of students, staff and school property.

Definitions

Drugs - shall be defined as those outlined in the Controlled Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic
Act.[1]

Conviction - a finding of guilt, including a plea of nolo contendere, an imposition of sentence, or both
by any judicial body charged with the responsibility to determine violations of the federal or state
criminal drug statutes.[2]
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Criminal Drug Statute - a federal or state criminal statute involving the manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, use or possession of a controlled substance.[2]

Drug-free Workplace - the site for the performance of work at which employees are prohibited from
engaging in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled
substance.[2]

Authority

The Board requires that each administrative, professional and classified employee be given
notification that, as a condition of employment, the employee will abide by the terms of this policy
and notify the district of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the
workplace immediately, but no later than seventy-two (72) hours, after such conviction.[3][4]

Any employee convicted of delivery of a controlled substance or convicted of possession of a
controlled substance with the intent to deliver shall be terminated from his/her employment with the
district.[5][1]

Delegation of Responsibility

A statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation,
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the employee's workplace shall be
provided by the Superintendent or designee and shall specify the actions that will be taken against
the employee for violation of this policy, up to and including termination and referral for prosecution.
[4][6]

Within ten (10) days after receiving notice of the conviction of a district employee, the district shall
notify any federal agency or department that is the grantor of funds to the district.[4]

The district shall take appropriate personnel action within thirty (30) days of receiving notice against
any convicted employee, up to and including termination, or require the employee to participate
satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a
federal, state or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.[4][6]

In establishing a drug-free awareness program, the Superintendent or designee shall inform
employees about:[4]

1. Dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.

2. Board's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.

3. Availability of drug counseling, drug rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs.

4. Penalties that may be imposed for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

The district shall make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of this policy.[4]

Guidelines

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately report incidents involving the possession, use or
sale of a controlled substance or drug paraphernalia as defined in the Pennsylvania Controlled
Substance, Drug, Device and Cosmetic Act by any employee while on school property, at any school-
sponsored activity or on a conveyance providing transportation to or from a school or school-
sponsored activity to the local police department that has jurisdiction over the school’s property, in
accordance with state law and regulations, the procedures set forth in the memorandum of
understanding with local law enforcement and Board policies.[7][8][9][10][11][12]
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In accordance with state law, the Superintendent shall annually, by July 31, report all incidents of
possession, use or sale of controlled substances or drug paraphernalia to the Office for Safe Schools
on the required form.[8][12]
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PYRAMID HEALTHCARE, INC. 

SOARING HEIGHTS SCHOOL 

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made this 26th day of October, 2021 (“Effective Date”) by and 

between PYRAMID HEALTHCARE, INC., t/d/b/a SOARING HEIGHTS SCHOOL, with 

its corporate office located at 270 Lakemont Park Boulevard, Altoona, Pennsylvania 16602 

(“Pyramid”) and JERSEY SHORE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT the responsible local 

educational agency (“LEA”) with an address at 175 A&P Drive, Jersey Shore, PA 17740. 

 

Background 

 

WHEREAS, Pyramid operates Soaring Heights School (“SHS”), a private academic 

school licensed and operated in accordance with the Private Academic Schools Act, 24 P.S. § 

6701 et seq., to provide special education and related services to students; 

 

WHEREAS, LEA wishes to place certain students at SHS and to fund the tuition and 

related services for such placements as specified in this Educational Services Agreement 

("Agreement"); 

 

WHEREAS, Pyramid wishes to offer admission to SHS to those LEA students whose 

Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) team has approved placement with SHS in 

accordance with the procedural requirements of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 

(“IDEA”) and all other applicable federal and state laws and regulations; 

 

WHEREAS, Pyramid will provide appropriate special education and related services to 

students placed at SHS by the LEA, and shall provide requested student information to the LEA 

in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, Pyramid and the LEA, in consideration of the mutual agreements, 

covenants and conditions set forth herein, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 

 

I. ADMISSION & PAYMENT OF TUITION. 

 

1. Admission 

 

(a) Pyramid agrees to admit eligible students to SHS commencing 

10/26/2021. 

 

(b) Educational services to be provided by Pyramid pursuant to this 

Agreement shall include specially designed instruction and related 

services necessary to provide each student with a free and appropriate 

public education (“FAPE”) in the least restrictive environment, as required 

under each student’s IEP and in accordance with applicable federal and 

state laws and regulations. The tuition payments described in Section I (2) 
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below shall not include 1-1 nursing and 1-1 professional and 

paraprofessional support. To the extent 1-1 nursing, professional or 

paraprofessional support is required for any student, Pyramid and LEA 

will enter into an Addendum to this Agreement in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” pursuant to which Pyramid will provide 1-1 

nursing, professional or paraprofessional support services in accordance 

with the Addendum and this Agreement.  

 

2. Payment of Tuition: 

 

(a) LEA agrees to pay tuition to Pyramid for all LEA students admitted to 

SHS at the applicable tuition rate set forth in this Agreement.  The rate of 

tuition shall be Two Hundred Eighty Five Dollars and Zero Cents 

($285.00) per student per day. Tuition rates are exclusive of costs 

associated with the assignment of 1-1 nursing, professional or 

paraprofessional support. 

 

(b) Tuition payments for all LEA students shall be made in monthly 

installments due on the 1st day of each month in accordance with the terms 

of the SHS invoice issued to the LEA by Pyramid. 

 

(c) Payment is due to Pyramid within thirty (30) days of the date of invoice.  

If any balance due as invoiced remains unpaid for sixty (60) days after 

written demand for payment, the account may be referred to Pyramid’s 

counsel for collection.  All reasonable attorneys’ fees and collection fees 

plus interest and costs, shall be added to the outstanding balance and shall 

be the responsibility of the LEA.  The default rate of interest shall be six 

percent (6%) per annum. 

 

(d) On or after the one (1) year anniversary of the Effective Date of this 

Agreement, and thereafter on an annual basis, Pyramid may increase the 

tuition, fees and other costs payable by the LEA under this Agreement by 

providing written notice to the LEA at least sixty (60) calendar days prior 

to the effective date of any proposed increase, and thereafter this 

Agreement and any Addendums hereto executed by the parties will be 

deemed amended according to the terms set forth in the written notice. 

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the LEA may 

terminate this Agreement and any Addendums hereto effective as of the 

date of the proposed increase by providing written notice to Pyramid 

within thirty (30) calendar days of the LEA’s receipt of the written notice 

of increase. 

 

II. ABSENCE OF WARRANTIES. 

 

(a) EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT (OR IN THIS OR 

ANY OTHER EXHIBIT THERETO), THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES, 
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EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, GIVEN BY PYRAMID IN 

CONNECTION WITH ITS PROVISION OF THE EDUCATIONAL 

SERVICES COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

III. SERVICES; ACCESS; DATA COLLECTION; REPORTING; CONSENT. 

 

(a) Pyramid is committed to data-based decision making and, as such, 

operates an extensive data collection and analysis program.  Data from 

student activities is collected on an ongoing basis and analyzed on a 

routine, periodic schedule.  Pyramid shall supply formal reports on student 

progress at regular intervals no less frequently than quarterly, and as 

required by each student’s IEP.   

 

(b) Pyramid will provide students with an appropriate education and related 

services, as required under each student’s IEP, in a professional manner by 

fully qualified personnel, in compliance (without limitation) with the 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, 20 USC § 1400 et seq., and 

Chapter 14 of the Pennsylvania Administrative Code, 22 Pa. Code § 14.1 

et seq.   

 

(c) Pyramid services shall conform to the applicable standards for practice, 

within the applicable specialty, as approved by the applicable occupational 

board and consistent with applicable state and federal requirements.   

 

(d) Pyramid will participate in all IEP meetings and will provide written input 

to all IEPs applicable to each student admitted to SHS, at the LEA’s 

request.   

 

(e) LEA will provide SHS with each student’s most recent IEP and all other 

information necessary to provide students with necessary services. 

 

(f) Pyramid agrees to adhere to the educational plan outlined in each student’s 

IEP, as the same may be updated or amended from time to time.  Pyramid 

shall comply with and provide appropriate services in accordance with 

each student’s IEP. 

 

(g) Parents/guardians of admitted students and the LEA shall have access to 

review individual student progress and activities in the classroom as 

permissible by law.  In order to avoid disruption to the educational 

environment, classroom visits shall be pre-scheduled in accordance with 

SHS policy. 

 

(h) LEA will ensure that the parents/guardians of all students admitted to SHS 

provide written consent for the receipt, collection, and use by SHS of all 

necessary data collected for the purposes of this Agreement but to no 

further use except as otherwise required or allowed by law. 
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IV. REQUIREMENTS; COMPLIANCE; CONFIDENTIALITY. 

 

1. Compliance 

(a) Pyramid shall comply with all safety standards and with all clearance and 

certification requirements relating to child abuse and criminal 

backgrounds, as required by applicable law or by the LEA, with respect to 

all personnel providing services hereunder or who will have access to or 

contact with students.  Copies of all such clearances and certifications, 

access to originals thereof and applicable information with respect to such 

personnel shall be provided promptly to the LEA.   

 

(b) Pyramid shall complete such written reports and evaluations as are 

required by/for each student’s IEP in a thorough, accurate and timely 

manner.   

(c) Pyramid represents, warrants and agrees (a) that the services will be 

provided only by its employee(s) or other personnel who have all of the 

qualifications and experience reasonably necessary to fulfill, perform and 

complete the services, (b) that all representations as to Pyramid’s 

qualifications and experience made herein or heretofore made to the LEA 

by Pyramid are true and correct in all material respects, (c) that neither 

Pyramid nor any of its officers or directors are currently suspended, 

debarred, ineligible or excluded, and (d) neither Pyramid nor any of its 

officers or directors has received written notice of any proposed action to 

suspend, debar, render ineligible or exclude them or any of them, from 

contracts with the United States of America, Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania, or any other state, or any department or agency thereof.   

(d) Pyramid shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 

regulations and ordinances in the performance of its services hereunder.  

Pyramid shall comply with all written nondiscrimination policies 

applicable to or required by the LEA and/or any federal or state 

governmental agency that is the source of funds for this Agreement. 

2. Confidential Student Information: 

(a) The LEA shall maintain each student’s cumulative academic record. 

Pyramid is authorized to disclose necessary information consistent with 

the requirements of each admitted student’s IEP and the terms of this 

Agreement.  All information of any kind regarding LEA’s students, 

including (without limitation) confidential student data, shall be kept 

strictly confidential by Pyramid and shall not be used or disclosed for any 

purpose except as provided in this Agreement.  This obligation of 

confidentiality shall survive the expiration or termination of this 

Agreement.  As used herein, the term “Confidential Student Data” shall 
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include, without limitation, any personal or identifying student 

information, names, addresses, date of birth, social security or other 

identification numbers, attendance records, grades, test results, 

assessments, work product, disciplinary records, and any information 

deemed to be a “student record” under the Family Educational Rights and 

Privacy Act (“FERPA”).   

 

V. INSURANCE; INDEMNITY 

 

(a) During the term of this Agreement, and any extension or modification of 

this Agreement, Pyramid shall obtain and keep in effect a policy or 

policies of:  (a) general liability and auto liability insurance, including 

(without limitation) coverage of owned and non-owned vehicles used in 

relation to the performance of services by Pyramid and for accidents and 

occurrences arising out of death, bodily injury, sickness and disease, of at 

least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for each occurrence and Two 

Million Dollars ($2,000,000) general aggregate, and with not more than 

Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) per occurrence deductible or self-insured 

retention; (b) workers’ compensation insurance, disability benefits and 

other social insurance as may be required by applicable law; (c) 

professional liability insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000), each claim/aggregate; and (d) such other coverages as 

entities similar to Pyramid performing such services customarily and 

usually obtain.  All policies shall be written on an occurrence basis and not 

a claims made basis.  Upon execution of this Agreement and at any other 

time(s) at the LEA’s reasonable request, Pyramid shall furnish the LEA 

with a Certificate(s) of Insurance naming the LEA as Additional Insureds 

to each said policy.  All such insurance policies shall require at least ten 

(10) days notice to the LEA prior to cancellation, termination or 

expiration.   

 

(b) LEA covenants and agrees, at its sole cost and expense to indemnify, 

protect and hold SHS and Pyramid harmless against and from any and all 

claims, liens, damages, losses liabilities, obligations, penalties, litigation 

costs, demands defenses, judgments, suits and proceedings whatsoever, 

including administrative proceedings (including attorneys’ and expert fees 

and disbursements) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by 

or asserted or awarded against SHS or Pyramid, arising out of or relating 

to the acts or omissions of the LEA, its employees, agents, officers, 

directors, or representatives in connection with the performance of any 

services or duties owed by the LEA pursuant to this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this agreement shall be deemed 

to be a direct or indirect waiver of or imitation to any sovereign or 

governmental immunity, in any respect, applicable to the LEA, its 

directors, officers, employees and agents (including, without limitation, 

under the Pennsylvania Political Subdivision Tort Claims Act) or impose 
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liability, directly or indirectly, on the LEA and its directors, officers, 

employees and agents from which it would otherwise be immune under 

applicable law. 

 

(c) Pyramid covenants and agrees, at its sole cost and expense to indemnify, 

protect and hold LEA harmless against and from any and all claims, liens, 

damages, losses, liabilities, obligations, penalties, litigation costs, 

demands, defenses, judgments, suits and proceedings whatsoever, 

including administrative proceedings (including attorneys’ and expert fees 

and disbursements) which may at any time be imposed upon, incurred by 

or asserted or awarded against LEA arising out of or relating to the acts or 

omissions of SHS or Pyramid, its employees, agents, officers, directors, or 

representatives in connection with the performance of any services or 

duties owed by SHS or Pyramid pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

VI. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

 

1. Address for Payments: 

 

(a) Payments must be made to Pyramid Healthcare, Inc. at the following 

address: 

 

   Pyramid Healthcare, Inc. 

270 Lakemont Park Boulevard 

Altoona, PA  16602 

Attention:  Accounts Receivable 

 

2. Term of Agreement: 

(a) The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date 

and shall expire on July 31, 2022. 

(b) Upon the expiration of the initial term or any renewal term of this 

Agreement, this Agreement shall be automatically renewed for a one (1) 

year renewal term unless, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of 

the current term, either party gives the other party written notice of its 

intent not to renew this Agreement. During any renewal term of this 

Agreement, the terms, conditions and provisions set forth in this 

Agreement shall remain in effect unless modified in accordance with 

Section VI (6) (a) of this Agreement. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the LEA and 

Pyramid shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by providing at 

least sixty (60) days written notice to the other party for its convenience if 

it determines termination to be in its best interest.  If the Agreement is 

terminated for convenience by the LEA, Pyramid shall be paid its 
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proportionate share of the tuition fee owed for services satisfactorily 

completed prior to the effective date of the termination. 

3. Independent Contractor: 

(a) In performing Pyramid’s obligations under this Agreement, Pyramid is at 

all times shall remain an independent contractor of the LEA.  Neither 

Pyramid nor the LEA nor their respective personnel, is an employee, 

partner, or agent of the other hereunder, and neither Pyramid nor the LEA 

is authorized to incur any liability or make any representations on behalf 

of the other.  Pyramid shall be responsible for payment of the salaries, 

withholding and payroll taxes, workers’ compensation coverage and all 

other compensation or benefits of any kind required for Pyramid 

employees, personnel and contractors.  Pyramid shall be solely responsible 

for the provision of all appropriate supplies and equipment necessary for 

each pupil as required or appropriate in order to provide the services 

hereunder, at Pyramid’s cost except as specifically provided for in this 

Agreement.   

4. Default: 

(a) The LEA shall be deemed to have committed an “Event of Default” of this 

Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the following: 

(i) failure to make any payment when due from the LEA on this 

Agreement, 

(ii) failure to perform any other provision of this Agreement, or 

(iii) providing Pyramid with intentionally false information or 

signatures. 

(b) Upon or after the occurrence of any Event of Default by the LEA, Pyramid 

will provide the LEA with notice, by certified mail as required by law, 

addressed to the LEA’s last known address as shown on Pyramid’s 

records, advising the LEA of the default and of the LEA’s right to cure the 

default within a thirty (30) day cure period.  The notice will provide the 

time, amount and performance necessary to cure the default.  If the LEA 

does not cure the default as provided in the notice, Pyramid’s rights shall 

include (but are not limited to) the right to declare all sums due under this 

Agreement to be immediately due and payable.  The LEA agrees to pay all 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and other reasonable collection costs and 

charges necessary for the collection of any amount not paid when due, 

after an Event of Default by the LEA. 

(c) Pyramid shall be deemed to have committed an “Event of Default” under 

this Agreement, if it fails to comply in any material respect with this 

Agreement or has otherwise breached in any material respect any 
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representation, warranty or covenant hereunder, and has failed to cure 

such failure, breach or default within thirty (30) days after written notice 

thereof (or such failure, breach or default is incapable of being cured).  

Upon such an Event of Default, the LEA may, without limiting any other 

remedy, terminate this Agreement and upon such termination the LEA 

shall have no further liability or obligations under this Agreement.  Upon 

any such termination, the LEA shall be responsible for the tuition fee, to 

the date of termination.  

(d) No waiver by Pyramid or the LEA of any Event of Default shall be 

deemed or constitute a waiver of any other or any subsequent Event of 

Default.  All of Pyramid’s rights and remedies shall be cumulative.  

Pyramid’s or the LEA’s exercise of one or more rights shall not cause 

such party to lose any other rights. 

5. Notice Addresses and Additional Miscellaneous Provisions: 

(a) All notices shall be in writing.  The addresses of the parties are as follows: 

(i) If to Pyramid:  

     Pyramid Healthcare, Inc. t/d/b/a Soaring Heights School 

     Attn:  Chief Operating Officer 

     270 Lakemont Park Blvd 

     Altoona, PA  16602 

 

(ii) If to LEA: 

  Jersey Shore Area School District 

  175 A&P Drive______________ 

  Jersey Shore, PA 17740________ 
 

(b) If any part of this Agreement is held to be illegal, void or unenforceable, 

that provision shall be deemed not to have been a part of this Agreement, 

which shall otherwise remain fully effective 

(c) The terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania except to the extent supplemented, 

superseded or preempted by federal law. 

(d) The parties to this Agreement consent and agree that any legal 

proceedings relating to the subject matter hereof shall be maintained in the 

Court of Common Pleas of Blair County, Pennsylvania, or, if applicable, 

the United States District Court of the Middle District of Pennsylvania, 

and all parties hereto consent and agree that jurisdiction and venue for 

such proceedings shall lie exclusively within said court.  Service of 

process in any such proceeding may be made by certified mail, return 

receipt requested, directed to the respective party at the address set forth 



{00740582.2 } - 9 - 

above.  Any dispute shall be resolved by non-jury trial, and both the 

LEA and Pyramid irrevocably waive any right to jury trial which 

may exist.  

(e) This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors 

and assigns. 

6. Entire Agreement/Modification: 

(a) This Agreement and any addendums or exhibits hereto contain the entire 

understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and 

supersedes all prior agreements, oral or written, and all other prior 

communications between the parties relating to such subject matter.  This 

Agreement may not be amended or modified except by mutual written 

agreement. 

7. Counterparts: 

(a) This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of 

which together shall constitute one Agreement. 

8. Captions: 

(a) The captions contained herein are used solely for convenience and shall 

not be deemed to define or limit the provisions of this Agreement. 

NOTICE TO LEA REPRESENTATIVE: (1) DO NOT SIGN THIS AGREEMENT 

BEFORE YOU READ IT OR IF IT CONTAINS ANY BLANK SPACE.  (2) YOU ARE 

ENTITLED TO A COMPLETE COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

BY SIGNING BELOW JERSEY SHORE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT AND PYRAMID 

HEALTHCARE, INC. ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COMPLETED COPY OF 

THIS AGREEMENT AND INTEND TO BE LEGALLY BOUND BY ITS TERMS. 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: _________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: ________________________ 

PYRAMID HEALTHCARE, INC. t/d/b/a 

SOARING HEIGHTS SCHOOL 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

       Jason Hendricks, Chief Operating Officer 

 

JERSEY SHORE AREA SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 
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EXHIBIT “A” 

 

ADDENDUM FOR 1-1 SUPPORT 

 

THIS ADDENDUM FOR 1-1 SUPPORT (“ADDENDUM”) is made this 26TH  day of 

October, 2021, by and between PYRAMID HEALTHCARE, INC., a Pennsylvania corporation 

with offices located at 270 Lakemont Park Boulevard, Altoona, Pennsylvania 16602 (“Pyramid”) 

and JERSEY SHORE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT (SCHOOL DISTRICT), the responsible 

local educational agency (“LEA”) with an address at 175 A&P Drive, Jersey Shore, PA 17740. 

Background 

 WHEREAS, Pyramid provides special education and related services to students placed at 

Pyramid’s private academic school by the LEA pursuant to an Education Services Agreement 

(“Agreement”) between Pyramid and the LEA; 

 WHEREAS, in the event any student requires certain 1-1 support services, including 

nursing, professional or paraprofessional support services, Section I (1)(b) of the Agreement 

provides that Pyramid will provide such 1-1 support services in accordance with an addendum to 

the Agreement; 

 WHEREAS, Pyramid and the LEA agree that a student or students placed at Pyramid’s 

private academic school by the LEA pursuant to the Agreement require(s) certain 1-1 support 

services; and 

WHEREAS, Pyramid will provide appropriate 1-1 support services to the applicable 

student(s) placed at Pyramid’s private academic school by the LEA in accordance with the terms 

of the Agreement and this Addendum. 

NOW THEREFORE, Pyramid and the LEA, in consideration of the mutual agreements, 

covenants and conditions set forth herein, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 
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1. 1-1 SUPPORT SERVICES:  

a. Pyramid and the LEA agree that services provided to the LEA under the 

Agreement require the assignment of 1-1 paraprofessional support staff, and Pyramid will 

provide such 1-1 paraprofessional support staff services for each student identified by Pyramid 

and the LEA as requiring such services. 

b. If applicable, Pyramid and the LEA further agree that services provided to the 

LEA under the Agreement also require the assignment of 1-1 nursing and/or professional staff, 

and Pyramid will provide the following nursing and/or professional staff to render the agreed 

upon services: 

Individual Nursing     Individual Staff Hourly Rate: 

and/or Professional Staff:  

  

_Not Applicable____________  $__________ 

_________________________  $__________ 

_________________________  $__________ 

_________________________  $__________ 

2. PYRAMID COST: Pyramid will be responsible for the payments of all wages, 

fees, and benefits to all support staff rendering services under this Addendum. 

3. LEA COST:  

a. The LEA will compensate Pyramid for all 1-1 paraprofessional support services 

provided under this Addendum at the rate of $125.00 per day for each student identified by 

Pyramid and the LEA as requiring such services. 

b. If applicable, the LEA will compensate Pyramid for all 1-1 nursing and/or 

professional staff services provided under this Addendum in accordance with the individual 

staff’s hourly rate set forth in paragraph 1(b) above plus an additional 15% of said hourly rate. 
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4. INVOICING AND PAYMENT: Pyramid will provide monthly invoices to the 

LEA for all services performed under this Addendum. Payment shall be due to Pyramid within 

thirty (30) days of the date of invoice.  If any balance due as invoiced remains unpaid for sixty 

(60) days after written demand for payment, the account may be referred to Pyramid’s counsel 

for collection.  All reasonable attorneys’ fees and collection fees plus interest and costs, shall be 

added to the outstanding balance and shall be the responsibility of the LEA. The default rate of 

interest shall be six percent (6%) per annum. 

5. ENROLLMENT REQUIREMENT: Pyramid will only invoice the LEA for 1-1 

nursing, professional or paraprofessional support services if the applicable student remains 

enrolled in Pyramid’s private academic school.  

6. ATTENDANCE: So long as the applicable student remains enrolled in Pyramid’s 

private academic school, Pyramid will invoice the LEA for 1-1 nursing, professional or 

paraprofessional support services in accordance with this Addendum regardless of the applicable 

student’s attendance. 

7. CONFLICT AND RATIFICATION: In the event of a conflict between the 

Agreement and this Addendum, the terms of this Addendum shall control. All other terms of the 

Agreement are hereby ratified and shall remain in effect. 
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THE PARTIES HERETO, each intending to be legally bound, have caused the execution 

of this Addendum as of the day, month, and year first above written. 

 

 

 

 

DATE: _________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE: ________________________ 

PYRAMID HEALTHCARE, INC. 

Jason Hendricks, COO 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

 

 

Jersey Shore Area School District 

Craig Allen, Board President 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

 

 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Between 

(LEA) Jersey Shore Area School District   

And 

(CCYA) Clinton County Children and Youth Social Services Agency 

 

Transportation Procedures Agreement 

To ensure the educational stability of Foster Care Youth: 

Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requirements 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) addresses transportation related provisions. Additional 

policies may be added to address the unique needs of each collaboration between the Local Education 

Agency (LEA) and the County Children and Youth Agency (CCYA) in order to ensure the educational 

stability of foster care youth. Note: this MOU is not a local transportation plan. It is an agreement 

between the LEA and CCYA to collaboratively design a local transportation plan. 

 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this agreement is to establish transportation procedures between Jersey Shore Area School 
District (LEA) and Clinton County Children and Youth Social Services Agency (CCYA) to ensure the 
provision of transportation for foster care youth enrolled in a LEA (Pre-K-12) when a best interest 
determination indicates that the student should remain in the school of origin, and alternative means of 
transportation to and from school have been fully explored and deemed unavailable. 
 

Joint Responsibilities: 
▪ The LEA and CCYA agree to collaborate to update or establish formal mechanisms to ensure 

that the LEA is promptly notified when a child enters foster care or changes foster care 
placements. 

▪ The LEA and CCYA agree to collaborate to jointly design a comprehensive transportation plan 
to ensure that transportation for children in foster care is provided, arranged, and funded. 

▪ Both parties agree that under no circumstances shall a transportation dispute between party’s 
delay or interrupt the provision of transportation for a child to the school of origin. 

▪ Both parties agree to communicate regularly and share leadership responsibilities at the local 
level to ensure that available resources for transportation are utilized in the most effective 
manner, without duplication. 

▪ Both parties agree that transportation must be provided in a “cost effective” manner so low-cost/no-
cost options should be explored. (e.g. pre-existing bus stops or public transportation, foster parents 
provide transportation, transportation by other programs if child is eligible) 

▪ Both parties agree to maintain confidentiality of information regarding children and families 
being served, in accordance with the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), and all 
other State and Federal laws and regulations regarding confidentiality. 

▪ Both parties understand that all federal, state and local funding sources should be maximized to 
ensure transportations costs are not unduly burdensome on one agency. 

 



 

 

Respective responsibilities under this agreement include: 
 

Jersey Shore Area School District  
 

▪ Establish a Foster Care Point of Contact (POC) given the importance of transportation to ensure 
educational stability requirements defined by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). 

▪ Share the Foster Care POC’s contact information with state and local education and child welfare 
agencies. 

▪ Understands that even if an LEA does not transport other students, it must ensure that 
transportation is provided to children in foster care, adhering to the collaboratively designed 
transportation plan. 

▪ Acknowledges that Title I is an allowable funding source for additional transportation costs, although 
funds reserved for comparable services for homeless children and youth may not be used for 
transportation. 

▪ Informs the CCYA whether Title I funds are available to support additional transportation costs for 
children in foster care in order to maintain enrollment in their school of origin. 

▪ Agrees, if applicable, to support additional transportation costs for eligible foster care youth utilizing 
funds made available within Title I. 

▪ Understands that if there are additional costs providing transportation for children in foster care to 
remain in his or her school of origin, the LEA (school of origin) will provide such transportation if (1) 
the county children and youth agency agrees to reimburse the LEA for the cost of transportation; (2) 
the LEA agrees to pay for the additional costs; or (3) the LEA and county children and youth agency 
agree to share the costs. 

▪ Agrees that a child must remain in his or her school of origin while any disputes are being 
resolved. Agrees to provide or arrange for adequate and appropriate transportation to and from 
the school of origin while any disputes are being resolved. 

 

Clinton County Children and Youth Social Services Agency  
 

▪ Identifies all children in foster care enrolled in the LEA in order for the LEA and CCYA to fulfill the 
jointly agreed upon transportation responsibilities. 

▪ Informs LEA of children in foster care who may be in need of transportation to maintain enrollment 
in their school of origin. 

▪ Agrees to immediately inform the school of origin of children in foster care who experience a change 
of foster care placement. 

▪ Agrees, if applicable, to support transportation costs for eligible foster care youth utilizing funds made 
available within the county’s child welfare budget under Section 475(4)(A) of Title IV-E of the Social 
Security Act. 

▪ Informs the LEA/school of origin whether Title IV-E funds are available to support additional 
transportation costs for children in foster care in order to maintain enrollment in their school of 
origin. Agrees to assist the LEA/school of origin in exploring the full range of options for providing 
and funding transportation to maintain a child in his or her school of origin, consistent with the 
child’s educational stability plan.



Updates and Revisions: 
 

Updates and revisions to this MOU should be made as needed. Any updates or revisions to the 
MOU must be submitted to the Pennsylvania Department of Education. Best practice 
recommends that an updated MOU be submitted every three years, as contractual updates 
follow this timeline. 
 
 

 

Jersey Shore Area School District (LEA) and Clinton County Children and Youth Social 

Services Agency (CCYA) agree to update or revise this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

as needed or every three years to coincide with the contractual timelines. 

 

 

This agreement will be reviewed and approved by representatives of both agencies: 
 

Clinton County Children and Youth Social Services Agency  
2 Piper Way  
Suite 200 
Lock Haven, PA 17745 
 

Printed Name:           

(CCYA) 

Signed:        Date:   / /  

(CCYA) 
 

Jersey Shore Area School District  
175 A & P Drive  
Jersey Shore, PA 17740 
 

Printed Name:           

(LEA - JSASD) 

Signed:        Date:   / /  

(LEA - JSASD) 
 

 



 

 

Transportation Plan for Foster Care Youth – Jersey Shore Area School District 
 

 

Vision:  

The purpose of this plan is to coordinate services and transportation between the Jersey Shore Area 

School District and the Clinton County Children and Youth Agency to ensure children can remain in 

their “school of origin” and to make placement decisions that are in the best interest of the child.  

The goal of both the School District and the County Children and Youth Agency is to be able to 

provide immediate enrollment and transfer of records in order to provide little to no disruption to 

the child’s academics.   

 

Point of Contact and Resources: 

Superintendent: Dr. Brian T. Ulmer 

School District Point of Contact: Kenneth Dady  

Agency Point of Contact/Director: Autumn Bower  

School Based Outreach Worker: Margie Sauers  

Resource Care Coordinator:  Rebecca Sanford 

Fiscal Officer:  Marie Hensel 

 

Initial Responsibilities: 

 

• Clinton County Children & Youth Social Services Agency shall notify Jersey Shore Area 

School District by the following business day of a child being placed in the Agency’s 

custody.  Notification shall include the Foster Student Registration Form.  

• If the child is placed at a location where a pre-existing bus route is already established and 

the bus goes past such location, arrangements will be made between Jersey Shore Area 

School District and the Agency so that the child will be picked up.  There should be no cost 

associated with this.   

• If the child is not placed locally, the Agency and Jersey Shore Area School District will 

engage in conversations regarding the child’s best interest determination. 

• Discussions will be held between the Agency and Jersey Shore Area School District to 

determine if picking up/dropping off the child at the foster home is already part of an 

established transportation route or if it would require a newly established transportation plan 

in order to pick up/drop off the child.    

• If the child is at a location that would require a newly established transportation plan, the 

following individuals will be notified:  

o The Caseworker working with the child 

o Autumn Bower, Director 

o Rebecca Sanford, Resource Care Coordinator   

o Fiscal Officer, Marie Hensel 

• School records, immunization records, medical records, IEPs, Section 504 Plans will be 

obtained as soon a feasibly possible in order to share the records and information if it is 

determined that the child will change schools.  

 



Determining Who Will Provide Transportation 

If a newly established transportation route is determined to be necessary, no cost and low-cost 

options will be considered first: 

• If the child is placed in a resource home, Rebecca Sanford, Resource Care Coordinator, will 

contact the resource parents/kinship parents and determine if they can assist with 

transportation in any way. 

• If the child is placed in a facility, the Caseworker or Resource Care Coordinator will contact 

that facility to see if they can assist with transportation in any way.  

• If a child is placed in a different school district other than Jersey Shore Area School District, 

the Agency and Jersey Shore Area School District will collaborate and have discussions with 

the school district where the child is placed in order to determine if they could assist with 

transportation as well (Can the child ride a bus from the school district that they are placed 

in and then get on a Jersey Shore bus that would take them the rest of the distance?).  In 

these cases, the school district of residence and the school district of origin may be able to 

share the costs.   

• Appropriate family members of the child will be considered as well in this matter. 

• If no assistance can be provided from the resource parent, kinship parent or facility, Jersey 

Shore Area School District will bill the Agency for the additional miles incurred in order to 

achieve picking up and dropping off the child.   

• Every effort shall be made by both Jersey Shore Area School District and the Agency to have 

a concrete transportation set up within 5 business days of a child’s placement.  

 

What happens if additional costs are incurred for transportation?   

Once all no cost and low-cost options have been explored: 

• If the child is eligible for transportation covered by other programs, this funding will be 

utilized first.  For example, Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act (IDEA) funds may 

be used to pay for transportation services if the child’s IEP Team determines transportation 

is a related service that is required in order for a child with disabilities in resource homes, 

kinship homes or facilities to receive Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE).   

• The School District will bill the Agency for additional costs associated with providing 

transportation to a child in a resource home, kinship home or facility. Upon receiving this 

billing information, the Agency will reimburse Jersey Shore Area School District for such 

costs.    

 

Agreements between the Agency and the School District 

If either party disagrees with the best interest determination for a child, a written document shall be 

prepared explaining the concerns regarding the child’s location, transportation or education.   This 

document shall be submitted to the Superintendent of Jersey Shore Area School District and the 

Director of the Clinton County Children and Youth Agency.  A meeting will be arranged as soon as 

possible.   

 

Ultimately if necessary, Clinton County Children and Youth will utilize its resources to ensure that a 

child in a resource home, kinship home or facility remains in their school of origin while any 

disputes regarding transportation are being resolved.   

 



 

 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

Dr. Brian T. Ulmer, Superintendent – Jersey Shore Area School District  

 

 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

Craig Allen, President – Jersey Shore Area School Board 

 

 

 

___________________________________________________________ 

Autumn Bower, Director – Clinton County Children and Youth  

 

 

 

___________________________________________________________ 

Miles D. Kessinger, III, Chairman – Commissioner  

 

 

 

___________________________________________________________ 

Jeffrey A. Snyder, Vice Chairman – Commissioner  

 

  

 

____________________________________________________________ 

Angela Harding – Commissioner  

 

 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

Jann Meyers, Chief Clerk 
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CONTRACT 

FOR 

JERSEY SHORE AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

THIS CONTRACT is entered into by the County of Clinton and the Provider, Jersey Shore Area School 

District. 

 

WHEREAS the County has the authority to enter into contracts for the purchase of service by reason of Article 

XVIII, specifically Sections 1801 through 1807 of the Act of August 9, 1955, Public Law 323, Number 130, 

known as the County Code, as amended. 

 

NOW THEREFORE the County has the authority and the right to enter into Contracts for the provision of 

services and wishes to do so. 

 

The County and the Provider, in consideration of that promises set forth in this Contract, each intending to be 

legally bound, hereby agree that: 

 

1.   Term:  The term of this Contract shall be from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2024.  

 

2.   Responsibilities/Services:  The County hereby engages Provider in assisting in the development and 

coordination of transportation procedures for all children in the legal and physical custody of Clinton County 

Children and Youth to and from school, when a best determination indicates that the student should remain in 

the school of origin, as set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding between Provider and County.  
 

 

3.   Payment Processing/Rate of Pay:  Payment to the Provider shall be in accordance with the Transportation 

Plan for Foster Care Youth – Jersey Shore Area School District and Transportation Plan for Foster Care 

Youth – Sugar Valley Rural Charter School.   The payment to the Provider by the County shall be made 

following the Provider’s submission of a detailed statement to the Fiscal Office of Clinton County Children 

& Youth on a MONTHLY or QUARTERLY basis.  If a quarterly basis is preferred, the statement date shall 

end on March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31.  

 

Provider’s costs shall be in accordance with the Jersey Shore Area School District bus transportation rate.  

The present rates are: $2.25 per mile, $11.99 per hour for layover and a minimum of $68.57 for any bus run.  

If the rates are re-determined at any time during the fiscal year due to reasonable circumstances, the rates 

will change in accordance with the newly determined charges.  If an impasse should occur the rates will be 

calculated in accordance with Title 22 PA Code Chapter 23 et seq.  

 

4.   Excuse for Delay:  Neither the County nor the Provider shall be held responsible for any delay or failure to 

perform, when that delay or failure is due to causes beyond the control of that party:  such as fires, floods, 

unusually severe weather, and other casualties, epidemics, strikes, acts of God, delays or defaults by public 

carriers, which cannot reasonably be forecast or provided against. 

 

5. Confidentiality:  The Provider and the County, their agents and employees shall perform their respective 

obligations under this Agreement in such a manner as to ensure that records, names and identities of persons 

transported, including all persons formerly transported, shall remain confidential, except as disclosure is 

permitted by law. 
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6.   Termination:    

 

a) For Convenience.  The County may terminate this Contract for its convenience at any time upon 

written notice to Provider. 

  

b) For Cause.  If the County fails to remit compensation due Provider within ten (10) days of written 

notice of failure to pay.  Provider may terminate this Contract upon written notice to County. 

 

c) Rights upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Contract the County shall continue to be obligated 

to remit payment to Provider for all Services provided up through the date of termination.  Thereafter, 

the Provider shall have no further right to compensation. 

 

7.    This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the County and the Provider.  It may be amended 

only in writing, duly authorized and executed, and attached to this original contract.  

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Provider have caused this Contract to be executed effective 

January 1, 2022. 

 

 

PROVIDER: CLINTON COUNTY: 
 

JERSEY SHORE AREA SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 

 

 

 

____________________________________ __________________________________________ 

 Signature- Superintendent  Miles D. Kessinger, III, Chairman    Date 

 

____________________________________ __________________________________________ 

 Print Name & Title Jeffrey A. Snyder, Vice Chairman    Date 

 

  ___________________________________ __________________________________________ 

 Signature- School Board President Angela Harding, Commissioner    Date 

 

  ___________________________________ 

     Print Name & Title 

 

 

   ________________________        ATTEST: 

     Date 

 

  __________________________________________ 

   Jann R. Meyers, Chief Clerk    Date 

 

 

 



A Regional Education Service Agency Serving Bradford, Lycoming, Sullivan, and Tioga Counties 
An Equal Opportunity Employer In Compliance With Title IX and Section 504 

 

 
 
 
 
 

2400 Reach Road 
PO Box 3609 
Williamsport, PA  17701 
570-323-8561   Fax:  570-323-1738 

33 Springbrook Drive 
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November 11, 2021 
 

Memorandum of Understanding 
Between Intermediate Unit 17 and the Jersey Shore Area School District 

 
The purpose of this letter is to summarize the agreement between Intermediate Unit 17 (IU 17) 
and the Jersey Shore Area School District (District) relating to the provision of a Licensed Social 
Worker (LSW). 
 
Services to be rendered: 

• IU 17 will provide a contracted LSW to the District during the 2021-22, 2022-2023, 2023-
2024 school years.  The LSW will provide up to 20 hours of service per week to the 
District, and is subject to all paid leave and benefits provisions provided to full-time M1 
employees. 

• The LSW provide direct services to students/families and will assist District’s staff with 
implementing Social Work programming. 

 
District Responsibilities: 

• The District will make staff and resources available to support the LSW.  It is the district’s 
responsibility to provide peripheral training within the District’s allocated days in any 
areas needed to perform specialized roles in the District. 

• The District will perform School-Based Access Program filing, if it wishes to secure 
Medical Access reimbursement for eligible Social Work service billing. 

• The District commits to maintaining this agreement for a minimum of three years 
(through 6/30/2024). 

 
Fees and costs: 
 
The District will be billed the hourly rate for the LSW, which will be reconciled and invoiced with 
IU 17 Special Education contract billing.  The hourly rate, inclusive of benefit costs and 
administrative fees is $33.75 per hour.  
 
IU 17 is estimating the cost of this position in 2021-22 to not exceed $24,300, but District agrees 
to pay actual costs for the position in each year of the agreement. 
 
 
___________________________________                         ___________________________________ 
Dr. Christina Steinbacher-Reed    Dr. Brian Ulmer 
Executive Director, IU 17     Superintendent, Jersey Shore Area School District 
 
 
Date:____________________    Date:____________________    
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